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Anitual report and financial statements
For tle year ended 30 June 2019

Chairman’s Statement

On behaif of the Board of Directors, I am pleascd to presenl the financial report and aundited consolidated financial statements
of Bestway Group Limited (the “Company™) and its subsidiarics (the “Group”} for the year ended 30 June 2619,

Business overview

The Group continues to boast a porifolio consisting of the 2™ {argest independent whalesaler and 3" largesf retail pharmacy in
the UK, in addition to the largest cement manufacturer and 2™ largest private bank in Pakistan.

Group revenue for the year ended 30 June 2019 totalled £3 .4 billion compared to £3.2 billion in the previous year, an increase
of 7%. Profit before tax decreased by 20% to £227.7 million conpared to £283.5 million in the previous year.

The decline in profitability was due to a tough trading eavironment within the UK wholosale sector as well as the impact of
the acquisition, out of administration, of Bestway Retail which has required stabilisiug. Economic conditions in Pakistan have
also been challenging resulting in softer trading results in our cement business as well as the impact of the mpee devaluation
on conversion of our results into sterling.

DNespite the challenges, it has been an exciting year for the Group and we have becn able 1o capitalise on market opportunitics.
During the year under review the various retail and distribution businesses we acquired over the last year were integrated into
our Wholesale business. We beliove that these investments will be value accretive and chable us to broaden our customer
proposition.

The business has continued its investment in the technology assets across the Group. Well Pharmacy launched a beta version
of its app in July 2018, which offers repeat prescriptions and is designed to wark with a customer’s GP to organise the
prescription delivery and refills. A full marketing campaign was launched in January 2619 and to date there have been more
than 62,500 sign-ups with almost 100,000 items dispensed.

In July 2018, UBL Digital was lauvnched and it has grown to become the highest rated finance app in Pakistan with over 1
million downloads and more than 700,000 active customers. During the year, a host of new capabilities were deployed on the
app including the ability to undertake contactless payments, the first of its kind in Pakistan.

Beslway Wholesale's digital channels have alse growa. The wheolesale app now has over 81,000 registered users averaging
sales of £33 million per month and accounting for 31% of total online transactions.

Social responsibifity

Bestway Group is commilted to giving back to the communitics it oporates in through its eharitable arm Bestway Foundation
as woll as through its various subsidiaries, | am proud to report that both of our Pakistani subsidiaries, Bestway Cement Limited
ond United Bank Limited, have been included in the Top 10 list of publicly listed companics in Pakistan with regards fo
charitable giving,

During the year under review, Bestway Foundation provided in excess of £225,000 (2018: £200,000) in grants to students of
South Asian origin to aitend a number of universities in the United Kingdom. In addition, Bestway Foundation donated over
£240,000 (2018: £185,000) to nine chariies in the UK, including amongst others, The Duke of Edinburgh Award,
Crimestoppers and Grocery Aid,

In hme 2019 Bestway Wholesule held its 26% annual charily race day at the Royal Ascot. This year’s beneficiary charity was
Save The Children. During the year, Well Pharmacy under ils carrier bag levy, donated over £13,000 lo local charities such as
the Marine Conservation Society in England and the Scottish Wildlife Trust.

Additionally, in 2019, Bestway Cement and United Bank Limited have donated in oxcess of £2 million to a range of educationial
and health charities including, amongst others, National Universily of Science & Technology Islamabad, Shankhat Khanwm
Memorial Hospital and Abdul Satter Edhi Foundation. Thoy have also provided scholarships, both local and intemnational, to a
number of nniversity students across Pakistan.

Bestway Cement undertook a project of converting its Waste Heat Recovery Power Plants in Chalowal to Air Cooled Condeuser
Systems. The purpose of the conversion was 1o reduce the reliance of the business on water which is fast becoming a scarce
resource in Pakistan. This formed part of Bestway Cement’s comprehensive water conservation strategy at all of its sites in
order to ensure sustainable water for all of the communities il operates in.

Awards and recagnition

On 10 September 2019 it was announced that our Group Chief Executive, Zemeer Choudrey CBE 81 Pk, would be appointed
to the House of Lords under the Queen’s intention of conferring Peorages of the United Kingdom. Lord Zameer Choudrey
CBE SI Pk assumed his role iz the House of Lords on 5 November 2019, The award was in recognition of lis considerable
cottributions to Britain’s domestic and foreign trade and his philanthropic work.

United Bank Limited was recognised as the "Bank of the Year 2018” at The Banker Awards. The award was in recognition of
the role thie bank has played in spearheading digital mnovation in Pakistan as well as expanding the scope of financial services
in the region. :
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Bestway Cement Limited was recognised by the National Forum for Environment and Health at their 16% Annual Environment
Excellence Awards for its vision and effective implementation of environmentally responsible policies at all of its plants.

Quitlook

We anticipate more challenging aperating conditions in the year ahead both in the UK and Pakistan. The uncertainty regarding
Brexit will likely result in further austerity and continue to dampen cconontic growih. In Pakistan, economic growth is likely
to slow down in the aflermath of the IMTF bailout package and the focus of the government on addressing the balance of
payments issue,

However, we believe that our fundamental streagths and the benefits of our business model make us resilient and able to
perform well in lesting market conditions. Looking to the future, we aim to grow our businesses and reach more customers
through investments in new technologics and processes. 1 am confident that the combination of our experienced Board, and
long-term growtly objectives, puts Bestway on conrse for a successful future.

Sir MA Pervez OBE HPIK
Chairman

i9 December 2019
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Strategic report: Group Chief Executive’s review

On behzlf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to presont the Annual Report and andited financial statements for Bestway
Group Limited for the year ended 30 June 2019,

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group during the year were in the wholesale, pharmacy, cement and finaneial services sectors.
The principal activity of the Company was as a holding company.

Review of business

2019 has been a challenging year for Bestway Group as thero has been significant economic uncoertainty within the geographies
we operate in. However, despite these difficult business conditions in both the UK and Pakistan, all our businesses remain
profitable.

The UK cconomy has witnessed unprecedented vncertainty in the aftermath of the Brexit referendum and this has had an
impact on business confidence which has been compounded by the ongoing challenges of increased National Living Wage

The Wholesale business has been focused on integrating Conviviality Retail (now kinown as Bestway Retail} and landing the
associated scale benefits, This is against the backdrop of u diffienlt wholesale environment that has seen a numbeor of major
players withdraw from the market. Trading conditions remain difficult due to the ongeing compslitian from the grocers,
increased National Living Wage as well as the impact of Brexit on our supplier partners.

Well Pharimacy has been focused on maintaining market share wiilst generating efficiencies to comteract the flat funding
insposed by the Department of Health. There has remained a focus on leveraging technology assets ta help drive both market
share and efficiency gains via our Central Fuifilment and Digital Projects. The Department of [Health has also agreed a new 5-
year contract with the pharmacy busitiess where fanding will remain flat. Specific details of the mechanics of the funding are
yet o be determined yet again there is an onus from the govermment on the sector 1o become more efficient.

Business conditions in Pakistan have been the most difficult in recent times, In the lead-up to the IMF deal being signed, there
was a significant increase in interest rales and material currency devalualion. With the signing of the IMF deal the new
government is focused on addressing the conntry’s balance of payments isswe and as a result has underfaken avsterity measures
which have slowed economic growth.

Bestway Cement Limited was able to maintain its market share despite these challenges; however, margins have compressed
due to the impact of currency devaluation on input costs. Moreover, competitors began introducing new capacity towards the
end of the yoar which resulted in additional pricing pressure which may continue.

United Bank Limited has been able to benefit from the higher interest rate environment as net interest margins have increased,
There has also been a focus on the business becoming more efficient and these significant investments have been made in
digital technologies o fielp increase market share as well as bring operational efficiencies. Deteriorating credit quality in the
interational book has remained an issne because of prevailing conditions in the Gulf region, particularty Qatar.

Group financial performance

During the year ended 30 June 2019 Group revenue was £3.4 billion compared to £3.2 billion in the previous year, an increase
of 7% driven predominantly by the full year impact of Bestway Retail revenue. The details of the restatement in relation o the
acquisition of Bestway Retail Limited is given in nate 50 to the finemcial statements, Despite difficult trading conditions, ali of
our businesses remained profitable, iowever, overall Group profit before tax decreased by 20 % to £227.7 millioa compared
to £283.5 million in the previous year (profit before tax in the prior year included two adjusting items totalling a net expense
of £49.3 million, see note 18).

The decline in profitability has been driven by underperformance in the Bestway Wholesale and Bestway Cement businesses
as well as Pakistani Rupee devaluation, of 29% in the year, on translation into our financial statements. Bestway Wholesale
has been impacted by the time taken to tumaround Bestway Retail a previously loss-making business that was bought out of
administration in the prior year. whilst Bestway Cetent has been impacted by the impact of the economic slowdown and
ansterity measures b Pakistan,

The net book value of investment properties and property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2019 stood at £986.1 milfion,
compared to £1,133.4 million in the previous year.

The Trading Group had cash balances of £154.2 milliot in 2019 compared to £170.1 million in the previous year.

During the year, the UK Group repaid external borrowings of £48 million as part of its ongoing de-leveraging strategy. The
Group refired its loan facility with Habib Bank Limited in October 2018.
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Strategic report: Group Chief Executive’s review {cantinued)

Bestway Wholesale — the UICs largest independent wholesaler

Market conditions in the wholesale sector remain chaflenging. The pressure from the grocery multiples is continuing and whilst
this has traditionally been in the convenience refail space, this has now broadened and intensified with Tesco, Morrisons and
Asda all entering the wholesale market. The sector has also had to absarb the continued iwpact of National Living Wage as
well as the additional costs and associated upcertainty surrounding Brexit.

Despite these challenges, Bestway Wholesale has remained committed 1o its strategic plans of offering improved service and
convenience 1o customers, Management has been focused o integrating Bestway Retail into the business and delivering the
assoviated scale benefits. There has also been an inoreased emphasis and investtaent in the supply chain and the busiross has
moved to a strategy of designated delivery hubs to offer better service levels and to complement its growing online and digital
business, Bestway Wholesale has over 60 depots, alongside 500+ retail stores including 450+ franchises’s for Bestway Retail.

Revenue in the Wholesale business grew 13.0% to £2.3 billion in 2019 from £2.1 billion in 2018. The increase was driven by
the inclusion of the full yoar impact of Bestway Retail in 2019 compared to 3 months in 2018. Revenue also improved due to
the continued focus of Bestway Wholesale on growing volume through its various customer channels, The Best-one and Xira
Local retail club membership continues fo grow as we cnsure greater discipline and compliance amongst our affiliated stores.
During the year, we continued the MyRewards scheme to help our customers increase their margins and profitability. Our
ocatering sales grew 2.5% during the yoear to £162 million while our online business now has over 81,000 registered users
compared {o 62,000 the previous year. Weekly sales grew by 12% vs the previous year with total web and app sales averaging
£33m por month. The retail mobile app accounted for 31% of all euline transactions vs 25% the previous year and the new
foadservice app, launched at the end of the year, accounted for 324 of total online transaclions.

Bestway Whaolesale profit before tax decreased to £6.5 million in 2019 from £27.6m in 2018. Bestway Wholesale's numbers
are a reflection of a much tougher trading environment due to the ongoing challenges faced by the ssctor namely, increased
competition, wage inflation and Brexit impact on supplier partners. The decrease in profitability was also due 1o the inclusion
of the full year impact of Bestway Retail, which was loss-making, as the business is stil going through the process of
stabilisation following the acquisition by the Group. Bestway Retail numbers had stabilised towards the end of 2019 and we
are hopeful this will be a positive contributor to the Group in the future.

Total inventory balances as at 30 June 2019 amounted to £184.7 million, compared to £203.1 million in the previous year.
Well Pharmacy — the UK’s 3™ largest vetail pharmacy

In previous years, the pharmacy sector received a funding cut from the Departnsent of Heelth and there was uncertainty around
whether a long-terin deal was imminent. Encouragingly, the Department of Health has announced a 5-year deal, however, the
amount of funding provided to the phamnacy sector will remain flat. Although, this provides some certainty over long-term
funding, trading conditions within the sector remain challenging as the onus is on the sector fo absorb inflationary pressurcs
within the seetor, both wage and cost, against the backdrop of increasing patient demand. There is still a lack of clarity around
the specific lending mechanism nnd the business is reviewing how this may impact its operations.

Despite this environment, Well Pharmacy has over 750 pharmacies and has been able to retain its market share of national
prescriptions and has retained its foous on leveraging technology 1o improve operational efficiency and grow market share as
well as diversifying its product offering away fram solely medication dispensing. The Central Fulfilment project has been
rolied out ta the majority of the estate and the business has soen strontg growth in its digital and wholesale offerings.

Revenue for the Pharmacy business for the year ended 30 June 2019 increased 0.9% to £790.2 million compared to £783.7
million in the prior year. The growth was broadly in line with the market and Well's market share of prescriptions nationally
remained broadly at 5.8%.

Profit beflore tax decreased from £8.6 million in 2018 1o £6.2 million in 2019. Underdying trading remains robust and the
decrease in profitability was driven predominantiy by higher depreciation charges due to the increased capex the business has
incurred as a result of its Digitat and Central Fulfilment projects,

Bestway Cement Limited ( BCL’} - Pakistan's largest cement manufacturer

Trading conditions in Pakistan have been challenging for the cement sector in 2019 and are likely to remain so for the
foreseeable future. Economic uncertainty has resulted in austerity measures, such as reduction in development budgets, which
las dampened econoic growth and as a result cement demand decreased for the first time in a decade. This has been further
exacerbaled by increased finance costs and higher input costs due to the material interest rate increases and currency
devaluation the economy has had to withstand. Moreover, competitors who had mede decisions lo expand their capacities
during 4 year of relative ecanomic stability are now going live with their new plants. Consequently, thore is oxcess supply in
the market at a time of demand compression which is resulting in downward pricing pressure.

Despite these conditions, BCL maintained its position as Pakistan®s market leader and largest cement manufacturer, with an
annual clinker capacity of 10.8 million tonnes (2018: 10.8 wmillion tonnes).
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Strategic report: Group Chief Executive’s review (continsed)

BCL.’s despatches decreased by 9.6% to 8.1 miflion tonnes in 2019 from 9.0 million tonnes in 2018. Domestic despafches
decreascd by 2.0% during the year 10 7.4 million tonires from 7.6 million tonnes. Exports decreased by 32.3% to 0.7 million
tonnes due to the imposition on trade restrictions with India as wel! as increased competition in the Afghanistan market.

Revenue for the financial year 2019 decreased by 14.2% to £303.5 million compared to £3535.3 million in 2018, BCL's profit
before tax deereased 27.0% to £66.8 million compared to £91.5 million in 2018. The decrease in profitability has been driven
by lewer retention prices in the market as well as margin compression linked to higher input costs. It should also be noted that
a portion of the negative variance can be explained by the weakening of the rupee during the year (from PKR161/£1 to PKR
207/£1).

For the year ended 30 June 2019, BCI. declared tolal dividends of 11 PKR per share (£0.06 per share) (2018: 12 PKR per share
(£0.08 per share)).

United Bank Limited (*UBL’) (' Bank”) — Pakistan’s 2" largest private bank

During the year, Pakistan reached an agreement with the IMF on a bailout package. As part of the IMF package, Pakistan had
to adjusi its foreign exchange rates fo be in line with the Real Effective Exchange Rate, which resulted in significant rupee
devaluation. The government consequently took austerity measures and Pakistan has been in a rapidly increasing intsrest rato
cycle where rates have risen 575bps over the financial year from 6.50% to 12.25%. Rates currently stand at 13.25% and there
is a view that these may peak al 14.25%. Although this is positive from a UBL perspective with regards to increased net interest
margins, higher foreign exchange volatility and the ability to invest in higher rated risk-frec govemnment retumns, there is likely
to be increased stress in the corporate lending book as businesses will need to adapt their operating model to withstand these
pressures. The business will have to be selective in its lending and ensure its customers are robust.

UBL’s net interest income decreased by 12.2% during the year from £392.7 million in 2018 to £344.3 million in 2019. UBL’s
profit before tax decreased by 2.4% from £181.7 million in 2018 to £177.4 million in 2019. The decrease in reported profit is
driven by the weakening of the rupee during the year, although when reported in PKR terms UBL’s profit before tax increased
during the year.

On the domestic front, UBL enjoyed showed a strong performance buoyed by higher interest mtes and higher foreign exchange
volatility. UBL has successfully continued its focus on expanding its low-cost deposit base and improving its non-fund income
and il was able to grow in these areas alead of the competition. Digital remains a koy strategic initiative of the bank aud during
the year il has seen over 1 million downloads of the UBL Digital app with over 700,000 registered customers. UBL is
committed to investing technology to improve its customer proposition as well as bring efficiency to its operations and several
strategic work streams are plauned for 2020,

The International business has not performed as well and there was significant provisioning during the year associated with the
Gulf economies. Management has rationalised the portfolio and has identified certain non-core territories and will look 1o exit
or de-risk the business model aceordingly. In line with this strategy, UBL closed down its New York branch and sold off its
Omani assets during the year.

The bank declared a tota] dividend of 10PKR (£0.06) per share during the year cnded 30 June 2019 (13PKR (£0.09) per share
during the year ended 30 June 2018).

UBL’s total assets at 30 Junc 2019 were £9.9 biltion compared to £12.2 billion in the previous year, a decrease of 18.6%.
UBL’s deposit base decreased by 14.6% to £7.4 billion for the year to 30 June 2019 as UBL actively decided o shed expensive
deposits and improve its cost to income ratio,
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Principal risks & uncertainties

The Group faces a range of risks and uncertainties as a result of changing external environments such as regulation, economic
condifions, competition and consumer trends. The Group has taken (he ncoessary measures to reduce the impact of key risks
in the business with appropriate policies where possible, however, not all risks and uncortainties can be controtled.

The impact of the UK s exit from the EU continves to be a risk for the Group’s UK subsidiaries due to the prevailing uncertainty
and the structural changes it has on business’ supply chain. The Group has undertaken & seview of the impact of Brexit on its
businesses under varied scenarios and has looked to manage these risks where possible. Given the delays in negotiating a Brexit
deal, this anatysis and the associated mitigants are reviewed periodically for reasonableness.

Competition is another key risk across all of the Group’s businesses dus 1o the landscape in which we operate, Competitiveness
has increased due fo an increase in market entrants within the cement and banking businesses, whilst there are market cost and
pricing pressures within the UK businesses. The Group ensures that it has robust strategic planning and budgetary menitoring
processes and that it leverages market intelligence to ensure cur subsidiaries remain relevant in the market.

Regulation is a key 1isk across all of the Group's businesses given the sectors that we operate in. Regulation has increased
across all subsidiaries with a focus int the UK on data protection, on environmental standards in cemrent and in capital adequacy
in the banking sector. The Group ensures that it remains apprised on the changing regulatory landseape and its impact on the
business. The Group also ensures it has robust project tcams that oversee operational compliance.

IT & Cyber is en increasing risk across sll Group businesses given the increased focus on digital systems of record and
transecting. The Group ensures that it undertakes period cyber assessmonts and system penstration testing with subject matter
experts. The threats aro then systematically managed, and its security is enhanced via improvement programmes.

Capital visk managentent and applicable regulations in Pakistan for the Banking Group

Background

The objective of managing capital is to safeguard the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concem. It is the policy of the
Bank to maintsin a strong capital base so as to maintain investar, dopositor and market confidence and to sustain future
dovelopment of the business, The Bank aims to maintain an oplimum level of capital along with maximising sharehclders’
relurn as we consider a sound capital position as more appropriate as opposed to leverage supporting business growth,

Minimum paid up cupital

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its BSD Circular No. 7 dated 15 April 2009 has prescribed the minimum paid-up
capital {net of acetnulated losses) for Banks to be raised to Rs. 10.0 billion by the year ended 31 December 2015. The paid-up
capital of the Bank as at 30 June 20 19 totalled R«.12.2 billion (2018: Rs.12.2 billion}.

Buasel ITT capital instructions

‘The SBP through its BPRD Circular No, 6 dated 15 August 2013 has issued Basel I Capital instructions for Banks/DFls. The
revision to the previously applicable Capital Adequacy regulations pertain to components of eligible capital and related
deductions. The amendments have been introduced with an aim to further strengihen the existing capital related rules, Basel
111 instructions became effective from 31 December 2013; however, there is a transitional phase during which the complete
requirements would become applicable with full implementation by 31 December 2019,

The Bank’s capital adequacy is reported using the rules and ratios provided by the State Bank of Pakistan. The capilal adequacy
ratio is & measure of the amount of a Bank's capital expressed us a porcentage of its risk weighted assets (RWAs).

Banking operations are calegoiised as either Trading Book or Banking Book and RWAs are determined according fo specific
treatments as per the requirciments of SBP that measure the varying lovels of risk attached to on balance sheet and of-balance
sheet exposiires,

Under the current capital adequacy rogulations, credit risk and market risk exposures are measured using the Standardised
Approach and operational risk is measured using the Basic Indicator Approeach. Credit risk mitigants are also applied against
the Bank’s exposures based on eligible collateral.
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Applicable capital ratios under Basel 111

Banks are aiso required to maintain a minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of 10.0%, capital conservalion buffer of 1.90%
and High Loss Absorbency Requirement of 1.5% of the risk weighted exposures of the Bank,

Further, undes Basel III instructions, as at 30 Junc 2015, the Banks is required to maintain a Cammeon Equity Tier 1 (CET 1)
ratio of 6.0% and Tier 1 ratio of 7.5%. The aciual ratios for the Bank as at 30 Juns 2019, which are unaudited, for Common
Equity Tier I (CET 1) was 12.5% and 13.5% for Tier 1 rafio,

Lower Buffer required in 2020

As per SBP’s designation of D-SIBs for the yoar 2019, the HLA capital charge required to be maintained by UBL has been
reduced from 1.5% to 1.0%. The revised HLA capital charge will be applicable from 31 March 2020 and will remain effective
tifl next D-8IB designation is announced by the State Bank of Pakistan.

The finaneial risk management policies of the Group are detailed  note 44,

Key performance indicators

Among the financial pecformance indicators within the wholesale business, the key performance indicators are like for like
sales, sales per department gross profit margin, sales per depot, sales per department, operating cxpenses, wage cost por depot,
stock availability, stock levels and cash generation.

The financial performance indicators within the pharmacy business include, the key performance indicators are prescription
growth, over the counter sales growth, profitability per branch, operating expenses, stock levels, cost per prescription and cash
generation.

Financial performance indicators in the cement business are nct refention, gross margin, operating expenses, daily despatches
and cost of production.

Among the financial performance indicators within the banking business, the key performance indicators are deposit levels,
assels under management, rclum on assets, retar on equity, net interest margia, non-financiaf incame, operating expenses,
cost o income ratio, cost of deposits and capitaf adequacy ratio,

General non-financial performance indicators are staff tumover, staff, supplier and customer satisfaction and health and safety
reports, amongst others.

The Board is of the belief that the monitoring of the indicators is an important aspect of the regular business perfonmance
reviews conducted by management.

The following financial KPI's (turnover, PBT and cash) are referred to in the business roview.
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Future outlook

We sce challonges in both the UK and Pakistani economies. The UK is faced with unprecedented uncertainty as a result of the
decision 1o leave the EU, whilst Pakistan will have to balance its need for economic growth with the susterity measures
emanating from the IMF bailout package. However, we believe the Group is in a strong position to withstand these pressures
and coutinue 1o gain share within its respective markets.

The wholesale business will continue to focus on growing share in a competitive market by leveraging the complementary
infrastructure of Bestway Retail as part of is service offoring. The business will also be focused oa delivering operafional
efficiencies via the inlegration of Bestway Retail as well as optimising its supply chain infrastructure,

Well Pharmacy will continie to focus on outperforming the market in both prescription volumes and margin delivery by
investing in technology initiatives that will enable us to reduce our cost to serve as well as grow our market share. The business
will look 1o respond 1o the new NHS funding contract 1o ensure it is delivering all of the services required and achieve the
efficiency gains implicil in the new 5-ycar contract provided by the Department of Health.

Bestway Cement will remain focused on reducing its operational and administrative cost base and retain its status as the lowest
cost operator tn the seclor 1o better enable it to withstand sustained margin pressure,

United Rank Limited will rebalance its in vestment portfolio in the increasing interest rate environment. It will also continue to
retain its focus on managing corporate accounts during these turbulent cconomic times whilst alse leveraging digital
capabilities to enable it to increase its market share of deposits and reduce its cost to income ratio. UBL will also remain
focused on rationalising and de-risking its internatienal portfolio and ensure adherence 1o international compliance standards
across the prganisation.

It has been a challenging twelve months and it is likely that the headwinds our businesses have faced will remain for the near
future. Notwithstanding these pressures, we have been able to show the resilience of our business model and all of our
busiesses have been able to maintain marlet share and are well positioned to grow going forward and create value for ail
stakeholders.

I would like to thank all our suppliers and employees for their commitment to the Group. I would also like to thank my feflow
Directors for their contribution to our strategic and operational priorities.

On behalf of the board,

e e
Lord Z M Choudrey CBE, 81 Pk, BA (Hons), FCA
Gronp Chief Execulive 19 December 2019
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Directors’ report

The Disrectors present their report and the audited financial statements of Bestway Group Limited for the year ended 30 June
2019,

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group during the year were in the wholesale, pharmacy, cement and financial services sectors,
The principal activicy of the Company was as a holding company.

Diyectors

The Directors who held office during the year, and up to the date of signing these financial statements, were as follows;

Sir MA Pervez OBE HPk (Group Chairmnan)

Lord Z M Choudrey CBE, 8i Pk, BA (Hons), FCA (Group Chief Executive)
MY Sheikh

R Pervez, ACA

D Pervez, BA (Hons), MA Oxan, Solicitor

H Z Choudiey, BA (Hons) Cantab, ACA

. 2 » ¢ 9

Indemnity provisions

The Group has made qualifying third-parly indemnity provisions for its Dircctors in relation to certain losses and liabilities
that may oceur in the course of acting as Directors of the Company, its sibsidiasies or associates which were in force during
the year and remain i force at tho date of 1his report.

Employee involvement and equal opportunitics

The Group systematically provides omployees with inforatation on matters of concern te them and cousults with cmployces
on a regular basis to ensure that their views can be considered in making decisions which are likely to affect their interests.
The Group enconrages the involvement of employees in the Group’s performance and ensures that it provides employses with
the informaticn required such that they can achieve a common awareness of the financial and sconomic factors affecting its
performance.

The Group is an equal opportunilies employer and its policies for the recruitment, training, carcer development and pramotion
of employces are based on the relevant mesits and abilities of the individuals concened. [ ssognises ils 1ospuusibilities
fowards the disubled and gives full and fair consideration to applications for employment from them, having regard to their
aptitudes and abilities. So far as particular disabilities permit, the Group will give continued employment and arrange
appropriate training for any existing employee who becomes disabled, It is the policy of the Group that the fraining, carcer
development and promotion of disabled persous should as far as possibie be identical fo that of other employees.

Financial risk managentent

A description of the Group’s [inancial risk management objectives and policies and its exposure to foreign currency, interest
rate, credit and liquidity risk is given in note 44 to the financial statements.
Dividends

On 26 June 2019, Bestway Group Limited declared and paid a final ordinary dividend of £4.00 per share for the year ended 30
June 2018. This is in addition to the £6.00 per share interim dividend declared and paid on 21 May 2018 for the year ended 30
June 2018, Together, this dividend totalled £10 million.

No dividend has yet been declared for the year ended 30 Junc 2019,

Political donations

Political donations made in the year totalled £132,106 to the Conservative party (2018: £101,155).
Other information

Aa indication of likely fulure developnients in the business and particulars of significant events which huve occurred since the
end of the financial year have been included in the Strategic report on page 9.

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Direetors” report confirm that, so far as they ere each aware, there
is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware, and each Director lias taken sll the steps that they
ought to have taken as & Director to make themsclves aware of any relevant andit information and to establish that the
Company’s auditor is aware of that information.



Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial stateinents
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Directors’ report (continned)
Auditors

KPMG LLP resigned as suditors on 24 January 2019. PricewaterhouscCoopers LLP were subsequently appointed as anditors
in accordance with Section 485 of the Companies Act 2006 on 6 March 2019. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated
thetr willingness to continue in office and a resolution conceming their re-appointment will be proposed a the Annual General
Meeting.

Going Concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis. The Group made a profit before tax of £227.7 million
(2018: £283.5 million) and has net assets of £1.7 billion (2018: £1.9 billion) aud tatal assets of £11.9 billion (2018: £14.4
billion). Additionally, the Group generated cash of £474.5 million {2018: £45.7 million) in the financial year ended 30 June
2019,

The Directors have also reviewed the detailed budgets and cash fow forecasts for the businesses and also considered the
liquidity requirements of the banking operations and believe that the group has access to sufficient financial resources to enable
it to coutinue its aperations and meet its Habilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approvai of these
financial statements,

The Company financial statements have also been prepared on a going concem basis, The Company made a profit before tax
of £4.0 million and has net assets of £578.0 million, Fhis relates predominately o an investment in Bestway (Holdings)
Limited. The Directors consider that this will enable the Company to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
fisture by meeting its liahilities as they fall due for payment,

Based on these indications the Directors believe that it remains appropriate to prepare the consolidated and company financial
statements ot & going concern basis,

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilifies

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annuat Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulation.

Company law requires the directors 1o prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have
prepared the Gronp financial statements in accordunce with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFR8s) as adopted by
the Buropean Union aund company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepicd Accounling
Practice (United Kingdom Accounling Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicablc law).
Under Company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or Joss of the Group and Company for that periad.
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required to:

*  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

»  state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the group financial
statements and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101, have been followed for the Company
financial statements, subject to any materinl departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

¢ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

e prepare the financial stalements on the going concern basis unless it is inapproprinte ta presume that the Group and
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The Directars are responsible for kesping adequate aceownting records that are suilicient to show and explain the Group and
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy al any time the financial position of the Group and Company
and enable them 1o ensure that the financial statemments comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements on pages 16 to 141 were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 December 2019 and signed on its
behalf by

R

P = o N U S A
Lord Z M Cheuwdrey CBE, SI Pk, BA (Tlons), FCA
Gronp Chief Executive

19 December 2819
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Bestway Group Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion:

¢+ Bestway Group Limited’s group financial statements and company financial statements {the “financisl
staterents”) give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the company’s affairs asat 30 June
2019 and of the group’s profit and cash floews for the year then ended;

+ the group financial staternents have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union;

* the company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Praclice {(United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

s the financial statements have been prepared in aceordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual repart and financial statements (the “Annual
Report™), which comprise: the conselidated and company statements of financial position as at 30 June 20i9; the
consolidated income statement and statement of comprehensive income, the consclidated cash flow statement, and
the consolidated and company statement of changes in equity for the ycar then ended; and the notes to the financial
statements, which include a deseription of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs(UK)") and applicable
law. Qur responsibilities under ISAs {(UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

‘We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilied our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern
1SAs (UK} require us to report to you when:

s thedirectors’ use of the going concern basis of aceounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or

s the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the group’s and company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters,

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the
group’s and company’s ability to continue as a going concern. For exampie, the terms on which the United Kingdoin
may withdraw from the European Union are not clear, and it is difficult to evaluate al! of the potential implications
on the group’s trade, customers, suppliers and the wider economy.



Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Bestway Group Limited (continued)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the
finaneial statements does not cover the other information and, aceardingly, we do not express an audit opinion or,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any forin of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responstbility is to read the other information and, in
doing so consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent
material inconsistency or material inisstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there
is a material misslatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based
on the work we have perforined, we conelude that there is a material misstatement of this otherinformation, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by
the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above snd our work undertaken in the course of the audit, [SAs (UK) require
us also to report certain opinions and matters as deseribed below,

Strategic Repurt and Dirvectors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaker in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic
Report: Group Chief Executive’s Review and Directors’ Report for the year ended 30 June 2019 is consistent with
the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the
eourse of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategie Report: Group Chief Executive’s
Review and Directors’ Report.

Responsihilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the_financial statements

As explained more folly in the Statement of Direciors’ Responsibilities set out on page 12, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstateinent,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
coneern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group ar the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. :

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatemnent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit canducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a malterial misstalement when it exists, Misstatlemeitts can arise from fraud ar error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregale, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic deeisions af users taken on the basis of these financial staternents.

A further deseription of our respensibilities for the audit of the financial staternents is located on the FRC's website
at: www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This deseription forms part of our auditors’ report.
Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been preparced for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter g of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose, We do net, in giving
these opinions, aecept or assurne responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown ar into whase hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prier consent in writing.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Bestway Group Limited (continued)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Other required reporting

Comipanies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you i, in our opinion:

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ certain disclosures of directors’ remnuneration specified by law are not made; or

s the company financial statements are no! in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to reporl arising from this responsibility.

~"Suzinne Woolfson (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Uxbridge
19 December 2019
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 30 Jurne 2019

Revenue
Cost of sales

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Gross written premiutn
Premium ceded to reinsurer

Net syritten premiumns

Gross benefits and claims paid
Claims ceded to reinsurer

Movement in technical
provisions

MNet benefits and clatms

Fee, commission and
brokerage income

Fee, commission and
brokerage expense

Net fee and commission
income

Gross profit

Dividend income from
investments

Other operating income
Gains and [osses on
investments

Other gains and losses
Distribution expenses
Administrative expenses
Credit impairment losses
Share of profits of associates
net of tax

Other operaling cxpenses

Tota) operating profit

Finaico income
Finance expense

Net finance expense

Underlying profit before
taxation before adjusiing
items

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Ansnual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Trading Total

Trading Banking Total Group Banking  Consvlidated

Nore Group Group  Consolidated (restated) Group (restated)
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000 £600 £000

5 3447911 - 3,447,911 3,224 375 - 3,224,375
(2,248,412) - (2,948,412) (2,717,961) - (2,717,961}
499,499 - 499,499 506,414 - 506,414

[ B 736,693 736,695 - 776,133 776,133
7 . (392,359) (392,359) - (383304) (383,394)
- 344,336 344,336 - 392,739 392,739

8 - 22,048 22,048 - 20,804 20,804
8 - (11,668) (11,668) . (11,376) (11,376)
- 10,380 10,380 - 9,428 9428

9 - (12,050 (12,050) . (11,613) (11,613)
g - 7,748 7,748 - 8,367 8,367
9 - 282 282 . (716) (716)
- (4,020) (d,620) - (3,962) (3,962}

10 - 94,232 94,232 106,651 106,651
11 - (2,708) {2,708) - (2,287) (2,287)
- 91,524 91,524 - 104,364 104,364

499,499 442,220 941,719 506,414 502,569 1,008,983

- 8,772 8,772 - 11,867 11,867

12 4,302 2,482 6,784 3,986 1,716 5,702
13 - 1,560 7,560 - 59,799 59,799
2,153 1,398 3,851 4,358 541 4,899

(18,898) - (18,898) (13,946) - (13,946)
(@11,7112)  (254,753) (666,465)  (382,729)  (264,318) (G47,057)

- (33,205) (33,205) - (76,608) (76,608)

- 2,899 2,899 - 2,600 2,600

{3,710} - (3,710 (1,524) - (1,524

14 71,634 177,373 249,007 116,559 238,156 354,715
16 69 - 69 34 - 34
17 (21391) @) (21,399) (21,948) - (21,948)
(21,322) ® (21,3309 21,914y . 21,914)

50,312 177,365 227,677 94,645 238,156 332,801




Cangolidated Income Statement {continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Nole

Underlying profit before
taxation before adjusting
items

Adjusting ifems:
Gain on acquisition 18

Intemational pension pravision  /§

Profit before tax

Taxation 19

Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Investors of UBL finds

Profit for the year

Bestway Group Linted

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Trading Backing Total

Trading Banking Total Group Group  Consolidated
Group Group  Consolidated (restated) (restated) (restated)
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2013
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
50,312 177,365 227,677 04,645 238,156 332,801
- - - 7,156 - 7,156

- - - - (56,470) (56,470)

50312 177,365 227,677 101,801 181036 283,487
@27811)  (84,371) (112,182) (28,600) (53,685) (82,285)
22,501 92,994 115495 73,201 128,001 201,202
1,079 53,888 54,967 38,552 72,468 111,020
21,422 38,911 60,333 34,649 35,311 89,560
- 195 195 - 222 222

22,501 92,994 115,495 73,201 128,001 201,202

Detajis of the restatement are given in note 50.
The notes ou pages 24 to 136 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Profit after taxation

Items that will not be
reclassificd subsequently to
profit or foss:

Profit attributable to investors of
UBL funds

Gains on investments on equity
instruments designated at FYOC]
—net of tax

Remeasurement of net defined
benefit liability — net of tax

ltems that are or may be
veclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific
conditions have been met:
Surplus / (loss) avising on
revaluation of fixed assets
Surplus / (loss) arising on
invesinients in scenrities as 'at
FVOCI' - net of tax

Net loss on investments in debt
mstruments classified ag ‘nt
FVOCI' — netoftax

Exchange (loss) / gain on
translation of foreign operations

Othey comprehensive (loss) for
the year

Total comprehensive (loss) /
income for the year

Total comprehensive (loss) /
income atiributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent

Noa-controlling interests

Total comprehensive (Joss) /
income for the year

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

o - Trading Banking Total

Nore TlGa:img BT}‘F‘J“L Cunsoliglraott::: Group Group  Consalidated
oup rewp (restated) (restated) (restated)

2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018

£000 £000 £600 £000 £000 £000

232,501 92,994 115,495 73,201 128,001 201,202

. (195) (195) - (222) (292)

- 675 675 - - N

40 (882) 13,268 12,686 £,809 (1,533) 276
(582) 13,748 13,166 1,809 (1,755) 54

. 3,517 3,517 y 44,177 44,177

@ @5 Gn) 550 (98,666) (98,115)

- (20,080) (20,080) . - .

69,211)  (155,754) (224,965) (54,635)  (145,203) (199,838)
69213)  (179,379) (248,592) (54,084)  (199,692) (253,776)
(69,795)  (165,629) (235,424) (52,275) (201,447 (253,722
(47,294) (72,635) (119,929} 20926 (73,446) (52,520)
(35,424) (45,990) (81,414) 12,149 (40,178) (28,029

47 (11,870)  (26,645) (38,515) 8,717 (33,268) (24,491)
(“7,294) {712,635) (119,929 20,926 (73,446) (52,520)

Details of the restatement are given in note 50.
The notes on pages 24 o 136 are an integral part of these consalidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As ar 30 June 2019

Non-current assets
Goodwill

Trading Group
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properly

Banking Group
Intengible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Retnsurance assets
Investments in associates
Investments in financial assets
Lending to financial institutions and advances
Net deferred tax asset

Current assets
Trading Group
Tax recoverable
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Banking Group
Tax recoverable
Invesiments in financial assets
Trade and other receivabies
Lending to financial instirutions and advances
Cash and cash equivatents
Assets classified as held for sale

TOTAL ASSETS

Current liabilities
Trading Group
Tax payable
Bauk overdraft
Trade and other payables
Otler interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Provisians
Banldng Group
Bagk overdraft
Trade and other payabloes
Deposits and other accounts
Payable to investors of UBI, funds
Bills payable
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Liabilities direstly associated with assets classified as held for sale
Provisions

Note

36
20
38

Bestway Group Limiied

Registered nnmber 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
Tor the year ended 30 June 2019

Al 30 June

At 30 June 2018
2019 (restated)
£040 £000
141,711 173,487
400,088 432,221
600,500 681,017
116,442 114,612
7,445 9,175
253,231 318,390
15,919 19,454
10,262 11,396
14,371 23,693
1,942,928 2,894,350
1,715,703 2222011
35,629 5,806
5,258,229 6,906,572
18,323 17,030
284,908 328,786
249,154 258,259
154,181 176,121
99,257 136,590
2,465,728 2,390,652
248,757 299,973
1,764,113 2,647,665
1,337,440 1,229,870
20,898 -
6,642,756 7478946
11,900,985 14,385,518
2,360 3,555
107,148 140,649
541,204 582,764
111,403 91,658
8,365 22,588
2,085 6,201
263,530 287,079
7,109,108 8,205,299
9,536 7487
143,886 96,844
967,266 1,734,563
20,016 -
14,7@ 16,977
2,300,661 11,195,664




Consclidated Statement of Financial Pesition (continued)

As at 30 June 2019

Non-current liabilities
Trading Group

Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Preference shares

Net deferred tax linbilities
Net employee benefits
Provisions

Bauking Group
Other financial liabilities
Deposits and other accounts

Other interesi-bearing loans and borrowings

Subordinated loans
Net employce benefits

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL NET ASSETS

Equity
Share capital
Revaluation reserve
Merger difference reserve
Statutory reserve
Reserve pertaining to UBL. funds
Translation reserves
Refained earnings

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Details of the restatement are given in note 30,

Note

36
36
39
40
38

46

47

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Aunnual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

At 30 June

At 30 June 2018
2019 (restated)
£000 £000
176,786 275,141
58,178 58,178
122,810 129,044
7,475 9,611
3,419 -
21,154 26,201
299,693 535,828
174,333 165,605
49,202 -
2,112 62,043
$15,102 1,261,651
10,215,823 12,457,315
1,685,162 1,928,203
10 10
239,276 265,196
3,165 3,165
226,635 217,273
6,884 4973
41,626 134,002
638,460 661,567
1,156,056 1,286,186
529,106 642017
1,685,162 1,928.203

The notes on pages 24 to 136 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statoments.

These financial stalements were approved by the Board of Directors en 19 December 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

‘2—‘-;‘@—5—--..__\ —— Py

Lord 7Z2.M Choudrey CBE, S1 Pk, BA (Hons), FCA

(Chief Executive}

M Y Sheikh
(Director)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Bestway Group Limiled

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statenmenis
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Trading  Banking Total
Trading Banking Total Group Group  cashflow
Group Group cashflow 2018 2018 2018
Nold 2019 2019 2019| (restated) (restated) (restated)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000D £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 50,312 177365  227,677] 101,801 181,686 283,487
Adjustments for:
Share of profit of associates 27 - (2,899) (2,887 - (2,600 (2,600)
Finance income 16 {69) - 69) (3d) - (34)
Finance costs 171 21391 - 21,391 21,948 - 21,948
One off gain on acquisition 50 - - - (7,156) - (7,156)
Other gains @153 (1,398)  (3.551) (4,358) (541} (4,899)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 24 45,686 14,653 60,339 42,182 17,117 59,299
Amortisation of intangible assets 23 38,671 3,509 42,180 39,040 3,808 42,845
Profit on disposal of property, plant and }
cauipment (111) - (1D (1,224) {1,224)
Profit on disposal of investment property 58 - (58) (892) - (892)
{Docrease) / increase in provisions (11,073) (39,327} (50,400) (2,747  (55,624) (58,371)
(Dccerease) / inorease in retirement benefits (2,836) (53,215) (56,051) (213) 4,528 4,315
Impairment of goodwill 2] 3,258 - 3,258 10,055 - 10,055
Impairment of intangible assets 23 95 - 95 §.123 - 1,123
Net eash inflow from opevating activifios 143,113 98,688 241,801] 199525 148,371 347,896
before movements in working capital
Decrease / {incrcase) in inventories 30,236 - 30,236| (28,636) - (28,636)
Decrease / {increase} in receivables ) 1,896  (22,025) (26,129) (46,998) (42,899 (89,897
‘Dcc:reu?e/ (increase) in lending (o financial - 341,619 341,619 - (923,725) (923,725)
institutions and advances
(Decrease) / increase in payables (29,148) 58,880  29,732] sL745 (81,871 (20,121
Increase / {decrease) in bills payable - 81,048 81,048 - (13,539) (13,539)
Increase / (decrease) in deposits and other . 785326 755,326 - 534513 534,513
accounts
Decrease in investments - (361,091) (361,091) - 1,344,701 1,344,701
146,097 952,444 1,098,541 185,636 965,550 1,151,186
Tax paid (27,213)  (76,727) (103,940) (45,298) (l02,767) (148,065)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 118,884 875,717 994,601 140,338 862,783 1,003,121
Cash flows rom invesfing activities
N y
1 ro?eeds on disposal of property, plant and 3,680 6,266 9,946 4,608 10,622 15,230
squipment
Proceeds on disposal of investment property - 1,572 1,572 5412 2,182 7,594
Purchases of propetty, plant and equipment (16,804)  (23,741) (70,545)| (125,097) (41,801) (166,898)
Purchase of nvestment property - 7N 7N 38) (3,479 (3.517)
Purchase of intangible assets (7,082) (3,618) (10,700) (1,829) (6,886) (8,715)
Acquisition of subsidiary net of cash - - -1 (6.,653) - (6,653)
Repayment of borrowings from third parties (52,306) (3B7,304) (439,610)] (72,188) (630,990) (703,178)
Borrowings from related parlies 116 - 116 51 - 51
Borrowings from subordinated foan - 57,861 57,861 - - -
Dividends received from Banking Group 43,131 - 43,131 63,361 - 63,361
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities (7,075)  (19,998) (27,073} (60,236) (39,362) (99,598)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

For the period ended 30 June 2019

Netg

Cash flows fram financing activities
Dividends paid te Trading Group
Dividends paid to owners of the parent
Dividends paid to non-contiolting interest
Interest recoived

Interest paid

Proceeds [rom the issue of shares

Bestway Group Limited
Repistered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Net cash (outflow) from financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
yﬂﬂr

Effect of foreign exchange ratc changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Trading  Banking Total

Trading Banldng Total (iroup Group  cashflow
Group Group cashflow 2018 2018 2018
2019 2019 2019} (restated)  (restated) (restated)
£000 £000 £000 £00G £000 £000

- (d43,131) (43,131) - (63,361) (63,361
(4,000) - {4,000) (6,000) - (6,000)
(16,182} (29,664} (45,846) (20956)  (43,578)  (64,534)
69 - 69 34 - 34
(21,391) - @13%1) (21,948) - (21,948)
- 2,908 2,908 - 1,092 1,092
(93,694) (399,330) (493,024) {121.007) (736,837) (857,844)
18,115 456,389  474,50d| (40,905) 86,584 45,679
29472 1,223,669 1,253,141} 70,653 1350390 1421043
(554) (344,703) (345,257) (276) (213,305) (213,58])
47,033 1,335,355 1,382,388| 29472 1,223,669 1,253,141

Details of the restatement are given in note 50,

The notes on pages 24 ta 136 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes

1. General information

Bestway Group Limited (the “Company™) is & private Company limited by shares, incorporated on 9 October 2017, domiciled
and registered in England in the UK under the Companies Act 2006. The registered number is 11003305 and the registered
address is 2 Abbey Road, Park Royal, London NW10 7BW.

The Group finaneial statements consolidaie those of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the "Group™)
and equity account the Group’s interest in associates. The parent Company financial statements present information about the
Company as a separgte entity and not as a Group,

The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the EU (“IFRSs"). The Directors have elected to prepare its parent sompany finanoial statements in aceordance with FRS
101: Reduced Disclosures Framework, these are presented on pages 137 to 141. These financial statements have also been
prepared in assordance with Companies Act 2006 as npplicable to companies using IFRS. These financial statemenis have also
been prepared in accordance with IFRS Interpretations Committee inferpretations (IFRIC).

The accounting policies set out below have, anless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all years preseated in these
Group financial statements.

Critical accounting estimates aud judgements made by the Directors in the application of these accounting policies that have
significatit effect on the financial stateinonts that could be subject ta material adjustment in the fituce are discussed int note 51,

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, and rounded to the nearest £1,000, because that is the currency af’
the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

2. Adoption of new and revised standards and other pronouncements
Interprefations and ameadntents IFRSs effedtive for the current year

The {oliowing new standards, interpretations of existing standards and ather reporiing pronouncements have been issued and
are mandatory for the Group for the first time for the year ended 30 June 2019. The application of the amendmeonts ltas had no
material impaet, except for JFRS ¢ which is detailed below, on the amounts recoguised in the Group’s consolidated financial
siatements, However sdditional disclosures have been made where required.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from cantiracts with customers

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 20142016 Cycle (Amendments to [FRS 1 and IAS 28)

IAS 40 (amendments); Transfers of Investment Properly

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

IFRS 1 regarding short term exemptions cavering transition provisions of IFRS7, IAS 9 and IFRS10

IAS 28 amendment, regarding measuring investiment in joint ventures and associate through profit or loss (FVTPL)

. & % 2 & = @

IFRS 15 is a new accounting siandard that is effective for the year ended 30 June 2019 and have not had a matenal impact on
the timing of revenue recognition, the resilts or financial position of the Company and hence no fransition note has been
presented. There are no other amendments to acconnting standards, or IFRIC interpretations that are effective for the year
ended 30 June 2019 that have had a material impact on the Group.

The Trading Group has adopted IFRS 9 by updating the classification and measurement of its financial instruments, where
applicable, and this is rellected in note 4.
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Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 Junc 2019

Notes {continued)

2. Adoption of new and revised standards and other pronouncements (continued)

Interpretations and amendments IFRSs effective for the curvent year — Bunking Group specific

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (effective date period beginning 1 January 20E8): The Banking Group (*Bank’) has adopted
TFRS @ as issued by the TASB in July 2014 with a date of transition of ! July 2018. As permitted by the transitional provisions
of IFRS 9, the Group has opled for modified refrospective approacit and has not restated comparative figures. Any adjustments
to the carrying amouats of financial assets and liabilities at the date of transition were recognised in the opening rotained
camings and other reserves at the bepinning of the current yoar without restating the comparative figures.

Cousequently, for notes disclosures, the consequential amendments 1o IFRS 7 disclosures as a result of adoption of IFRS ¢
have also only been applied to the current year. The comparalive year notes disclosures repeat those disclosures made in the
prior year.

The adoption of IFRS 9 has resulted in changes in the accounting policies for recognition, classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilitics and impatrment of financial assets. [FRS 9 also significantly amends other standards
dealing with financial instruments such as IFRS 7 *Financial Instruments: Disclosures’.

The disclosures relating to impeot as a result of adoption of [FRS 9 ot the Banking Group are set out in note 3. Further details
of the specific [FRS 9 accounting policies applied in the current year (as wel! as the previous IAS 39 accounting policies
applied i the comparative year) are described in note 4.

New and revised TFRSS in issnie but not pet ¢ffective

Au the date of approval of these financial slatements, the Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs and
IFRIC’s that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 16: Leases (effective 1 January 2019)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle (effeclive ! January 2019)

IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over income tax trealments™ (effective 1 January 2019)

IFRS 9 (amendment) Prepayment feetures with negative compensation (effective 1 January 2019)
IAS 28 (amendment) Long term interests in associales, joint ventures (effective 1 January 2019)
IAS 19 (amnendment) Plan amendments, settlements oy curtailments (cffective 1 January 2019)

Except for [FRS 16, the impast of the above hag been assessed as insignificant by the Directors.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ ‘(offective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16 replaces existing leasing
puidance, including IAS 17 *‘Leases’, IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an Atrangemeont contains a Lease’, SIC-15 ‘Operating
Leases- [ncentives’ and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’,

IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recopnises a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the undeciying asset and a lease liability represcnting its obligation to make lcase payments. There
are recogaitlion exemptions for short-terin leases and loases of low-valu ¢ items, Lessor accowting remains similar to the current
standard i.0. lessors continne to classify leases as finance or operating leases.

The Group has performed an extensive review acioss all of its components which are expecied to have a maferial IFRS 16
impacl. The status on the impact assessment for each component of the Group is provided below.

Approach to IFRS 16 | Expecied adjustment to
opening retained

earnings

Expected impact on assets and
liabilities

'_C'Ompnncnt

Beshvay Wholesale Limited

Bestway Retail Limited

Well Pharmacy

tInited Bank Limited

Using modified
retrospeclive approach by
adjusting the opening
reserves as at I July 2019
rather than full
retrospective application
wairld include prior year
comparatives to be
restated.

Reduction of c£1.0m

Increase of ¢£6.6m in right-to-use
asscts and increase of ¢£6.9m in lease
liability

Reduction of ¢c£1.0m

Increase of c£74.0m in right-to-use
assets and increase of ¢£74.0m in
lease liability

Reduction of ¢£1.0m

Increase of c£85.0m in right-to-use
assets and increase of ¢£85.0m in
lease hability

Reduction of c£2.6m

Increase of ¢£34.0m in right-to-use
assets and increase of c£35.0m in
fease liability

Fotal Group

Reduction of c£5.6m

Increase of c£199.6m in right-to-use
assely and increase of ¢£200.9m in
Isase liabifity
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Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial stalements
For the vear ended 30 June 2619

Notes (continued)

2. Adoption of new and revised standards and other pronosuncements {continued)
Interpretations und amendments IFRSy effective for the current year — Banking Group specific (condinued)

The expected adjustment to retained eamings causes no hindrance on the Group's ability to pay dividends to sharcholders.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost (being the initial lease Hability plus any associated direcl costs) and
subscquently measured at cost less accumulated deprociation and impairment Josses, adjusied for any re-measurement of the
lease liabifity.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease poyments, as well as ihe impact of lease moditications,
amongst others.

As a result, the profile of cosls recognised in the consolidaled income

statemnent will materially change in comparison to LAS 17 as foliows:

— Depreciation will increase due to the recognition of right-ol-use assets

— Existing rental costs will reduce — the only rental costs that remnain will relate to [ow value assots or short-term leases
— Finance costs will increase due to the unwinding of the discount on the discounted lease liability

Whilst the total cash outfllow for leases will not change, the classification of cash flows will be alfected as operating |easce
payments under JAS [7 are presented as operating cash flows, whereas under the IFRS 16 model, the lease payments will be
split into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash flows,

In preparing for the transition o FFRS 16, the Group has been developing new controls, policies and governsnce procedures in
several areas that contribute to the calculation of the overall lease lisbility and right-of-use asset. These include the
identification of any embedded leases, accounting for lease modifications, as well as electing to not apply IFRS 16 to short
termn feascs (tess than & year) and low value asscts in fine with the practicat expedients offered under IFRS 16.

Key judgements have also been addressed, including the assessment of how reasonsbly certain it is considered to be that a
lease option (extension, lsrmination or purchasc) will be cxorcised, and the determination of an appropriate discount rate used
to present value the lease liability and 1o initially measure the right-of-use asset.

With regards to these, the Group has defermined that the lease term will correspond to the duration of the contracts except in
cases where she Gronp is reasorably certain that it will exercise contractual extension or bresk opfions. The historical disconnt

rates applied have been based on the incremental borrowing rate where the implicit rate in ihe lease is not readily determinable.

All relevant accounting policies will be updated 1o reflect the changes under IFRS 16 in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ending 30 June 2020.

3. Significant accounting policies

Basis of acconnting

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except the following assets and liabilities which use the
following measurement basis:

Item Measurement basis

Financial instruments Fair value through the profit ar loss (FVTPL) or as fair valve through OCI (FVOCI)
Investment property Fair value

Disposal groups Fair value less costs 1o sell

Net defined benefit liability Present value of the defined benefit obligation determined through actuarial valuation
Property (Banking Group) Fair value

Going concern

The Group (inaincial stalements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The consolidated statement of financial position
has net assets of £1.7 billion (2018: £1.9 billion). The Group made a consolidated profil after tax of £115.5 million (2018: £201.2
million) in 2019, The Group has significant cash and bank balances net of overdmafts, of £1.4 billion (2018: £1.3 biflion) of which
£1.3 billion (2018: £1.2 billion) refate to the Banking Gronp. The Directors have also reviewed the detailed budgets and cash
flow forecasts for the businesses and also considered the liquidity requirements of the banking operations and believe that the
group has access fo sufficient financial resources to enable it to continue its operations and meet its liabilities as they fall due
for at lcast 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements.
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Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements
For the year cnded 30 June 2019

Notes {coutinued)

3. Significant accounting policies {continred)
Basis of cousolidation
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Gronp controls an entity whoen it is exposed 10, or has rights to, variable
returns frony its involvement with the entity and can affect those retums through its powor over the entity. In assessing control,
the Group takes into consideration potential vaoting rights that are currently exercisable. The acquisition date is the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consclidated financial
statements from the date that contral commences until the date that control coases. Losses applicable 1o any non-controfling
interests in a subsidiary are atlocated to the non-controlling interests even if doing so causes the non-controlling interosts 10
have a deficit balance.

Assoctates

Associules are those eniities over which the Group has significant influence over the finauncial and operaling policies.
Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds between 20 and 50 per cent of the voting power of another

entity.

Associates are acconnted for using the equity method (equity accounted investess) and are initially recognised at cost except
for in the individual financial statements of the investor, where this is held at cost less any impairment losses. The Group’s
investment includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumuiated impairment losses. The consolidated financial
statements include the Group’s share of the total comprehensive income and equity movements of equity accounled investees,
from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ccases. When the Group’s share of
losses excoeds its interest in an equity sccounted invesiee, the Group’s carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is disconfinued except fo the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
paysuents on behalf of an investes.

Change in subsidiary ownership and loss of control
Changes in the Group'’s intorest in a subsidiary that do not resuit in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

Where the Group loses control of 8 subsidiary, the assets and lisbilities are derecognised slong with any related NCI and other
compenents of equify. Any resulling gain or less is recognised in the income statement. Any interest retained in the former
subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

Business comhinarions with enfities nnder conunon control

Business combinations arising from tho acquisition of entities that are under the control of the shareholders that controls the
Group are accounted from the date of transfer. The assets and {igbilities acquired arc recognised at the carrying amounnts
recognised in the acquriee’s financial statements. The Group elects lo present the comparative fipures from the previous
cansolidate financial statements to present the cambining entities as if they have historicatly always been one consolidated
entity, The difference between the consideration paid and tire book value of the assets and Liabilities aoquired is reflected s a
mergor reserve in the statement of changes in equity.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are
climinated. Unrealised gains arising from {ransactions with equily accounted investees are eliminated against the investment
fo the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unvealised losses are climinated in the same way as unrealised gains, but
only to the exteat that there is no evidence of impairment.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gein or loss on disposal recognised in profit or loss is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggiegate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), loss liabilities of the subsidiary. All amouunts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group bad
directly disposed of the related asscts or lisbilities of the subsidiary (i.c. reclassificd to profit or loss or transferred to another
categoary of equity as specified/permitted by applicable TFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
a joint venture.
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Notes (continued)

3. Significant acceunting policies (continued)

Basiy of consolidation (contined)

Business combinations

Business combinations (other than those with entities under common control) are accounted for by applying acquisition
aceounting principles from the date on whici control is ransferred to the Group,

The assets and liabilities and contingent linbilities of a subsidiary are measured at fair value at the date of acquisition.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the separately identifiable net asscts acquired is recognised as
gaodwill,

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to align the accounting policies to those used
by the Gronp.

For acquisitions on or after 1 January 2010, the Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

«  the foir valuc of the consideration transferred, plus

+  the recognised amount of any noan-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus
»  the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquirec; less

¢ thenet fair value of the identifiable assets acouired and labilities acquired

Positive goodwill is recognised in the statement of financial position within intangible assets and is deemed to have an indefinite
life and hence not amortised but tested annually for impairment.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in the income slatement. Costs related 1o the
aequisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity seaurities, are expensed as incurred, as required by
IFRS 3.

Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is
classified as equity, it is not remeasured, and seltlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration are recogiised in the income siatentenl.

On a Iransaction-by-transaction basis, the Group elects to measure non-controlling interests, which have both present
ownership interests and are entitled to & proportionate share of net assets of the acquiree in the eveat of liquidation, either at
its fair value or at its proportionate interest in the recognised amount of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree at the
acquisition date. All other non-controlling intcrests are measured at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Foreign curreitcy

The presentation and finctional currency of Bestway Group Limited (the Company) is pounds sterling. Whilst the
presentational currency of the Group is pounds sterling the functional currency of subsidiaries and associates will be dependent
on the primary economic environment m which they operate.

Transactions in foreign currencics are translated to the respeclive functional currensies of Group entitics at the forcign exchange
rate riling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominaled in foreipn currencies at the balance sheet
date are retranslated to the functicnal currency at the foreign exchunge rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences
arising on (ransiation are recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilitics that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary asscts
and ltabilities denominated in foreign currencies that ace stated at fair value are retranslated 1o the functional currency at foreign
exchange rates niling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The assets and labitities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation, are
translated fo the Group’s presentational currency af foreign exchange rates rufing af the balance sheet date. The revenues and
expenses of foreign operations arc translated at an average rate for the year where this rate approximates fo the foreign cxchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions, Exchange diflerences ansing from this translation of foreign operations are reported
as an item of other comprehensive income and accumulated in the translation reserve or non-controlling interest.

The key foreign sxchange curtency rate used by the Group o translate the foreign operations for the consolidated financial
statements process are presented below:

Functional currency for banking, insurance and cement Presentation Financial Average | Year end
business currency | yearended | rate used | rate nsed
Pakistani mpee Pounds sterling {30 June 2019 176.59 207.67
Pakistani rapee Pounds sterling |30 June 2018 148.33 160.70
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Noies (continued)
3, Significant accounting policies {continued}
Goadwill

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is deened to have an indefinite life. Goodwill is allocated
to cash-generating units and is not amortised but is tested annually for impairment. In respect of equily acconnted investees,
the carrying amount of goadwill s inchided in the carrying amount of the investment in the ivestee.

Intangible assets

Intangible assefs acquired on the acquisition daie are stated at cost less acoumulated amostisation and zny sccumulated
impairment loss. Expenditure on internally penerated goodwill and brands is recognised in he income stalement as an expense
as incurred.

Amortisarion of intangible assels

Amortisation is charged to administrative expeuses in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and goodwill ae
sysiematically tested for impairment at each balance sheet date, Other intangible assefs are amortised from the date they are
available for use. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Pharmacy licenses 20 years
Software 3 - 10 years
Other intangible assets 4 - 10 years

Tntangible assets - Internally developed intangibles

Expenditure on the research phase of projects to develop new intangible assets is recognised as an expense as incurrod. Cosls
that are directly attributable (o a project’s development phase are recognised as intangible assets, provided they meet the
following criteria:

the development can be measured reliably;

the project is technically feasible and viable;

the Group intends to, and has sufficient resources te complete the project;
the Giroup can use or sell the intangible; and

» the intangible will generato probable future economic benefits,

Revemnne recognifion

IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18 "Revenue” and FAS 11 "Construction Contracts” and related interpretations. IFRS 15 addresses
revenue recognition for contracts with customers as well as treatment of incremental costs incurred in acquiring a contract with
a customer.

IFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-siep approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1. Ideatify the contract(s) with a customer.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract,

Siep 3: Determine the transacfion price.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the coutraot.
Step 5: Recognise revenue when {or as) the entily satisfies a performance obligation.

Under IFRS 13, the Group recognises revenue when {or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

IFRS 15 permits either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach for adoption. The Group and Company have
adopted the standard using the modified refrospective approach, which nicans that the cumulative impact of the adoption, if
any, is recognised in unappropriated profit in the period of initial application and comparalives are not restated.

The application of IFRS 13 did not have any material impact on revenue recognition policy of the Gronp aud Company and

therefore, the cumulative impact of the adoption on retained eamings is not material and accordingly the opening reserves as
at 1 July 2018 is not adjusted. Comparative figures arc presented under IAS 18 which are subsiantially the same as the above.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recoguition (confinned)
Wholesale revenne

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the cousideration received or receivable and represents the invoiced amounts
receivable for goods provided to customers in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related
taxes. Rovenue is reduced for eslimated enstomer retums, rebates and other similar aliowances. Revenue is recognised when
the risks and rewards of ownership are hansferred to the customer, which is at the point of sale {or an despateh for deliversd
items which is generaily the same day as delivery).

Pharmacy revemue

Revenue includes cash sales and goods sold on credit, exclusive of VAT and any discotints and rebates, NHS sales, inciuded
in Group revenue are estimated for May to June by reference to the number of items disponsed, the expected cost of drugs,
together with the remuneration efement published by the Nationa! Health Service. Revenue is recopnised at the time services
are provided by the pharmacy and medicines are dispensed.

Cement revenue

Revenue is recognised when or as performance abligations are satistied by trmugferring control of 4 promised goods or service
to a cusiomer. Revenue is measured at fair valne of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates and
governmeni levies,

Interest income

Mark-up, retim and interest on performing advances and investments is recognised based on the effective yield of the asset
over the termn of the advances and interest eaming investments. Where debt securities are purchased at a premium or discount,
such premium / discount is amortised through the income statement over the remaining penod of maturity of the debt securities.

In case of Murabaha financing, mark-up is the agreed profit on cost plus basis for deferred sale of goods under which one party
purchases goods from a supplier aud sells the goods to another party at cost price plus an agreed mark-up. Mark-up income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the instalments.

Gains and losses on investnients

Translation gains and losses are recopnised in the income statement, except those arising on translation of foreign currency
securities classified as FVQOCI and on translation of the net investinent in foreign branches and subsidiaries which are taken 1o
reserves until the disposal of the net investment, at which time these are recognised in the income statement,

Rebate income on liome renitiances

Rebate income on home remittances relate to income from services provided by the Banking Group during the year and
recognised oi: an accrual basis when the services are rendered, and no significant uncertaintics remain regarding the recovery
of consideration due.

Insurance revenie

Premium received under a policy is recognised as written from the date of attachment of the policy to which it relates. Premium
income under & policy is recognised over the year of insurance from inception to expiry s follows;

(a) For direct business, evenly over the yesr of the policy;

{b) For proportional reinsurance business, evenly over the year of underlying insurance policies; and

(c) Tor non-proportional reinsurance business, in accordmes with the pattern of the reinsurance service,

Wheve the pattern of ineidence of risk varies over the year of the policy, pretmium is recognised as revenue in accordance with
the pattern of the incidence of risk.

Administrative surcharge is recognised as premium at the time the policies are written,

Commission income from re insurers is recognised at the time of issuance of the underlying insurance policy by the Banking
Group. This income is defined and accounted for as revenue in accordance with the paltern of recognition of the reinsurance
premivm to which it relates. Profit commission, if any, which the Banking Group may be entitled to under the terms of
reinsurance is recognised on an acerual basis.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recoguition (continnued)

Dividend income is rccognised when the right to receive the dividend is established. Gain / foss on sale / redemption of
investments is laken fo income statement in the year of sale / redemption.

Profit on financial assets held at amorfised cost is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the effective yield
on the investment.

Interest income on bank deposit accounts is accounted for on an accrual basis

Invesfment property

Revenue from investment property represents the gross value of rents receivable. Reatal income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and areanging
operating leases are added ta the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Retrospective rebates and discounts

‘The Group's subsidiaries negotiate rebates and discounts directly with suppliers. These rebates and discounts are accounted
for once the Directors are confident that the group is entitled to the discount. Supplier allowances and eredits are recorded as
a reduction to cost of sales as they are earned according to the underlying sgreement. Allowances cousist primarily of
promational allowanees, quantity discounts and payments under merchandising agreements. Amounts received under
promoticnal or other merchandising allowance agreements that require specific performance obligations to be met are
recognised whien the performance is satisfied, the amount is fixed and determinable and the collection is reasonably assured.

Dividend income

Dividend ncome is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established,
Finance income and expense

Finance income and expense arc recognised in the income statement using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest
rate’ is the rate thal exactly discounts the estmates litturc cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the financial
assel or Gnancial lability (or, where appropriate, a shorter year} fo the carrying amount of the financlal asset or financial
liability, When calculating the effective interest rale, the Group estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms
of the financial instoument, but not future credit losses.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs end fees and points paid or received that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that ars directly sttributable fo the acquisition or
issue of a financial asset or financial liability.

Finance income and expense presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income include:
- Interest on financial assets and financial liabifities measured at amortised cost calculated on an effective inferest
basis; and
- Interest on securities classified as FVOCI calculated on an effective interest basis

Fair value changes on other derivatives held for risk management purposes, and other financia! assels and financial liabilities
carried at FYTPL arc presented in net income from other financial mstruments at FVIPL in the income stateinent and OCI.

Fees, commission and brekerage incomnwe

Fees, commission and brokerage income are recognised when the scrvice has been rendered, except when those fees are an
adjustment 1o the yiold on the related asset, in which case they are amortised over the expected maturity of the asset using the
sffective interest rate method.

Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership arc retained by the lessor are classified as operating

leases, Payments made under operating leuses ate recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease, Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the lotal lease expensc.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases feontinued)

Leases in which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are classified as
finance leases. Where land and buildings are held under leases the accounting treatment of the land is considered separately
from that of the buildings. Leased assets acquired by way of {inauce lease are stated at an smount equal to the lower of their
fair value and the present value of the minitun: 1¢ase payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and
less accumulated impairment losses.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the tenin of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added 1o the carrying amount of the leased assct and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Tuxation

Tux on the Group’s income for the year comprises cutrent and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income slatement except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which ease it is recognised in equity,

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax tates enacied or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustiment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Defertred tax is provided on temporary differences between the camrying mmounts of assets and liabilities lor financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for: the initial
recopnition of goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or Liabilities that affcct neither accounting nor taxable income other
than in & business combination, and differences relating 1o investinents in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not
reverse in the foresseable future. The amount of deferred 1ax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

Within the Trading Group there are overseas undistributed eamings of £206.3 million (2018: £243.1 million} which, if remitted
to the UK as dividends, would be subject to withholding tax in Pakistai. An assessable temporary difference exists but, as the
parent entity is able to control the titning of distributions, no deferred tax liability has been recognised to the extent that thesc
profits are not expeeted to be distributed in the foreseeable fulyre.

Within the Banking Group there are overseas undistributed earnings of £347.9 million (2018: £473.9 million) which, if remitted
to the UK as dividends, would be subject to withholding tax in Pakistan. An assessable temporary difference exists but, as the
parent entity is able to control the timing of distributions, no deferred tax liability has been recognised to the extent that these
prafits are nol expecled to be distributed in the foreseeable future.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temportary difference can be utilised. For investment property that is measured at fair value deferred tax is provided at the
rate applicable to the sale of the property except forthat part of the property that is depreciable and the Group's business model
is lo consume substantially afl of the value through use, In the atter case the tax rate applicable to income is used.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group lias a present legal or constructive obligation
asa result of a past event, that can be reliably weasured, and it is probable that an outfiow of economic benefits will be required
to softle the obligation. Provisions are determined by disconating the expected future cash out flows al a pre-tax rate that
reflects risks specific ta the liability if the impact of discounting is material.

Stare capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares are shown
in equity as & deduction form the proceeds.

Sthare premium

Tie amount receivable above the nominal value of ordinary shares is recognised as share premium and classified as equity.
Reserves colegorisation

Transkation reserve

The trauslation reserve comprises all foreign curcency differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations, s well as the effective portion of any foreign currency differences arising from hedges of & net investment
in foreign operations.
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3. Significant accounting policles (continued)
Reserves categorisation (continued)
URBL Funds reserve

The rescrve pertaining to UBI. funds relates to the consolidated general reserve position on the mutual funds under management
of UBL Fund Managers Limited. This also includes UBL’s own share pooling,

Statiory reserve

The statutory reserve is in relation to the tequisition of State of Bank of Pakistan's Banking Companies Ordinance, which
requires the transfer of certain percentage of profits to a statutory capital reserve to meot capital adequacy requirements.

FRevaluation reserves

The revaluation reserve relates o the revaluation of property, plant and equipment immediately before its reclassification as
investment property and the revaluation of investment securities FVOCI.

Merger difference reserves

On 21 March 2018, the Company becanic the new holding company for the Group. This was affected through a share exchange,
with 993 ordinary share of £0.01 in Bestway Group Limited exchanged for 71,070 ordinary shares plus 47,949 ail paid shares
in Bestway (Holdings) Limited, the previous holding company of the Group.

The accounting treatment for the group reorganisation is scoped out of IFRS 3. The introduction of the new holding company
was accounted for as a capilal reorganisation using the merger accounting principles prescribed. The use of merger accounting
principles has resulted in 2 merger difference reserve being the movement in equity reserves, excluding retained eamings, at
the time of change.in the ultimate parent company and resulting scquisition of entities that are under the control of the
shareholders that controls the Group.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials end, where applicable, direct
labour costs and those averheads that have been mcurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition,
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method acrnss all Group companies exeept for Bestway Rotail Limited which
uses the First-In-First-Out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs
of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution. Provision is made for gbsolete and slow-moving
items.

Property, plant and equipmeni

Property, plant and equipment within the Trading Group is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumslated impairment losses. Where paris of an item of property, plant and equipiment have different usefud lives, they are
accounted for as separate items of properly, plant and equipment.

Properties within the Banking Group are revalued by professionally qualified veluers with sufficient regularity to ensure that
their net carrying value does not differ materially fom their fair value. A surplus arising on revaluation is credited to the
surplus on revalyation of fixed assets account. Any deficit arising on subsequent revatuation of fixed assets is adjusted against
the batance in the above-mentioned surplus account, The surplus on revaluation of fixed assets, to the extent of incremental
depreciation, is teansferred to unappropriated profit.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual value are reviewed at cach balence sheet date. Depreciation is charged 1o the
income statement for all property, plant and equipment other than freehold and long leaschold land at rates caleulated to write
each asset down 1o ifs estimated residual vatue over ifs expected useful lifo as foitows:

Freehold and long leasehald properties 2% straight line

Short leasehold properties Over the term of the lease

Leasehold impravements Over the term of the lease

Plant and mechinery 5 - 25% straight line or reducing balance dependent on the nature of the asset.
Fixtures, fittings and equipinent 10 - 25% reducing halance

Motor vehicles 20 - 25% reducing balance

Assets in the course of coustruclion sapresent the assets under development but not yot complete at the balance sheet dats. All
such assots are hold at cost and transferred to the relevant asset class on completion.

Assets in the course of constnictions are nat depreciated until they are completed and brought in to use, Borrowing costs are
capitalised with property, plant and equipment where relevant.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed annuolly.
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3. Significant accounting policies (comtinued)
Investment property

Investment property, which is property held to eam rentals andior for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purposes), is stated at its fair value at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investmout property are included in the inconie statement in the year in which they arise.

An investment property is derecogniscd upon disposal or wiien the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future cconomic benefits arc expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognifion of the property
(catenlated as the difference between tho net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income
statement in the year in which the propeny is derecognised.

Rental income [rom investment property is acconnied for as described in the revenue recognition accounting policy.
Financial instriments

IFRS 9 permits sither & full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach for adoption. The Group has adopted the
standard using the modified retrospective approach for classification, nicasurement and impairment. This means that the
cumulative impaet, if any, of the adoption is recognised in unappropristed profit as of | July 2018.

The new standard requires the Group to sssess the classification of financial assels on its statement of financial position in
accordance with the cash flow characteristics of the financial assets and the relevant business model that the Company has for
a specific class of financial asseis.

Debt Instrunents

Debt instruments are those instrumonts that meet the definition of a financial Hability from the issuer's perspeciive, such as
foans, government and corporate bonds and trade receivables purchased from clients in factoring arrangements without
recourse.

Clagsification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on;

1. the Group’s bisiness model for managing the asset; and
ii. the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the Bank classifies its debt instruments into one of the following three measurement catogories;

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractuat cash flows where those cashi flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest {*SPPI"), and that are not designated at FVPL, are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amounnt
of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance recognised and measured as described in note 29. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest income’ using the effective interest rate method.

Fair vakue through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets that are held for collestion of contractual cash
flows and for selling the assets, where the assets” cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are
not designated at FVPL, are measured at fair value theough other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying
amount are faken through OCI, excepl for the recognition of ixpairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gnius and losses on the instrument’s amortised cost which are recogised in the income statement. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OC! is reclassified [rom equity to income statement and
recognised in ‘Gain or Loss realised on sale of debt securilies classified as FVOCI. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in ‘Fnterest fucome’ using the effoctive nterest rate method,

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVQCI are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and
is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in income statement and presented in the income statement within ‘Unrealised
(loss) / gain on revaluation of investments classified as FVPL’ in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in ‘Interest inconie” using the effective interest rate method,
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial insiriments (continued)

Business medel: The business model reflects how the Croup manages. the assets in otder to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable {(e.g. financial assets are held for
trading purposes}, then the Enancial assets are classified as part of ‘other” business model and measured at FVPL, Factors
constdered by the Group in determining the business model for a group of assets include past experience on how the cash flows
for these assets were collocted, how the assot’s performance is evaluated and reported to key managemeat personnel, how risks
are assessed and managed and how managers are compensated,

SPPI; Where the business madel is to hold assets to colicct contractual cash flows or to collect cantractual cash flows and ssll,
the Group assesses whether the (uancial instruments’ cash flows vopresent solely payments of principal and interest (the *SPPL
test’). In making this assessment, the Bank considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending
arrangemet i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time valie of money, credit risk, other basic Iending risks and a
profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement, Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or
volatility that are inconsistent with & basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

The Group reclassifies debt investiments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changpes. The
reclassification takes place from the starl of the first reporting period following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very inffequent and none accurred during the period.

Equity instrumetils

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do
not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual inforest in the issuer’s net assefs. Examples of equity
instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Bank subsequently measures all equity invostments at fair vatue throngh profii or loss, except where the Bank's
managemont lias elected, at initial recognition, to itrevocably designale an cquity investment at Fair value through other
comprehensive income. The Group’s policy is to designate equity investments as FVOCT when those investments are held for
purposes other than to generate investment romms. When this election is uscd, fair value gains end losses are recognised in
OCt and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal, Impairment losses {and reversal ofimpairment
losses) are aot reporied separately from other changes in fair value. Dividends, when representing a returs on such investments,
continue to be recognised in income statement as'Dividend income on investments' when the Group’s sight to receive payments
is established.

Gains and fosses on equity investments at FVPL are included in the ‘Gains and losscs on investments” line in the incowme
statement,

Financial assets and financial abilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Finaucial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the
instrament. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assels are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Bank
sommits to purchase ar sell the asset.

At initial recognition, the Bank measures a financial asset or financial liabilily at its fair value plus or niinus, in the case of'a
financial asset o financial liability not at fair value through profil or loss, transaction costs that are incremental and directly
attributable fo the aequisition or issue of the fmancial asset or financial liabiity, such as fecs and commissions, Transaction
costs of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the income statement,
Inumediately after initial recognition, an expected credit loss allowanee (ECL) is recognised for financial assets measured at
amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI which results in an accounting loss being recognised
in the income statement when an asset is newly originaled.

When the fair value of {inancial assels and liabilitics differs from the transaction price on initial recognition, the entity
recognises the difference as follows:

a) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an idenfical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1
input) or based on a valuation technique that uscs only data from observable markets, the difference is recognised as a
gain or loss.

b) In all other cases, the difference is deferred, and the timing of recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument and remaining amount, deferred untit the instrument’s
fair value can be determined using market observable inputs, or realised through scttlement.
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3. Significant accounting policies {continued)
Financial assers and financial Gabilities fcontinned)
Measurentent metiods

Amortised cost and effective interes! rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the finencial assct or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, pfus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of auy difference between
that intfial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life
of the financisl asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any
impairment allowance) or to the smortised cost of a financial liability. The calculation does not constder expected credit losses
and includes transaction costs, premiuvms or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are integral to the effective
interest rate, such as origination fees, For purchased or originated credit-impaired ("POCI") financial assets - assets that are
credit-inpaired at initial recognition - the Bank calculates the credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calcrlated based
on the amortised cost of the financial assct instead of its gross carrying amount and incorporates the impact of expected credit
losses in estimated fitture cash fows.

When Lhe Bank revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying amount of the respective financial assets or financial
liability is adjusted fo reflect the new estimate discounted using the originat effective intercst rate. Any changes ure recognised
in the iticatne statement,

Interest income on financial assels
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of financial asscts, cxcopt for;

a) Purchased or ariginated oredit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, for which the original credit-adjusted effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost of the financial asset.

b) Financial assets that are not “POCI” but have subsequeantly become credit-impaired (or ‘stage 3"), for which interest
revenue is caleulated by applying the effective interest rate to their amortised cost (i.e. net of the expected credit loss
provision).

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credii loss (‘ECL”) associated with its debt instrument assets
carnied at amortised cost and FVOCI and with the exposure arising from loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.
Tihe Bank recognises a foss allowance for such losses at cach reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

~  An unbiased and probability-weighted amaunt that is determined by evalualing a range of possible outcomes;

- The time value of money,; and

- Reasonable and supportable information that is available without uudue cost or effort at the reporiing dute about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Note 44 provides more detail of how the expected credil loss allowance is measured.
Tinpairment of financial instruments carried at amortised cost

The Group considers cvidence of impairment for loans and advances and securities held at amortised cost at both a specific
assef and a collective level. All individually significant loans and advances and investment securities held at amortised cost
are assessed (or specific impairment. Those found not 1o be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any
impairment that has been incurred butniot yet identified. Loans and advances and debt securities held at amortised cost (hat are
not individually significani are collectively assessed for impaitment by grouping together loans and advances and debt
securifios held at amortised cost with similar risk characteristics,

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses statistical modsiling of historical tronds of the probability of defauli, the
timing of recoveries sad (he amount of loss incurred and makes an adjustment if current cconomic and credit conditions are
such thot the actual losses arc likely to be greater or lesser than is suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss rates and
the expected timing of Riture recoveries are regularly benchmarked agamst actual outcomes to ensure that they remain
appropriate,
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3. Significant accounting policies (continned)
Dapairinent (contined)

Impairinent losses on loans and receivables and debt securities classified at amortised cost are caloulated as the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash Bows discounted at the assct’s original effective
interest rate,

Impairment losses are recognised in the incowe statement and reflected in an allowance account against loans and receivables
or investmen| securities held at amortised cost. If an event oceurring after the impairment was recognised causes the amount
of impairment loss to decrease, then the decrease in impatrment foss is reversed through the income statement.

Tmpairnient debl securities elassified as FVOCT

The Group considers all available evidence of impaitment, including observable market data or information sbout events
specifically relating to the securities which may result in a shortfall in recovery of future cash flows. These events may include
a significant financial difficolty of thoissuer, a breach of contract such as a default, banknuptey or other financial reorganisation,
or the disappearance of an active market for the debt security because of financial difficulties relating to the issuer, information
about the issuer's liquidity, business and financial risk exposures, level of and trends in default for similar financial assets,
nationsl and local economic conditions. While assessing for objective evidence of impairment, the Gronp considers the
performancs of the underlying collateral, changes in credit rating, credit enhancements, default events ste.

Impairment [osses are recognised in the income statement. If an event cocurring after the impairment was recognised causes
the mmouni of impeirinent toss to decrease, then the deerease in impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

Impairment of equity investmenits FYOCI

Equity investments FVQCI are iinpaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in their fair vatue below their
cost. The determination of whal is significant or prolonged requires judgment, In making this judgment, the Group evaluates,
amaong other factors, the normal volatility in share price.

Impairment of investinenls in associales

Tive Group considers that a decline in the recoverable value of the investiment in an assceiate below its cost may be evidenice
of impairment. Recoverable value is caloulated as the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. An impairment
loss is recognised when the recoverable valuc falls below the carrying value and is chaiged to the invome statement. A
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss, up to the cost of the investment in the associate, is credited to the income statement.

ITmpairient of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-finaucial asssts are revicwed at cach reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impeirment. I any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated, For goodwill, and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each
year at the same time.

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assels

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
In assessing value in nse, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rale that
reflects cutrent market assessmeunts of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impainment
testing, assets that cannol be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generales cash
inflows from cantinuing use that are largely independent of ihe cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-
generating unit™). The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impaitment testing, is allocated to cash-
generating units, or (“CGU™). Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for the purposes of goodwill impairment testing,
CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at whicl impairment is tested reflects the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for intemal reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to groups of CGUs that are expected o benefit from the synergies of the combinatios,

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount,
Impairment losses are recoguised in the income statement with administrative expenses. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of CGUs are aflocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (greup of units) on a pro rafa basis,

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment [osses recognised in prior
years are assessed at cach reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer oxists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the cstimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the assel’s carrying amnount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, il no impairment loss had been recoguised.
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3. Significant accounting policies (conrirnued)
Financial linkilities
Classification and subsequent measuremnent

Ins both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for:

- Finnncial Yabilities at fair value throngh profit or loss is applied to derivative financial instnuments. Gains or losses on
these financial liabjlities are presented in the income statement.

- Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitinents.

Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derccognised when they are extinguished (i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires).

Borrovwings and deposits

Borrowings and deposits from banks and deposits from custonters are recorded at fair value which is the amount of proceeds
received,

Borrowings from finencial institutions also include securities sold under repurchase agreemests. Securities sold subject to a
repurchase agreement are continued to be recorded as investments since the risks and rewards associated with the security are
not transferred while the amount of cash advanced is reported as borrowings from financial institutions. The diffecential
between the sale price and the repurchase price is amortised over the period of the agresment and recorded as an expense,

Deposits include renwmnerative aud non-remynerative deposits. Non-remunerative deposits are non-interest bearing whereas
the remunerative deposits are of saving or tern nature with interest component.

Modification and forbearance of loans

The Bank sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifics the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When his happens,
the Bank assesses whether the new terms are substantially different to the original terms. The Bank does this by considering,
among others, indicators of financial difficuliies including defaulis on covenants, or signifivant concems raised by the Credit
Risk Department.

'If the terms are substantiatfy different, the Bank derccognises thie original financial asset and recognises a ‘new’ asset at fair
value and recaleulates a newv effective interest rate for the assct, The date of renegotiation is consequently considered to be the
date of initial recognition for impairment calculation parposes, including for determining whether a significant increase in
credit risk has oceurred, Howoever, the Bank also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is desmed fo be credit-
impaired af initial recognition, especially in cirewmstances where the rensgotiation was driven by the debtor being unable to
make the originally agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount are also recognised in the income statement as a gain
or loss on derecognition.

If the terms are not substantially differen!, the rencgotiation or medification does not result in derecognition, and the Group
recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash ows of the financial asset and recognises a modification gain
or loss in the income slatement. The new gross carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows af the
original effective interest rate {or credit-adjusted effective inferest rats for parchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets).

It is the Bank’s policy to monitor modified and forbome loans fo help ensure that future payments continue to be likely to
accur. Derecognition decistons and classification between Stage 2 and Stage 3 are determined on a cass-by-casc basis. 1{ these
procedures ideatify a loss in relation to a loan, it is disclosed and managed as an impaired Stage 3 modificd and forbome asset
until it is coflected or written off.

From 1 July 2018, when (ho loan has been renegolisted or modified but not derecognised, the Bank also reassesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk as per Bank's policy. The Bank also considers whether the assets should be
classified as Stage 2 or Stage 3. Once an asset has been classified as forborne and modified, it will remiain forbome and modified
until all of the relevant criteria for reclassification has been met.

The impact of modifications of financial assets on the expected credit loss calculation is discussed in note 44.
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3. Significant accounting policies (consinued)
Derecogiiifion ather than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion theveof, are derecognised when the contractual rghts to receive the cash flows from the assets
have expired, or when they have been transferred and cither (i) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, or (i} the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantiaily alt the risks and rewards of ownership and the Group has
wot retained control.

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Bank under standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and
borrowing transactions are not derecognised becat s¢ the Bank retains substantiafly all the risks and rewards on the basis of the
predetermined ropurchase price, and the criteria for derccognition are therefore not met. This also applies to certain
securitisation transactions itt which the Bank retains a subordinated residunal interest.

Financiud gnarantee contracts and loan commitinents

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issucr to make specificd payments to reimburse the holder for a toss
it inenrs because a specificd debtor fails to make paymeats when due, in accordauce with the terms of a debt instroment. Such
financial guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and others on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and
other banking facilities. Financial guaranice contracts are initially measured at fair valuc and subsequently measured at the
higher of:

- The amount of the loss allowance (calculated as descsibed in note 44; and

- The premium received on initial recognition less income recognised in accordance with the principles

Loan commitments provided by the Bank are measured as the amount of the loss allowance (caleulated as described in note
44). The Bauk has nat provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-market interest cate, or that can be settied net in
cash or by dolivering of issuing another financial instrument. For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision, However, for contracts that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the
Bank cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment componeitt from those on the loan
component, the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised together with the loss allowance for the
loan. Contingent liabilitics pertaining to off balance sheet obligations such as letter of credits, guarantees and acceptarices.

Repurchase agreemen! lending

In this case, the amount advanced (being the purchase price)} is classified as loans and advances while the differential befween
the purchase price and the resale price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorded as income. Securities held
as collateral are not recognised in the books, unless these are sold to third parfies, in which case the obligation to return them
is recorded at fair value as a trading liability under borrowings from financial institutions.

Write-off

Advances are written off when there is no realistic prospecl of recovery. The amount so written off is a book entry and does
not necessarily prejudice to the Bank's right of recovery against the customer.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is entercd
and are subsequently re-measured at fair value using appropriate valuation techniques. All derivative financial instruments are
carried as assets when their fair value is positive and liabilitics when their fair value is negative. Any change in the fair value
of derivative financial instruments during the period is taken to the income statement,

The Group makes use of derivative instruments to manage sxposures to interest rate, foreign currency and credit risks,
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3. Significant accounting policies (costined)
Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial insteuments comprise investinents, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalenis, loans and
borrowings, and trade and other creditors,

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised iitially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. A provision for impairment is established when
the carrying value of the receivable is inlikely to he recoverable. The carrying value of the receivable is reduced and any
impairment loss is recogised in the income statettient. The Group caleulated the expecied credit losses using the IFRS 9
simplified approach medel and conciuded that this did not create a naterial difference to the cwrrent method of impairment
loss. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due.

Trade and other pavables

Trade and other payables arc recognised initially ai fair value. Subscquent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash egnivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
only of the cash flow stalcment.

Fair value measurenent

Fair velue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date in the principa! or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the
Group has access to af that date.

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an aclive market for that
instrument. A market is regarded ns active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an congoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, valuation techniques that maxinise the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimise the use of nnobservable inputs are used.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price — i.e. the fair
value of the consideration given or received.

The Group recognises transfers (if any) between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the ond of the reporting year.
Infra-graup financial insiruments

Where the Group enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its Group.
In this respect, the Group treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probabie thal the
Group will be required to inake a payment under the guarantee.
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3. Significant accounting policies {continued)
Restructured loans

A restiuctured loan is one where the Gronp, for economic ar legal reasons relating to the borrower's difficulty, grants fo the
borrower concessions that would not be considered in normal circumstances. Restructuring would normally involve
modification of the terms of advances / securities which could include alteration of repayment period / repayable smount / the
amount of instalments / rate of interest (due to reasons other than competition). The restructuring of an asset is only granted in
simations where the customer has showed & willingness to repay the borrowing and is expected to be able to meet the revised
terms of the restructuring. The restructured troubled loan is measured by reducing its recorded valug fo -its  net  realisable
value, taking into account the cost of all concessions at the date of the restructuring. The reduction in the caniying value is
recorded as a charge to the income statement in the period in which the loan is restructured.

In relation to loans and advances, the modifications of terms and condifions related to security and collateral arrangements or
the waiver of cerlain covenants which do not affect payment asrangements, are not reparded as sufficient indicators of
impairment or restructuring, as such changes do not necessarily indicate credit issues affecting the borrower's payment ability.

The Group derecognises a loan when there arc substantial modifications fo the terms of the loan on restructuring.
Bills payable

Bills payable, measured at amortised cost, represent payables against the banker’s cheques which are secured cheques by the
Group in favour of payee after collection of funds from the remitter.

Insurance contracis

Insurance contracts are those contracts under which the Group as insurer has accepted significant insurance risk from the
insurance contract holder (insured) by agreeing to compensate the insured if 4 specified uncertain future event (the insured
cvent) adversely affects the insured. Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract it remains an insurance
contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights
and obligations are extinguished or expire.

‘The takafis] contracts are based on the principles of Wakala. The takaful contracts which are agreed, usually adopt the concept
of tabarrs (to donate for benefit of others) and mutval sharing of losses with the overall cbjective of eliminating the clement
of uncertainty,

Insurance contracts / takaful arc classified into following main categories, depending on the duration of risk and whether the
terms and conditions are fixed.

- Fire and propeity damage

- Marine, aviation and transport

- Motor

- Miscellaneous

These contracts are normally one-year insurance contracls except marine and some contracts of fire and property and
tniscellaneous class. Normally alf masine insurance contracts and some fire and property contracts have three months period,
In miscellancous class, some engincering insurance contracts have morc than one-year period whereas normally travel
insurance contracts expired within one-month time.

Fire and property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Group®s customers for damage suffered fo their properties or for
the value of property lost, Customors who undertake commercial aclivities on their premises could also receive compensation
for tie loss of eamings caused by the inability to usc tite inrsured properties in their business activities.

Marine, aviation and transport insurance cover the loss or damage of ships, cargo, terminals, and any transport or properly by
which cargo is transferred, acquired, or held between the points of origin and final destination.

Motor insurance is to provide protection against losses incurred because of traffic accidents and against liability that could be
incurred in an accident.

Miscellancous insurance includes various types of coverage mainly burglary, loss of cash in safe and cash in transit, engineering
lasses, accident and health, money and other coverage.

Bankers blanket insurance covers losses becausc of dishonest or fraudulent acis by officers and employees of the bank,
including on premises coverage of cash, coverage of cash during transit and coverage of forged cheques.

The Group also accepts tnsurance risk perfaining to insurance coniracts of other insurer us reinsurance nward. The insurance
risk involved in these contracts is like the contracts undertaken by the Group as insurer. All reinsurance inward contracts are
frcultative (speoific risk) acceptance contracts.
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Reingsurance contracts

These are cantracts entered into by the Group with reiusurers for compensation of losses suffered an insurance contracts issued,
These reinsurance contracts include both facultative and trealy arrangements contracts and are classified in same categories of
insurance contracts in these financial statements.

Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companics and reinsurance recoveries against ontstanding claims.
Due irom reinsurance companies are carried at cosi fess any provision for impairment. Cost represents the fair valuc of the
consideration to be received. Reinsurance recoveries against ontstanding claims are measured af the amount expected to be
received, Reinsurance assets are not offset against related insurance liabilifies, Income or expenses from reinsirance contract
arc not offset against expenses or income from related insurance assots,

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances dve o reinsurance companies. Due to reinsurance conipanies are carried at cost
which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expired.
Insurance coitract liabilities

The Group recognises liability in respect of all claims incurred up to the balance sheet date which is measured at the
undiscounted value of expected future payments. These liabilities are known as provision for outstanding claims. The claims
are considered at time of the incident giving rise to the claim excep! as othenwise expressly indicated in the insurance coniract,
The liability for elaims inciudes amount in relation to unpaid veported ciaim, olaims incurred but not reporied (IBNR) and
expected claims settlement cost.

Provision for liability in respect of unpaid reporled claims is made on the basis of individual case estimates,
Employee benefits — UK Trading Group
Defined coniribuiion plans

A defined contribution plan is & post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a
separate enfity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement in the years during which services are rendered
by employees.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group’s net obligation in
respect of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment benefits is caleulated by estimating the amount of fiture
benefit that emplovees have eamed in retum for their service in the current and prior years; that benefit is discounted fo
determine its present value, and (he fair value of any plan assets {at bid price) are deducted. The Group determines the net
interest on the net defined benefit Jiability/asset for the year by applying the disconnt rafe used to measure the defined benefit
ohligation at the beginning of the annual year to the net defined benefit liability/(asset).

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on bonds that have a credit rating of at least AA that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations and that aro denominated in the enrrency in whicl the benefits are expected
to be paid.

Remessurements arisintg from defined benefit plans comprise actuarial gains and Iosses, (he retum on plan assets {excluding
interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, cxcluding interest). The Group recognises them immediately in other
comprchensive income and ali other expenses related fo defined benefit plans in employee benefit cxpenses in the income
statenent,

Defined benefit plans

When the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past service
by employees, or the gain or loss on enriailment, is recognised immediately in the income statement when the plan amendment
or curtailment ccours.

The calculation of the defined benefit obligations is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recogniscd asset is limited to the present value of benefits available
in the form of any fulire refunds from the plan or reductions in funire coplributions and takes into account the adverse cffect
of any minimum funding requirements,

The Group recognises gains and losses on the seltlement of » defined benefil plan when the settlement ocours. The gain or loss
on & settfement is the difference behween the present value of the defined benefit obligation being settled as determined on the
date of settlement and the settlement prics, including any plan asscts transforred and any payments mads direotly by the Group
i connection with the settfement.
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3. Significant accounting pelicies (contined)
Employee benefits — Banking Group
UBL Pakistan Head Office operates the foliowing stall retirement schemes for its employees

a) For new employees and for those who opted for the below mentioned conversion option introduced in 2001, the Bank
operates

- an approved contributory pravident fund (defined contribution scheme); and
- an approved gratuity scheme (defined benefit scheme).

b)  For employees who have not opted for the conversion oplion introduced in 2001, the Bank operates

- an approved non-contributery provident fund in lieu of the coutrbutory pravident fund, and
- an appraved funded pension scheme, introduced in 1975 (defined bepefif scheme).

In 2001, the Bank modified the peasion scheme and introduced a conversion option for employees covered under option (b)
above to move to oplion {a). This conversion option ceased on 31 Decomber 2003,

The Bank also operates a contributary benevolent fund for all its eligible employees (delined benefit scheme).

Annual contributions towards defined benefit schemes are made based on actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.

For the defined contribution scheme, the Bank pays contributions 1o the fund on a periodic basis. The Bank has no further
payment obligalion once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an expense when the obligation
to muake payments to the fund has been established. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in futlure paymonts is available.

Other benefits
Employees' compensated absences

The Bank makes provisians for compeisated vested and non-vested absences accumulated by iis eligible employees based an
actuarial advice under the Projected Unii Credit Methad.

Paost-retivement medical benefils (defined benefit scheme)

The Bank provides post-retirement medical beunefits to eligible retired employess. Provision is made on the basis of actuarial
advice under the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Enployee motivation and retention scheme

The Bank has a long-term mativation and retention scheme for its employees. The liability of the Bank in respect of the scheme
for euch year, if any, is fixed, and is accounted for in the year to which the scheme relates.

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustinents and changes in actuarial assumplions are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income when they ocour with no subsequent recycling through the income statement.

Actuarial gains and losses pertaining to long term compensated absences are recognised in the income statement immediately.
Holiday provisions

The Group accrues holiday provisions for its emnployees for the unutilised portion of the annual leave at the end of each
reporting date.

Istlamic financings and related assets

{jarah finanicing represents arrangements whereby the Bank (being the owner of assets) transfers its usufruct to its customers
for an agreed pertod at an agreed consideration. Asscts leased out under ljarah are stated ut cost less aceumulated depreciation
and acounulated impairment losses, if any. These are depreciated over the term of the lease. ljarah incoms is recogaised on an
accral basis.

Diminisking Musharaka is partnership agreement between the Bank and its cuslomer for financing vehicle or plant and
inachinery. The receivable is recorded fo the extent of Bank's share in the purchase of asset. Income is recognised on accreal
basis.
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4. Adoption of IFRS 9

The adoption of IFRS 9 has resulted in changes in the accounting policies for recognition, classificalion and measurement of
financial assets and finaneial fiabilities and impairment of financial assets.

IFRS 9 permits cither a full retrospective or a modified retrospective spproach for adoption. The Group has adepted the
standard using the modified retrospective approach for classification, measurement and impairment. This means that the
cumulative impact, if any, of the adoption is recognised in unappropriated profit as of 1 July 2018 and comparatives arc nat
restated.

Consequently, for notes disclosures, the consequential amendntents to 1FRS 7 disclosures as a result of adoption of IFRS 9
have also only been applied 1o the current period. The comparetive period notes disclosures repeat those disclosures made in
the prior year. IFRS 9 also significantly amends other standards dealing with financial instruments such as IFRS 7 ‘Financial
Instruments: Disclosures’.

Details of these new requirements as wetl as their impact on the Group’s financial statements are described below.
Tradimg Group
Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilitics

The new standard requires the Trading Group ta assess the elassification of financial assels on its statcment of financial position
in accordance with the cash flow characteristics of the financial assets and the refevant business model that the Group has for
a specific class of financial asscts.
- IFRS9no louger has an "Available-for-sale” (AFS) classification for financial assets. The new slandard has different
requirements for debt or equity financial assets.
- Amortised cost, where the cffective interest rate method will apply,
- TFair value through other comprehensive income, with subsequent recyeling to the profit or loss upon disposal of the
finanecial ssset (FVQCI); or
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
- Investmenis in equity instruments, ather than those to which consolidation or equity accounting apply, should be
classified and measured either at:
- FPair value through other comprehionsive income, with no subsequent recycling fo the profit or loss upon disposal of
the financial asset; or
- Fair value through profit or loss.

Previousty, availnbie-for-sale investments stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or [oss being recognised directly in equily
(in the revaluation reserve), excopt for impairment losses. When these investments are derccognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised directiy in equity is recognised in profit or loss. Previously, held to maturily investments were
measured at amorised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment loss recognised to reflect irrecoverable
amounis.

Classification Original IFRS & New

As nt 1 July 2018 under [FRS 9 (IAS39)|  impact| (IFRS %)
£000 £000 £000

Current financial assets
Trade receivables Amorlised cost 159,725 - 159,725
Other receivables Aanortised cost 54,548 - 54,548
Cash and bank balances Amortised cost 169,384 - 169,884
Total financial assets 384,157 - 384,157
Non-current financial liabilities
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings Amortised cost 275,141 - 275,141
Current financial liabilities
Overdraft Amortised cost 140,649 - 140,649
Trade payables Amortised cost 484,327 - 484,327
Other inferest-bearing loans and barrowings Amortised cost 91,658 - 91,658
Total financial labilities 991,775 - 991,775

This change in accounting policy has had no impact on the classification of financiel assets and financial ligbititics in the
statement of fnancial position.
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4. Adoption of IFRS 9 (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 introduces the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) mode!l, which replaces the incurred loss mode! of IAS 39 whereby an
allowance for doubtfb] debt was required ouly in circumstances where a loss event has occurred. By contrast, the ECL model
requires the Company to recognise an allowance for donbtful debt on all finencial assets carried at amortised cost (including,
for example, trade debts and othor receivables), as well as debt instraments classified as {inancial assels carried at fair value
through other comprehensive income, since initial recognilion, irrespective whether a loss event has occurred.

Banking Group
Clussiftcation and measurement of finmncial instruments

The measurement calegory and the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities in accordance with IAS 39 and IFRS 9 at
1 July 2018 are compared as follows:

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Lending to financial institutions and
advances

Investments in financial assets

Trade and other receivables*

Other financial liabilities**

1AS8 39
Measurement Carrying
Category Amount

£000 £000

ITRS 9
Measurement Carrying
Category  Amount
£000 £000

Amortised cost 1,228,015
(Loans and receivables)

Ameorlised cost 4,870,575
(Loans and receivables)

Aumortised cost 2,124,563
(held to maturity)

Held for trading 221,366

Available for sale 2,933,722

Amortised cost 289,756
(Loans and receivables)

Amortised cost 238,940

* This includes non-financial assets amounting to £55.7 million.
** This includes non-financial lisbilities amounting to £15 4 million.

The impact of ransition to TFRS 9 on retained samings as at | July 2018 is as follows:

Retained earnings
Balance as at 30 June 2018

Recognition of IFRS 9 ECLs

Deferred tax in relation to IFRS 9 ECLs
Unroalised gain on revaluation of available for sale

equily securities reclassifiod as FVPL under IFRS 9
Deferred tax in relation to unrealised gain on revaluation of available
for sale equity securities reclassified as FVPL under IFRS 9

Less: share of non-controlling interest

Amortised cost 1,227,674

Aumortised cost 4,766,376

Amortised cost 2,111,294

FVPL (Mandatory) 12,038
FVYPL 221,366

(Designated)
FVPL 115,785

(Designated)
FVPL (Mandatory) 3472

FVOCI - Equity 4,685
FVOCK - Debt 2,807,055

Amortised cost 288,311

{Loans and receivables)

Amortised cost 236,094

2018
£000

661,567

(112,186)|
43,753

18,024

(6,045}

(56,454)
25492

630,605

———————
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Revaluation Reserve
Balance as at 30 June 2018

Unrealised gain on revaluation of Available for sale

equity securities reclassified as FVPL under IFRS 9

Deferred tax in relation to unrealised gain on revalustion of available
for sale equity securitics reclassified as FVPL under [FRS 9
Revaluation of unquoted equity investmenl securities classified as
FVOCl :

Deoferred tax on revaluation of unquoted equity investment securities
classified as FVOCI '

Less: share of non-controfling interest

Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements

For tlie year cnded 30 June 2019

2018
£000

265,196

(18,024)
6,045

2,999

(1,169)
(10,149}
3,369

258,916

The following table reconciles the prior period's closing impairment allowance measured in accordance with TAS 39 incurred
loss model to the new impairment allowance measured in accordance with the IFRS 9 expected loss mode! at 1 July 2018:

Impairment
provision under ECLs under
1AS 39 as ac 1 Remeasurernent 1IMRS Y at 1
July 2018 (ECL) Reclassification July 2018
£000 £000 £000 £00D
Impairment allowance for:
Lending to financial institulions and advances 338,463 104,199 - 442,661
Cash and cash equivalents 446 340 - 787
Investment in financial assets
- Held for maturity invesiment now classifred at
amoriised cost under [FRS 9 13,085 1,230 ) 14,315
- Available-for-sale investments (debt instruments) R
now classified at FVOCE under IFRS 9 4436 2,726 7,162
- Available-for-sale investments (equity R }
nstaunents) now classified at FVOC] under IFRS 9 3,232 3,232
- Available-for-sale investmenis now classified at
FVPL under IFRS 9 18,024 ) (18,024)
Trade and other receivables 7,296 1,445 - 8,741
Contingent liability in respect of financtal 4461 2,246 } 6,707
guarantees
389,443 112,186 (18,024) 483,605
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Notes {contintied)
4. Adoption of IFRS 9 (confinued)

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annuel report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

The following table provides summary of financial instruments of the Bank by class of those instruments and their cost as at

30 June 2018

Classification under IFRS 9

At Amortised At Fair Value At Fair Value At Fair
Cost through OCI through OCI Viulue Total
(without recycling) (with recycling) through P&L
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Catepary
Cash and balances with treasury 1,022,150 ) ) . 1022150
banks
Balance with other banks 297,555 297,555
Lending to financial institations 279,442 - - 279,442
Investments - - - -
Held-for-trading - - - 221,366 221,366
Availnble-for-sale - 2,582,960 196,110 113,845 2,892,915
Held-to-maturity 2,071,998 . - 12,038 2,084,036
Loans and advances 4,432,682 - - 4,432,682
Other financial assets 3,633 - - 136 3,769
Total 8,107,460 2,582,960 196,110 347,385 11,233,915

Reconciliation of statement of financial position balances from IAS 39 to IFRS &

The Bank peiformed a detailed anatysis of its business models for managing financial assets and analysis of their cashilow
characteristics in order to identify appropriate classification. Detailed information rogarding the new classification

requirements of IFRS 9 have been explained below.

The foHowing table reconciles the carrying amounts of financial Assels, fram their prmrinus messirrsment category in
accordance with TAS 39 to their new measurement calegories upon transition to IFRS 9 on 1 July 2018,

Amortised Cost

I'RS 9
[AS 39 casrying N carrying]
Reference | amount as at June Reclassifications Remezsm:— amount as
36,2018 MRS at 1 July]
2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
[Cash and cash equivalents
Opening balance as per [AS 39 1,228,015 - - -
[Remecasurement ECL allowance - - (341) -
IClosing balance as per IFRS 9 - - - 1,227,674
1L.ending to financial institutions and
dvances
pening balance as per IAS 39 4,870,575 - - -
[Remeusurement ECL allowance - - (104,199) -
iClosing balance as per IFRS 9 - - - 4,766,375
[nvestiment in financial assets -
amortised cost
Opening balance as per [AS 35 - - - -
Addition: From fnancial assets held to
natvsity (IAS 39) W - 212,525 - -
Remeasurement ECL aliowance - - (1,231) -
Closing balance as per IFRS 9 - - - 2,111,294
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Notes (continued)
4, Adeption of IFRS 9 {continued)
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IAS 39 carrying
amountt as at 30
June 2018

£000

Reference

Reclassifications

IFRS 9
carrying
amount as at
1 July 2018
£000 £000. £000

Renteasulc-
ments

investment in financial assets - Hekd
or maturity

Oponing balance as per IAS 39

Less: To amortised cost (IFRS 9)
Less: To FVPL (IFRS 9)

Closing balance as per INRS 9

2,124,563

A) -

(2,112,525) . .
(12,038) - .

‘rade and other receivables
Opening balance as per JAS 39
Remensyrement ECL alfowance
Closing balance as per [FRS 9

289,756

1

(1,445) -
- 288,311

‘Fotal financial assets at amortised cost

Fair value through profit or loss

8,512,509

(12,038)  (107,216) 8,393,655

Investment securities - Held for
rading

Opening balance as per JAS 39 and
klosing balance as per IFRS 9

(B) 221,366

221,366

Investment securities - FYPL
mandstory)

Opening balance as per IAS 3%

Add: From aveilable for sale (IAS 39) -
dobt instruments

lAdd: From available for sale (IAS 39) -
equity instruments

lAdd: From held o maturity (IAS 39) -
debt instruments

Closing balance as per IFRS 9

(&) -
4) -
&V -

3,244 - -
228 - -

12,038 - .

Investment securities - FYPL
designated)

Opening balance as per IAS 39
IAddition; Fron available for sale (IAS
B9} - equity instrments

Closing balance as per FFRS 9

115,785 - -
115,785

Tatal financial assets at FVPL

221,366

131,295 - 352,661
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Notes (continued)
4, Adoption of IFRS Y (continued)

IFRS 9
148 39 carrying Remeasare.  SMTYIDE

amount as at 30 Reclassifications ¢ amount as
June 2018 s O a1 July

2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

Fair value through other
comprchensive income

[nvestment secarlties - EYQCI {debt

irstruments)

Opening balance as per IAS 39 - - - -
Add: From available for sale (IAS 39) o) - 2,809,781 -
Remeasuremont ECL allowance - - (2,726)
Closing balance as per IFRS 9 - - -
Investment securities - FVOCI (equity

fustruments)

(Opening balance as per JAS 39 - - - -
|Add: From available for sale (IAS 39) -
Designated

[Closing balance as per IFRS 9 - - 2,999 6,888
Investment securities - Available for

S

Opening balance as per IAS 39 2,933,722 - - -
Less: To mandatory FVPL (IFRS 9) -

kiebt instruments v @) ) (3,244 B )
[Less: To FVPL (IFRS 9) - equity ) (115.785) ) )
nslruments

Less: To mandatory FVPL (IFRS 9) - - (228) -
Uity instroments

Less: To FYOCI - equity instruments <) - (3.889) - -
fess: To FVQCI - debt instruments D) - (2,809,781) - -
IClosing balance as per 1IFRS 9 - - - 795

2,807,055

Tofal financial assets at FVOCI 2,933,722 {119,257) 273 2,814,738

Total 11,667,997 - (106,943) 11,561,054

The total remeasurement loss of £112.2 million (£68.4 million net of tax) was recognised in opening reserves at 1 July 2018
outof which £109.9 million was on account of financiat assets and £2.2 million on financial guarantees and other obligations.
In addition, an amount of £12.0 million was reclassified from reveluation reserve to retained eamings at 1 July 2018 on account
of surplus on revaluation of equity instruments mandatorily classified as FVPL under [FRS 9,

The following explains how applying the new classification requirements of IFRS 9 led to changes in classification of certain
financial assets held by the Group as shown in the table above:

(A) Debt instraments previously classified as held to maturity (IITM) and available for sale (AFS), but whick fail the SPPT
fest

The Group holds a portfolio of debt instruments thal failed to meet the ‘solely payments of principal and interest” (SPPE)
requirement for amortised cost classification under [IFRS 9. These instruments contain provisions that, in certain circumstances,
can allow the issuer to defer interest payments, but which do not acerue additional interest. This clause breaches the criterion
that interest payments should only be consideration for credit risk and the time value of money on the principal. As a result,
held to maturity and avsilable for sale instruments, which amounted to £12.0 million and £3.2 million respectively, wore
classified as FVPL from the date of initial application.

(B} Investmenti in debf securities previeusly designated at fair value through prafit or loss

The Group holds investment of £221.4 miflion in a porifolio of debt securilies which had previously been designated at fair
value through profit or luss as the debt scourities were managed on a fair value basis. As part of the transition to [FRS 9, these
securities are part of an ‘other’ business model and so required to be classified as FVPL catogory under [FRS 9, instead of
designated FVPL. category under IAS 39.
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Notes (continued)
4, Adeplion of IFRS 9 (continued)
(C) Designation of equily instraments at FVOCF

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the vear ended 30 June 2019

The Group has elected to irrevocably designate strategic investments of £4.7 million in unquoted securities as permitted under
IFRS 9. These securities were previously classified as availuble for sale. The changes in fair value of such securities will no

longer be reclassified to profit or loss when they are disposed of.

(D) Reclassification from retired categories witlt e change in measnrement

In addition to the above, the following debtinstiuments have been reclassified to new categories under IFRS 9, as their previous
categaries under 1A8 39 were ‘refired’, with no changes to their measurement basis:

(i) Thosc previously classified as avoilable for safe and now classified as measured at FYOCT; and

(i) Those previously classified as held to maturity and now classified as measured at amortised cost.

S. Revenue

Trading Group

Wholesale (inclading Bestway Retail): sale of goods
Pharmacy: sale of goods

Cesment: sale of goods

Investment property: renfal income

Rental income is split between the various cash generating units.

6. Interest income
Baaking Group

Operafing inferest income on:

Financial assels classified as FVQC]

Trading sccurilies classified as FVPL

Debd securities mensured at aimortised cost

Loans and advances to financial institutions measured at
amortised cost

Loans and advances to customers measered at amorlised cost
Placoment with banks at amortised cost

Available for sele investments

Held for trading securities

Held to maturity sccuritios

Interest income on individually impaired loans is £44.6 million (2018

: £33.9 million)

2019 2018
£000 £000
2,347,529 2,077,923
790,259 783,735
303,523 355,325
6.600 7392
3,447,911 3,224,375
2019 2018
£000 £000
6371 -
298 -
357,672 .
30,105 15,068
334,268 264,799
7,981 6.036

. 5.518

- 7

. 484,539

736,695 776,133
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Notes {contfinued)

7. Interest expense

Banking Group 2012 2018
£060 £000
On deposits 286,776 229,945
On securitics sold under repurchase agreements 54,233 131,396
On short ter borrowings 29,789 18,866
On long tenn borrowings 3,525 3,187
On subordinated debt 4,852 -
Cost of foreign currency swaps against foreign currency 13,184 -
deposits/borrowings
392,359 383,394
8. Nef written premiums
Banking Group 2019 2018
£000 £000
Gross writlen premium
Gross premiums written 24,152 22,175
Chango in provision for uncamed premiums (2,104) (1,371)
22,048 20,804
Premium ceded o reinsurer
Re-insurance ccded {13,122) (11,421)
Change in prepaid reinsurance premimn ceded 1,454 45
(11,668) (11,376}
Net written prennums 10,380 9,428

9, Net benefits and claims

Banking Group
Graoss benefits Change in contract
and claims Claimns ceded Gross changein  Habilities ceded to  Nel bencfits
paid to veinsurers contract liahilities reinsurers  and claims
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fire (3,229) 2,787 825 (566) (182)
Marvine (872) 686 275) 273 (188)
Mator (3,601 1,192 (129) 308 (2,230)
Miscellaneous (4,349) 3,083 (219) 65 (1,420)
Total (12,030) 7,748 202 80 (4,020)
Cliange in contract

Gross benefits Claims ceded  Grosschangein  liabilitics ceded o Net benefits
and claims paid  fo reinsurers contract liabilities reinsurers  and claims
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £0Q0DD
Fire (2.605) 2,411 (1,931 1,587 (538)
Marine (1,455) 1,273 (483) 512 (153)
Motor (3,311) 1,083 (791) 371 (2,648
Miscelluneous (4,242) 3,600 1,868 (1,849) 623}
Total (11,613) 8,367 (1,337 621 (3,962)
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Notes (continned)

10. Fee, commission and brekerage income

Banking Group

Commission oy remittances

Net rebate income on home remitiances*
Commission on ATM / debit cards

Corporate service charges / finance / facility fee
Commission on intercity cheque / cash deposit and withdrawals
Commission on cash management

Trade income

Bank assurance conunission

Comunission on constmer loans

Mininum balance charges

Commission on inward / outward cheque clearance
Commission on utility bills

Reinsurance commission income

Conunission on cheque book jssnance
Commission from financial institutions

Fee for inanagement of funds

Others

Bestway Groug Liniled

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
£000 £000
8,948 8,393
8,409 7,595
9,477 9,891
6,862 11,464
3,966 3,795
4,294 4,603
10,250 12,320
9411 8,813
5,568 5,183
1,626 1,640
631 881
2,186 2,567
2,205 2,127
2,440 2,812
G,L88 6,299
5,395 7.733
6,376 10,535
94,232 106,651

*This includes pay out to correspondents for home remittances amounting to £26.5 miilion (2018: £24.2 miliion),

11. Fee, commission and brokerage cxpense

Banking Group

Commission expense

12. Other operating income

Trading Group

Net gain on disposal of investment property
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Other income

Banking Group

Renta! income
Other income

2019

2018
£0D0 £000
2,708 2,287
2,708 2,287
2019 2018
£000 £000

- 892

105 1,325
4,197 1,769
4,302 3,086
2019 2018
£000 £000
2,256 1,648
226 68
2,482 1,716
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Notes (continned)

13. Gains and losses on investments

Banking Group

Gain on translation of financial assets
Gain on sale of securities - realised
Loss on equity securities classified as FVPL

Lass realised on sale of debl securities classified as FVOCI
Loss on revaluation of held for trading investments classified as FVPL

Gainl on revaluation of investments classified as held for trading

Other income

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Auanuat report and financial siatements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
£000 £000
25,645 19,048

- 37,390
(27,925) .
607) -
(731) -
7,546 y
3,632 3,361
7,560 59,799

Gains and losses on investments relales to investment income, gains and losses relating to banking operations other than net

intorest income. Gthor investment income is shown in note 12, which relates to non-operating investment revenues.

14. Operating profit and auditors’ remuneration

Included in operating profit are the following:

Losses on revaheation of investments classified
as held for trading

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Impairment of goodwill

Operating [casc charges

Operating expenses of investment property

Trading
Group
2049

£060

45,686
38,671
3,258
22,322
629

Banking
Group
2019
£000
731
14,653
3,509

18,808

Tatal
2019

£000
731

60,339
42,180
3,258
41,130
629

Details of the restatement are given in note 50.

Auditors’ remuneration:

Audit of these financial statcments

Amounts receivable by the Group's anditors’ and its associates in respect of:

Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries of the Group

Audit relaled assurance services
Taxation compliance services
Al other services

Trading Banking

Group Group Total
2048 2018 2018
(restated)  (restated)  (restated)
£000 £000 £000
- 9 9
42,498 17,1117 59,615
39,040 3,805 42 845
10,055 - 10,055
16,640 18,544 35,184
2,500 - 2,500
2019 2018
£000 £000
25 13
271 a6l

183
118 158
290 490
1,593 1,282

PwC LLP were appoin ted us auditors on 6 March 2019. The prior year anditor’s remunoration rolates ta KPMG LLP. Amounts
paid to the Group’s suditor and its associates in respect of services to the Group, other than the audit of the Company’s financial

statements, have not been disclosed as the information is required instead to be disclosed on a consotidated basis.

Dauring the period 30 June 2018 PwC LLP was the auditor of the Bestway Retail Limited with audit fee of £160,000 and non-

audit services for the Group of £20,000,
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Notes (continued)

15, Staff numbers and costs

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year, analysed by category,

was as follows:

Trading Banlking Trading  Banking
Group Group Total Group Group Total
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
Number Number Number Number  Mumber Number
Head office and management 1,978 - 1,978 1,433 - 1,433
Wholesale and retailing 10,709 - 19,709 11,580 - 11,580
Manufacturing 1,698 - 1,698 1,820 - 1,820
Distribution 978 - 578 1,019 - 1,019
Banking - 13,534 13,999 - 15,489 15,489
15,363 13,534 29,172 15,852 15,489 31,341
Staff costs for the above:
Teading Banking Trading  Banking
Group Group Total Group Group Total
Z019 2019 2019 20148 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Wages and salaries 300,754 102,422 403,176 264,567 177,461 442,028
Social security costs 23,122 796 23,918 20,045 1,065 21,110
Other pension costs 7,937 5,539 13,476 6,510 61,409 67,919
331,813 108,757 440,570 291,122 239935 531,057
16, Finance income
Trading Group 2019 2018
£000 £000
Bank deposits 39 4
Interest from related parties - 27
Other interest 39 3
69 34
17. Finance expense
Trading Group 2019 2018
£000 £000
Interest on bank loans and overdrafis 17,677 15,454
Accrued preference dividends 3,460 3,460
Refinancing costs 88 2,801
Mot inferest expense on defined benefit abligation 166 233
21,391 21,948
Banking Group
Finance costs 8 -
8 -
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Notes (continued)
18. Adjusting items

Adjusting items represent certain items of income and expense which the Group considers disiinctive based on their size, nature
or incidence. These include significant items in revenue, income from operations, net finance costs, taxation and the Group’s
share of the post-tax results of associates and joint veatures which individually or, if of a siniilar type, in aggregate, are relevant
to an undesstanding of the Group’s underiying financial performance. Although the Group does not beliove that these measures
are a substitute for IFRS measures, the Group does believe such results excluding the impact of adjusiing items provide
additional useful information 1o investors regarding the underfying performance of the business on a comparable basis.

Trading Group
There were 10 adjusting items identified for the year ended 30 June 2019. Adjusting itoms relating to the prior year are detailed
beiow;

Tnctuded in profit/ (loss) are the following adjusting items: 2019 20138
£600 £000
Gain on acquisition (restated) - 7,156

The gain on acyuisition relates to the restated negative goodwill recognised on the acquisition of the trading assets of Bargain
Booze Limited, Conviviality Retail Logistics Limited and Wine Rack Limited. On 7 April 2018 Bestway Retail Limited
purchased the assets and liabilities from Bargain Booze Limited, Conviviality Retail Logistics Limited and Winc Rack Limited
for a purchase price of £7.5 million, thus generating a negative goodwill balance of £7.2 miilion. 8ee note 22 for more
information on this acquisition and note 50 for more information relating to (he restatement.

Banking Group

Included in profit / (foss) are the following adjusting items: : 2019 2018
£000 £000

UBL pension provision - (56,470)

The adjusting item of UBL pension provision of £56.5m represents the estimated amount of the cost of pension pryable as per
Pakistan's Supreme Court’s Order increasing the ininiinum pension to Rs. 8,000 per month (c.£54) for UBL retired employees
subject to 5% annual increase from 1 January 2019. This ostimate is based on on-going life verification of both peasioners and
retrenched employees. The estimate is also based on the payment of pension without taking effect of comumutation. The Bank
has sought clarification from the Supreme Court on the effect of commutstion in calculation of minimum pensien and the
treatment to ex-empluyces who were separated under the Golden Handshake Scheme described as Retrenchment Schome of
1997.The amount may be adjusted in the future years based on the guidance received from the Supreme Court.
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Notes (continued)

19. Taxation

i) Analysis of charge in the year:

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Amzual report and financial statemenis
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Recognised in the income statement 2019 2018
£000 £000
Currenf fax
UK corporation tax on profits for the year 7,689 13,905
Adjustments in respect of previous years 2,989 4,787)
Faretgn tax: Carrent tax on income in the year 94,168 92411
Current fax expense 104,846 101,529
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differcnces 934 (9,128)
Clianges in tax rate 6,597 (10,798)
Adjustments in respect of previous years (195) 682
Deferred tax credit (see note 39) 7,336 (19,244)
Total tax expense 112,182 22,285
Tncome tax recognised in other comprehensive income 2019 2018
£000 £000
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability ' 7,603 459)
Movements in fair valoe of investments (19,024) (49,995)
Other movemenls {1,151) (2,78
(3,572) (53,238)

ii) Factors affecting the tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year differs from the standard rate of tax in the UK of 19% (2018: 19%). The differences are explaiiied

below:

2018
2019 (restated)
£000 £000
Profil for the year 227,677 285,900
Tax using the UK corporation tax rale of 19.00 % (2018: 19.00%) 43,258 54,321

Effects of:
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 7,282 5,204
Income not faxable for tax purposes (1,003) (6,902)
Rate change inpact 6,597  {10,798)
Higher rate of 1ax on overscas eamings 52,088 43,927
Other differences 1,167 (4,012)
Adjustment in respect of previous years 2,793 545
Total 1ax expense (including tax equity accounted inveslees) 112,182 82,285

iii) Factors that may affect futore fax charges

Reductions in the UK corporation tax from 19% (o 17% (effective T April 2020) were substantively enacted on 6 September

2016. This will reducc the Group's fiture current tax charge.

There are no malerial unrecognised deferred tax balancos (2018: £nil) as at June 2019,
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Netes (continued)

20. Assels classified as held for sale

UBL Bank (Tanzania) Limited (UBTL) is u wholly cwued subsidiary of Uniled Bank Limited (UBL). UBL and UBTL have
entered into an "Assets and Liabilitics Purchase Agreement™ with EXiM Bank Tanzania Limited subject to all applicable
corporate compliances and the regulatory approvals at both places, i.e. Pakistan and Tanzania. The eatity of UBTL and its
banking license will remain intact for the time being. Accordingly, the investment in UBTL is clussified as "held for sale* at
tower of carrying amount and fajr value less cost of disposal, in the 2019 financial statements.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

As at 30
June 2019
£000
Assets
Non-current asscés
Investurents in financial assets 5,720
Lending to financial institutions and advances 6,105
11,825
Current assets
Lending to financial institutions and advances 5,188
Cash and cash equivalents 3,882
9,070
Total assels 20,895
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 639
Deposits and other accounts 8,639
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings 10,718
Total linbilities 20,016
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Notes (continned)

21, Goodwill

Total

£000
Cost
At | July 2057 232,336
Exchange differcices (23,524)
AL30 June 2018 208,812
Exchange differences (28,627)
At 30 June 2019 180,185
Acenmunlated impairment charge
At July 2017 26,042
Impairment for the year 10,055
Exchange differences (772)
At 30 June 2018 35,325
Impairment for the year 3,258
Exchange differences (109)
At 30 June 2019 38,474
Net book valne
At 30 June 2019 141,711
At 30 June 20138 173 487

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is aliccated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units (CGUs), or group
of units that are expected to benefit from that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated
as follows:

Goodwill by cash genevating units 2019 2018
£000 EQOO

Pharmacy 31,757 40,397
Wholesale 12,055 12,055
Cement 61,499 81,763
Banking 30,400 39,272
141,711 173,487

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are fndicators that goodwill might be impaired.
The need to recognise any impairment charges is assessed by comparing the carrying value to the recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the value in use or the fair value less cost to sell of each cash generating unit with any
inypairmeni charge recognised in the administrative oxpenses in the income statement.

As part of the annual impairment exercise, the Diroctors have also condueted a sensitivity analysis taking mto
consideration the impact of reasonably possible changes in key assumptions in the value in use or fair value less cost to
sell caloulations.

Pharmacy Goodwill

The recoverable amount of the pharmacy cash generating units have been assessed with reference to their valie in use
calculations using a discounted cash flow madel.
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Notes (continuer)
21. Goodwill {centinued)

In addition to the budgoeted EBITDA figures key assumptions used in these calculations are shown below:

2019 2018
Period on which management approved forecasts are based S yoars 5 years
Growth rate applied beyond approved forecast pericd 2% 2%
Discount rate 9.3% 8.1%

The growth rates used in value in use calenlation reflect the average industry growth expected. The disconnt rates used have
declined year on year due to current market conditions. In calculating this value, management have used budgeted EBITDA.
Budgeted EBITDA was based on expectations of future outcomes considering past experience, adjusted for anticipated revenue
growth,

In caleulating any impairment provision, the Gronp makes an estimate of the expected retum for each cash generating unit
comparison to the goodwill and intangibles of that cash generating unit. Any fnspairment is first applied to goodwill and then
the relaled licenses. A goodwill impairment charge of £2.6m (2018: £0.4mn) was recognised within administrative expenses.
A rcasonably possible change in assumptions for goodwill in the pharmacy business would lead to a further impairment.

Wholesale Goodwiti

The total goodwill attributable to the wholesale business as at June 2019 is £i2.1m. Of the total gaodwill value £5.11n relates
to sequisition of five depots located in Scotland, with the balance of £7m relating to Batley’s Limited.

Goodwill velating to depots:
The Directors have calculated the recoverable amount of these cash generating units with reference to their value in use.

The key assumptions other than the forecast EBITDA used in the value in use caleulations are:

2019 2018
Period on which management approved forecasts are based 5 years 5 years
Grewth rate applied beyond approved forecast period nil nil
Discount rate f A% 6.0%

Goodwill relating to Barley's Linsited

The Directors have caleulated the recoverable amount of Batley's Limited with reference to a fair value less cost to sell
approach based on jts net assels. Using this approach, the recoverable amount was in excess of the carrying value of this cash
generating unit.

A roasonably possible change in assumptions for goodwill in the Wholesale business would not lead to an impairment.
Cement Goodwill

The goodwil] atiributable 1o the cement business as a1 30 Jupne 2019 is £61.5 million (2018: £81.8 million.) and relates to the
acquisition of Pakeem Limited and Mustehkam Cement Limited,

The recovernble amount of this goodwill is assessed for impainnent annually using a fair value less cost to scll appreach, The
calculation methodology takes aceount of an Enterprise Value lo EBITDA muliiple derived from the financial information of
similar sized cement businesses and an estimate of cost to sell of 5% of the Enterprise Value to cover professional, legal costs
and taxes,

The rocoverable amonnt for the Cement business wsing this method is in excess of the carrying value of the CGU and any
reasonably possible change in assumptions for group goodwill in the cement business would not lead to an impairment.

Donking Goodwill
Tho goodwifl amount of £30.4 million (2018: £39.3 million) relates to the Group’s controlling stake in United Bauk Limited.

For the banking business, the rccoverable amount has been derived using a fair value less cost to sefl methodology based on
its listed share price adjusted for a coutrol premium and an estimate of the cost to sell of 5% to cover professional, legal costs
and taxes. These assumplions are based on previous comparable fransactions.

A reasonably possible change in assumptions for goodwill in the banking business would not lead to an impairment.

59




Notes (continued)
22. Acquisition of subsidiary

Aequisitions in the prior period

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statemments
For the year ended 30 June 2019

In the prior year, on 7 April 2018, Bestway Retail Limited, a wholly owned (indirect) subsidiary of Bestway Group Limiled,
acquired the assets and Habilities from Bargain Booxze Limited, Conviviality Retail Logistics Limited and Wine Rack Liniited
(see the prior year's financial statements for further details) resulting in a one-off gain on acquisition recognised in Income
Statement. At the date of acquisition, the net assets acquired were estimated 1o have a provisional fair value of £27.9 mitlion
and the Directors had one year to finalise their assessment. A detailed exercise to reassess Lhe fair values was performed during
the year which resulted in & number of revisions to the provisional figures with the Dircctors cencluding that the final fair
values of the net assots acquired was £14.7 million. Details of the adjustments made ta {inalisc the feir value exercise for this

acquisition are given below,

Intangible assets i
Praperty, plant and equipment i
Laventories i
Cash and cash equivalents iy
Trade and other payables W
Provisions (more than one year) vi
Defoered Tax vif

Total fair values of identifiable assets
Cash consideration
Gain on aqgusition

Provisional Fair value Final fair

fair values Adjustment values
£000 £'000 £0060
10,848 (4,733) 6,093
13,618 (8.862) 4756
15,765 (1,544 14,221
619 234 853
(5473) (182) (5,655)
(3,870) U7 (@.041)
(3,642) 2,076 (1,566
27865 (13.204) 14,661
7,505 - 7.505
20360 (13,204) 7,156

lit eccordaice witlt IFRS 3 the Directors have restated the financial statements for the vear ended 30 June 2618, See note 50

for further details,

23. Other intangible assets

Trading Group

Cost

At 1 July 2017

Acquisitions through business combinations (restated)
Additions developed internally
Additions purchased externally
Exchange difference

At30 Junc 2018 (restated)
Additions develaped intemally
Additions purchased extemnally
Disposals

Exchange difference

At 30 June 2019

Amartisation and impairnment
At 1 July 2017

Impairment

Charge for the year

Exchange differences

At30 June2018

Impaitment

Charge for the year

Disposals

Exchange differences

At 30 June 2019
Net book value

At30June 2019
At 30 Juie 2018 (restated)

Other

infangible
Licences Software assets ‘T'otal
£000 £000 £000 £000
563,271 537 - 563,808
- - 6,093 6,093
- - 3467 367
£,500 2 - 1,502
{82y - (&2
564,771 457 6,460 571,688
559 4,755 5314
1,045 4 719 1,768
(1,407 - - (L407)
_ (191) - (191)
564,409 829 11,934 577,172
99,014 351 - 99,365
1,123 - - 1,123
38,7714 94 172 39,040
- (6D - (@Y
138,911 384 172 139,467
95 - - 95
37,781 69 821 38,671
(1,05 - - (1,050
- 98) - {98)
175,736 355 993 177,084
388,673 474 10,94F 400,088
425,860 73 6,288 432221

See note 50 for jnformation regarding assets acquired through business combinations and details of the restatement.
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Notes (continued)

23. Other intangible assets {continned)

As per note 50 the numbers above have been restated for the Bestway Retail Limited acquisition. The key change is on the
“gain on acquisition’ which was reported in the 30 June 2018 financial statements as £10.8 million and has now been restated
to £6.1 million, which is & change of £4.8 million in the fajr value of intangible assets acquired.

Licences

The pharmacy business requires licenses from relevant suthorities in order to operate.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of licences cxceeds their recoverable amount. The carrying
amount of licences is reviewed al each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
suich indicafion exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. Any impairment (osses are recognised in the income statement
within administrative expenses. :

Other tntangible assels

Other intangibles comprise of acquired brands (which are amortised over the useful economic life between 5 and 10 yoars) and
software costs and capitalised project costs (both of which are amortised over 4 yoars).

Banling Group Software
£000
Cost
At 1 July 2017 17,944
Additions 6,886
Disposals 3. 721)
Exchange difference (4,950)
At 30 June 2018 16,149
Additions 31,614
Exchange difference {5,990
At 30 June 2018 13,773
Amortisation and impairment
At July 2017 10,450
Charge for the year 3,805
Disposals (3.633)
Exchange differences (3.648)
At30 June 2018 6,974
Charge for the year 3,509
Exchange differences 4,155)
At 30 Jure 2019 6,328
Net book valie
At 30 June 2019 L )
At 30 June 2018 9,175
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24, Property, plant and equipment

Trading Group Fixtuves, Assets in

Land and Plant and fittings and Motor  course of

buildings machinery equipmentvehicles construction Total

£000 £0600 £8600 L0000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation
At 1 uly 2017 376,496 380,973 115,293 13,707 17,140 903,609
Additions 9,949 18,530 17317 7446 71,857 125,099
Acquired in business combination (restated) 2,046 408 2,123 55 - 4,632
Disposals 4 (3.811) (203) (2,112) - (6,130)
Exchange difference (15872) (51,533) (392) (672) (2.195) (70,664
Transfers 27,989 49,616 21 183 (77,809) -
At 30 June 2618 400,604 394,183 134,159 18,607 8,993 956,546
Additions 2,540 7,015 18,971 1,002 17,236 46,764
Disposals (675) {1,642y (1,433) (1,959) - {5,709
Exchenge difference (23819)  (76,685) (646)  (983) (LL113) (103,246)
Trausfers 7,193 16,154 i -~ (23,458) -
At 30 June 2019 385,843 339,625 151,162 16,667 1,658 894,355
Depreciation
At i July 2017 66,768 119,524 55,885 8,3l4 - 250,49]
Churged in year (restated) 8,205 13,623 16,933 3,737 - 42,498
Disposals - (1,506) 62) (1,269) - 2,847
Exchange difference (3,018)  (I1L,158) (195)  (242) - (14613)
At 30 Junc 2018 : 71,955 120,473 72,561 10,540 - 275,529
Charged in year 8,797 15,049 18,883 2,957 - 45,686
Disposals (64) (£51) (896) (1,384) . (2495)
Exchange difference (4,722) (19443) (280 (420) - (24,855
At 30 June 2019 75,966 115,928 90,268 11,693 - 293,855
Net bool: value
At 30 June 2019 309,877 223,097 60,894 4,974 1,658 _ 600,500
At 30 June 2018 (restated} 328,649 273,710 61,598 8,067 8,893 681,017

Sce note 50 for information regarding assets aocquired throngh business combinations and details of the restatement.
Property, plant and equipment under construefion

The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the period was £292,000 (2018: £279,000) with a capitalisation rate o 7.03%
(2018: 6,35%).

Asscts pledged as security

Freehold fand and buildings with a carrying amount of £259.5 million (2018 restated: £264.0 million) have been pledged to
secure borrowings of the Group. The Group is prohibited from pledging these assots as security for other borrowings and is
restricted with 1espect to disposing of them.
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24, Praperty, plant and equipment {continued)
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Banking Group
Tixtures,
fittings Assets in
Land and Plant and and  Motor  course of
buitdings machinery equiprment vehicles conséruction Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation
ALl July 2017 244 425 6,005 73,699 3,602 24,643 352,374
Additions 23,031 145 18,129 495 - 41,800
Disposals (55) (1,260) (10,748) (938) (9,055) (22,056)
Revaluations 37,263 - - - - 37263
Exchange differcnce 40,652)  (1,012) (14,599) (653} (2,951) (59,867
At 30 June 2018 264,012 3,878 66,481 2,506 12,637 349,514
Additions 2,419 2,627 8,522 445 2,728 23,741
Disposals (334)  (2,046) (1,911) (715 (5,233) (10,239}
Revaluations (230} (230)
Exchange difference (59,368)  (L.251)  (20,132)  (768) (1.868) (83,385)
At 30 June 2019 213,498 3,208 52,960 1,468 8,266 279,401
Depreciation
At 1 July 2017 7,222 1,524 30,936 932 - 40,614
Charged in year 4,301 1,322 10,888 606 - 17,417
Disposals (20) (824) (9,949)  (641) - (hL,434)
Exchange difference (5,621) 472 (8,807) 273) - (15,173)
At 30 June 2018 5,882 1,550 23,068 624 - 31,124
Charged in year 4,507 1,107 8,632 407 - 14,653
Disposals (228) (1,722 (1,563)  (462) - {3975
Exchange difference (3,587) (555 (11,014} (478) - (15,632)
At 30 June 2019 5,574 380 19,123 93 - 26,170
Net book value
At 30 June 2019 206,925 2,828 33,837 1,375 8,266 253,231
At30 June 2018 258,130 2,328 43,413 1,882 12,637 318,390

The majority of properties of the Banking Group have been revalued by independent professional valuers as at 31 Decomber
2018. The revaluation was camied out on the basis of professional asscssment of present markel values. The accumulated
surplus arising against the revaluation of fixed assets as at 30 June 2019 amouats to £126.3 million (2018: £169.9 million).
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24. Property, plant and equipment (continucd)

Bestway Group Limited
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Had therc been no revaluation, the carrying amount of revalued assets would have been as follows:

Banlking Group

Freehold land

Leasehold land

Buildings on frechold land
Buildings on leasehold land

Buildings ort leasehold land

Frechold fand

Leasehold land

Buildings on freehold land
Buildings on leasehold land

Buildings on leasehold land

25. Investinent properfy

Trading Group

Cost or valuation
Al July 2017
Additions

Disposals

Exchange difference
Revaluation

At 30 Junc 2018
Addilions

Exchange difference
Revaluation

At 30 June 2019

Net book vallie

At 30 June 2019

At 30 June 2018

The investment property in Pakistan is held by the cement business.

Accumulated Net book
Cost  depreciation value
2019 2019 201%
£000 £000 £000
3,768 - 3,768
17,070 553 16,517
17,799 987 16,812
23,434 1,541 21,893
62,071 3,081 58,990
Accamulated  Net book
Cost  depreciation value
2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000
4,638 - 4,638
19.216 g8 19,208
8,971 799 8,172
27,182 789 26,393
60,007 1,596  S84IL
United

Kingdom Pakistan Total
£000 £000 £000
113,149 1,838 114,987

38 - 38

{4,520) - (4.520)

- sy (@81

4,342 46 4,388
113,009 1,603 114,612

40 - 40

- (363)  (363)

2,130 23 2,153
115,179 1,263 116442

__ 115,179 1,263 116,442
113,609 1,663 1i4,612

Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is recognised as other gains and losses in the consolidated income statement.
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23. Investment property (continued)
Investment propetiies located in the United Kingdom

For the investment properties located in the United Kingdom. the last full, formal exteral valuation was petformed dwring the
year ended 30 June 2015, An investment property fair value exercise was vndertaken in the years to 30 June 2018 and 2019,
based on desktop valnalions performed by Jones Lang LaSalle, an extornal, independent valver, having on appropriate
recogniscd professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and class of propesty being valued.

The deskiop valuations, which are supported by market evidence, are propared by considering the aggregate of the net annual
rents receivable from the properties and where relevant, associated costs. A yicld which reffects the specific risks inherent in
the net cash flows is thon applied to the net annual reatals to arrive al the property valuation.

The UK Trading Group has pledged £115.2 million (2018: £113.0 million) of its investment property o secure domsstic
banking facilitics granted to the Trading Group (see noic 36).

Tuvestment propertics located in Pakistan

The investiment properly is & portion of the cement business's head office building in Islamabad held for letting. An independent
oxercise was cattied out to defermine the fair value of investment property. To assess the land and building prices, a market
survey was cartied out in the vicinity of the investment property. Fair value of the investment property is based on independent
valuer's judgment sbout average prices prevalent on the aforementioned date and has been prepared on openly
available/provided information afier making relevant inquiries from the market, Valuation was carried out by an independent
valuer who holds a recognised and relevan! professional gualification and has recenl exporience in the location and category
of the investment property being valued,

Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is recognised as other gains and losses in the consolidated income staterient.
Disclosures for the Trading group’s investment properties are given below:
Fair value as at 30 June 2019 Levell Level2 Level3

£000 £000 £000
Commercial property wnits:

Located in the United Kingdom - - 115,179
Located in Pakistan - - 1,263
- - 116442
Fair value as at 30 June 2018 Level | Level2 Level 3
£000 £000 £000

Commergial property units:
Located in the United Kingdom - - 113,009
Located in Pakistan - - 1,603
- - 114,612

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements: Level | — Fair value measnrements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities; Level 2 — Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are
observable for the assets or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indireetly (i.e. derived from prices);, Level 3 — Fair value
measurements using input for the asset or liability that are nat based on observable market data (i.c. unobservable inputs), The
significant unobservable inputs used by the UK Trading Group is market rate per month £4-£55 per square fool (teitable).

Property valuations are inherently subjective as they are made based on assumptions miade by the vajuer. For these reasons we
have classified the valuations of investment property portfolio as level 3 as defined by IFRS 13 and note they could be subject

to material change,

There were no teansfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the year.
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25. Investment property (continued)

Banking Group Total
£008
Cost or valuation
At 30 June 2017 19,634
Additions 3479
Disposals (2,183)
Revaluation 541
Exchange differences (2,017
At 30 June 2018 19,454
Additions 477
Disposals (1,572)
Revaluation ‘ ,398
Exchange difforences (3,838)
At 30 Junc 2019 15,919
Net book value
At 30 June 2019 15,919
AL30 June 2018 19,454

The latest extemnal valuations of investment properties of the Banking Greup were performed by varions independent
professional veivers during year, having appropriate recoguised professional qualifications and recent experience in the
location and category of the properties being valued.

The fair value of the invostment property of UBL UK was based on & markel-based desktop valuation conducted in December
2018. The deskiop valuation was based on an analysis of rentsl yields and sales values of similar properties and locations. It
was concluded that thore have not been significant property market value movements since Jast valuations,

‘Fhe Bank values its investment property at fair value as per the requirements of IFRS 13 - "Fair Value Measurement”.

For the fair value measurement of mvestment properties, unobservable inputs are used by the valuers engaged by the Group.
Unobservable inputs are used to measure fair valie to the extent that relovant observable inputs are not available, thereby
allowing for situations in which thero is little, if any, markel aetivity for the asset at the measurement date. Therefore, tie
nvestment properties are classified under lovel 3 hicrarchy of fair value measnrement under IFRS 13 and note they could be
subject to material change,

Land, buildings and non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are revalued on a periadic basis using professiona]
valuers. The valuation is based on their assessmont of the market value of the assets. The effect of changes in the unabservable
inputs used in the valuations cannot be determined with certainty. Accordingly, a qualitative disclosure of sensitivity has not
been presented in these consolidated financial slatements.

Any gain or foss arising from a change in fair value is recognised as ather gains and losses in the income statement.
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Notes (continued)
26. Related undertalkings

The Gronp consists of a parent Company, Bestway Group Limited, incorporated in the UK, and several subsidiaries held
directly and indirectly by Bestway Group Limited. Details of the interests in subsidiaries are set out below:

UK Company Registercd Class of shares  Ownership %
number olfice held 2019 2018
Directly held subsidiaries
Bestway (Holdings) Limited (direct) 01392861 B Ordinary 100 160
Indirectly held subsidiaries
Trading Group

Bestway Securities Limited 09106250 B Ovdinary 160 100
Bestway Northern Holdings Limited NA T Ovdinary 104 100
Bestway Cement Limited NA N Ovdinary 54.5 54.5
Bestway Power Limited NA N Ordinary 100 100
Bestway Spinning Limited NA N Ordinary 100 100
Bestway UK HoldCo Limited 09106288 B Ordinary 100 100
Oalkdeafl Limited! NA T Ovdinary 100 100
Bestway Northern Lirited 02675585 B Oypdinary 100 100
Bestway Limited! 02596168 B Ordinary 100 100
Bestway Panacea Holdings Limited 09225479 A Ordinary 100 100
Bestway Wholesale Limited 01207120 B Ordinary 100 10
Palmbest Limited 02548785 B Ordinary 100 100
Batleys Properties Limited 0170416 B Ordinary 100 100
MAP Trading Limited 01826942 B Ordinary 100 100
Euroimpex (U.K.) Limited! 01584125 B Ouvdinary 100 100
Batleys Limited’ 0675326 B Ordinary 100 100
Bestway Retail Limited 04103203 B Ovdinary 100 100
Arxdiles Bideo Limited! 10449694 U Ordinary 100 100
KMD Enterprises Limited 04314857 u Ordinary 100 100
Xcel Retail Limited! 09121924 U Ordinary 100 100
Bestway Phacrmacy NDC Limited? 01050265 A Ordinary 100 100
Donald Wardle and Son?” 02914910 A Ordinary 106 109
Opus Pharmacenticals Limited*” 05888155 A Ordinary 100 100
Bestway Panacea Healtheare Limited? 09225514 A Ordinary 100 100
Bestway National Chemists Limited? 09225457 A Ordinary 100 100
Portslade Medica! Supplies Limited? 01663067 A Ordinavy 100 100
FA Parkinson (Chemists) Limited? ) SC038900 I Ordinary 100 100
Parkinson (Paisley) Limited"? 5C204178 1 Ordinary 100 100
Bestway Belfast Chemists Limited*? N1626625 J Ordinarvy 100 100
Ebbw Vale Consortium Limited'4? 01338409 A Ordinary 100 100
Care4U Pharmacy Limited*? 03983332 A Ordinary 100 100
Bhilliestan Health Centre Pharmacy Limited® SCo86281 \'4 Ordinary 0 36
Ideal Healthcare Limited? 03443725 A Ordinary 100 140
Pills Limited! SC271830 1 Ocdinary 100 100
RLJ Consultancy Limited' 03283312 A Ordinary 100 100
CC8 (West Street) Limited'’ 06149560 A Ordinary 0 100
G Lightfoot & Son Limited! 0626296 A Ordinary 109 100
Crown linperial Associates Limited™ 03262921 A Ouvdinary 0 100
Crewe Complets Solution Limited's 05765407 4 Ordinary 0 100
Keighley Heatth Centre Limited 01263903 G Ordinary 100 33
Thomas Hetherington Limited'? SC095304 T Ordinary 1] 100
P.H.C Pharmacy Limited® SC115847 D Ordinary 67 67
Cannen §t, (HCC) Limited*? 01659041 C Ordinary ¢ 59
P Williams Chemists (Chester) Limited!? 03210568 A Ordinary 0 100
Three Swans Pharmacy Limited? 06975508 A Ordinary 100 50
Victoria Pharmacy Limited 01933847 F Ordinary 25 25
Victoria Pharmacy Limited 01933847 ¥ A 43 43
Penrith Health Centre (PD) Consortinm Limited® 01775075 E Ordinary 100 50
Penrith Health Centre (PD) Consortinm Limited™ 01775075 L A 0 77
Batleys Glasgow Limited! SC125819 B Ordinary 100 {00
Benson {Gracers) Limited® SC256747 B Ordinary 100 fo0
Bellevue Cash and Carry Limited! 8C046528 B Ordinary 100 100
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Notes (continued)

20. Related undertaldngs (continued)

UK Company Registered Class of shares

number office held Ownership %

Z019 2019
Indirecily held subsidiaries
Banking Group
United Bank Limited® NA L Ordinary 55.8 558
UBL Insurers Limited NA [0 Ordinary 79 79
United Bank AG Zurich® NA R Ordinary 55,8 558
United National Bank Limited® 4146820 M Ordinary 30.7 307
UBL Bank (Tanzania) Limited® NA Q Qvrdinary 55.8 558
United Excoutives & Trustees Company Limited® NA P Ordinary 55.8 558
UBL Find Managers Limited® NA 8 Ordinary 551 55.1
Al Ameeq Financial Services (Pvl.) Limited? NA S Ordinary 55.1 55.1

T Thesc eatities are donnant,
2Active; non-trading
‘Dissolved i the year

*These subsidiary undertakings pro cxempt fiom the Companies Acl 2006 requirements refnting to the audit of their individual sccounts by virtue
of Scolion 479A of the Act ns this Campany hag guaranteed the subsidimy company under Section 479C of the Acl.

*Dispased of during the year
¢ Aoquired 100% of the shargholding afier the year end.
These entities require financia! support from Bestvay Group Limited.

¥Thesc ealitics have 31 December year ends, in line with industry standards.

# This entily has effective ownership of 30.67% but is still considered a subsidiary. The immedisle parent company, United Bank Limited, has a
55% holding in this entity, and United Bank Eimited is o direct subsidinry of Bestway Holdings Limited as noted above. As a result, the Group can
excruise significant control over this entity and is thereforc vonsidered a subsidiary. All other entitics are considered subsidiaries due to effective
ownership of the ordinasy shares by this Company being greater than 50%.

The total liabilities of subsidiary undertakings exempt from the Companies Act 2006 andit requirements under Section 479C of
the Act, totals £60.2 million (2048 £70.3 miflion).

A~ Merchants Warchouse, Cagtle Street, Manchester, UK, M3 402

B- 2 Abbey Road, Park Royal, London, UK, NWi0 7BW

C- 64 Bumedge Lane, Grassoroft, Oldbam, OL4 4EB

D-  Citypoint 2 25 Tyndrum Street, Glasgow, Gd 0JY

E- 4 Mason Court Gillan Way, Penrith 40 Business Park, Penrith, Cumbria, CALY 9GR
F-  The Health Centre, Viotorin Road, Hartjcpool, TS26 8DR3

G- 29 Devonshire Street, Keighley, West Yorkshire, BD21 2BH

H-  Unil 6, Ashbrook Office Park, Longstonc Road, Heald Green, Manohester, M22 5LB
I-  18-20 Main Street, Beith, Ayrshire, Scotland, KA1S 2AD

J- 70 Ballygomartin Road, Betfast, BT13 3NE

K- 20 Muirside Road, Baillicston, Glasgow, G69 7TAD

L-  13th Floor, UBL Building, Jinnal Avenue, Blue Area, Islaenabad, Pakistan

M- 2 Brook St, London W15 1BQ

M-  Bestway Building, 19-A, College Road, F-7 Markaz, Islamabad, Pakistan

0-  126.C, Jami Cotnmercial, Strect No. 14, Phase VII, DHA, Karachi, Pakistan

P-  Slalc Life BUILDING No, 1, LI Chundrigar Rond, Karachi, Pakistan

Q- 25 MKWEPU / Kaluta Stieet, P.O. BOX 5887, Dares Saliam, Tanzani, Tanzania,
R-  Uniled Bank AG (Zurich), Feldeggstrasse 55, P.O Box. No. 1176, 8034, Zuriol, Switzerland
s- 4th Floor, STSM Building, Beaumont Road, Civil Lincs, Karachi, Pekisten

T-  Nowport House, 15 The Grange, 5t Peters Pord, GY 1 201, Guernscy

U-  Waeslon Road, Crewe, Cheshire, England, CW1 6BP

V- 204 Polmadie Road, Hampden Park [ndustrial Estate, Glaspow, (42 OPH

68



Bestwiay Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annval report and tinancial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes (continued)

27, Investments in associates and equity accounted investees

The nature of the activities of the Group's associates is in banking, cnergy and pharmacy services. These are seen as
complementing the Group's aperations and contributing to achieving the Group's overall strategy. The Grougp has the {ollowing
indirect investmient in associates;

Registered Class of Effective
office  shares Ownership % Measurement Method  Carvying ninount

held 2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000

Banking Group
Khushhali Bank Limited'? W Ordinary 29.%7 207 Equity method 13,529 13,889
UBL Funds?® X Units NA NA, Equity method 842 9,385
afjg‘t‘;jj,““"d Exchange Company Y Ordinary - 250  Couity method - 419
DHA Cogen Limited®* Z Grdinary 210 210 Equity method - -

14,371 23,693

K lyshhali Bank Limited is a microfinance bank which is based in Islamabad, Pakistan.
This entity has a 3 | December year end, in line with indusiry standards.

3 This entity has been writlen down in previons financial years, therefore has a carrying value of nil as at 3G June 2019 (2018:
nil).

! The investmeni in UBL Funds is across various funds orginating from the Banking Group none of wihich the Group has
control over,

All of the above assaciates are accounted for using the equity method in these consalidated financial statements as set out in
the Group's accounting policies in note 3.

W - 55-C, 5th Floor, U-Fone Tower, Jinnal Avenue, Bluc Ares, Islamabad

X - 4tk Floor, STSM Building, Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi, Pakistan

Y - Said Rajab Building 39, 3727, Ruwi ITigh Street, Mezzanine Floor, Ruwi Area, 889, Musoat, Oman
Z - .35, Block~5 Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Summarised financlal information for assaciales

The Banking Group's investment in associates as at 30 June 2019 is analysed, in aggregate, in the befow tsble;

2019 2018

£000 £000

Carrying amount of interests in asscciales 14.371 23,693
Share of:

Profit from continuing operations 2,899 2,600

Totul comprehonsive income 2,895 2,600

Below is the analysis of financial performance and financial position of Group's material associate, Khushhali Bank Limited;

Khushhali Bank

Lirnited

2019 2018

£600 £000
Revenue 59,399 79,946
Profit before tax 25,106 18,074
Other comprehensive income 737 (165)
Current assets 308,899 342110
Net sssets 43,133 43 944
Carrying amount of interests in associates 13,529 13,889
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Notes (continued)

28. Inventories

Trading Group 2018
2019 (restated)
£000 £000

Consumables 26,539 47,530

Raw materials 2428 3,929

Work-it-progross 7,894 19,222

Finished goods — cement 2,632 3,958

Finished goods — UK trading 245,419 254,147

284,908 328,786

Details of the restatement are given in note 50.

The cost of inventories recognised as an expenso during the year in respect of continuing operations was £2,855.2 million
(2018: £2,542.9 niillion) before consideration of supplier rebates.

The cost of inventories recognised as an expeuse includes £1.3 million {2018: £2.7 million) in respect of write-downs of
imnventory to net realisable value,

Inventories with a carrying amount of £245 4 million (20181 £226.0 million} have been pledged as securily for cerfain of the
Trading Group's borrowings.
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Notes (continued)

24, Investments in financial assets

Banldng Group

Financial investments at fair value through OCI

Debt instruments

Market Treasury Bills

Pakistan Investment Bonds
Government of Pakistan Sukuk
Government of Pakistan Eurobonds
Term Finance Cerlificates

Foreign bonds

Equity instruments

Ordinary shares of vnlisted companies
Investiment in REIT

Mutual Fund

Financial investments at fair value theough Profit

and Loss

Debt instruments

Market Treasury Bills

Pakistan Investment Bonds

Sukuks

Preference shares

Term Finance Certificates

Equity mmstraments

Ordinary shares of listed companies- Initially
Designated at Fair value through profit and loss
Investment in REIT

Mutual Punds

Financial investments at amortised cost
Debt instruments

Market Treasury Bilis

Pakistan Investment Bonds
Govemment of Pakistan Enrobonds
Government of Pakistan Sukuk
Other Federal Governmont Securities
Term Finauce Certificates

Sukuk Bonds

Participation Term Certificates
Debentures

Foreign Bonds

Recovery Note

Deposit receipts

Letter of placement

Bai Muajal

Less: impairtent on inveslnents at amortised cost

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Anaugl report and financial statements
Far the year ended 30 June 2019

Non- Non-

Current current Total  Current  currenl Total
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £060 £000 £000 £000 E000

829,735 - 829,735 - - -

197,041 525,798 122,839 - - -
2,480 45,308 47,788 . - -
1,444 103,138 104,582 B - -
3,229 - 3,229 - - -

89,405 339,356 428,761 - - -
6,305 176 6,481 - - -
- 33 33 - - -

1,129,639 1,013,809 2,143,448 - - -

645,621 - 645,621 - - -
715 - 715 - . -

. 4,158 4,158 - - -

177 - 177 - - -

1,709 10,836 12,545 - - -

69,085 - 69,085 - - -
2,042 - 2,042 - - -
1,088 - 1,088 - . -

720,437 14,994 735431 - . .

15,534 - 15,534 - . -

464,782 689,243 1,154,025 - - -
8§17 50,635 51,452 - - -

- 3,989 3,989 - - .

3,796 15,119 18915 - - .
10,786 GB,867 79,653 . - .
2 . 2 - - .

11 - 11 . - .
5,961 86272 95,233 . . }
2,375 - 2,375 y . .
1,204 - 1,204 - - .
530 - 530 - - -
119,764 - 119,764 - . .
628,362 914,125 1,542,687 - - -
(12,910) - (12,910 - . .
§15,652 914,125 1,529,777 . . -

2,465,728 1,942,928 4,408,656 - - .
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29, Investients in financind asscts (continned)

Bestway Group Limited

Registored number 1 1003305

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Non- Non-
Current carrent Totrl  Current current Total
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £900 £600 £000 £000 £000
Available-for-sale investments cairied at fair value
Market Treasury Bills . - - 1,094,726 - 1,094,726
Pakistan Tnvestment Bonds - - - 298,206 791,914 1,090,120
Govemment of Pakistan Sularl - - - 03380 53,304 116,684
Govemment of Pakistan Burobonds - - - 25,132 87618 112,750
Ordinary shares of tsted companies - - - 130,782 227 131,009
Prefercnce shares - - - 2,656 - 2,656
Ordinary shares of unlisted companies - - - 4,685 - 4,685
Term Finance Certificates - - - 2,207 3,244 5,451
Units of mtual frnds:
Investment in REIT - - - 3,345 - 3,345
Foreign bonds - - - 92,299 311,039 403,338
Other bouds - - - - - .
- - - L717,418 1,247,346 2,964,764
Trading investments caryied af fair value
Market Treasury Bills - - - 2217351 - 221,351
Pakistan Investment Bonds - - - 15 - 15
Ordinary shares of listed companies - - - - - -
Term Finance Certificates - - - - - -
- - - 221366 - 221,366
Held-to-maturity investinents cavried at nmortised
cost
Market Treasury Bills - - - 35629 - 35629
Pakistan Investment Bonds - - - 436,128 1,347,634 1,783,762
Govemment of Pakistan Furcbonds - - - 77 40,924 41,701
Term Finance Certificates - - - 1,051 38,477 39,523
Suluk Bonds - - - 0,175 77,190 83,365
Participation Term Certificates - - - 3 - 3
Debentures - - - 14 - I4
Foreign Bonds - - - 9,150 140,752 149,502
Recovery Note - - - 303 2,027 2,330
CDC SAARC Fund - - - i - 1
Commercial paper - - - 1,413 - 1413
- - - 490,644 1,647,004 2,137,648
Impairment provision on investmests - - - (38,776) - (38,776)
2,465,728 1,942,928 4,408,656 2,390,652 2,894,350 5,285,002

Debt instruments measured at fair value through OCI

The table below shows the fair value of the Bank's debt instruments measured at FVOCI by credit risk, based on the Banking

Group’s intemal oredit rating system and year-end stage classification.

Internal rating grade Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£000 £008 £000 £000

Performing

Investinent grade 1,978,245 86,570 - 2,064,815

Non-iavestment grade - 61,600 - 61,000

Non-performing

Substandard - - - -

Doubtful - - - -

Loss . - - 5,940 5,940

Total 1,978,245 147,570 5,940 2,131,735

The table below shows the analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount in relation to debt insfruments classificd as fair

value through OCI,
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Notes {continued)

29, Investments in financial assets (continued)

An analysis of the corresponding ECLs is, as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£009 £000 £000 £000
LCL as at [ July 2018 (see note 44) 2,175 4,382 605 7,162
New assets originated or purchased 83 170 1,757 2,316
Assets derecognised or matured (excluding wrile-offs) (302) (1,491) - (1,793)
Transfer to Stage 2 (200) 200 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 - (252) 252 -
Lm;?ac( on year end ECL of exposures {ransferred between stages 200} 2 250 3
uring the year
Changes to contractual cashflows due to partial repayments aud
changes to estimates and assumptions used to caleuiate ECL ) 3,675 1,513 7,188
Foreign exchange adjustments 219 (44) (418) (243
As at 30 Junc 2019 S 1,975 8,940 3,709 14,624

The movements of ECL were primarily diiven by new purchases and scles,

Gains / losses recognised in the income statement an sale of debt instrument olassified under fair value through OCI are
disclosed in note 13.

Gains / losses on remeasurement of debt instrument classified under fair vatue through OCI are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Investments given as collateral by the Banking Group

As at 30 June 2019 Total
£000

Market Treasury Bills 301,348
Pakistan Investment Bonds 14,089
Govennment of Pakistan Evrobonds 9,995
Govemment of Pakistan Sukkui 5,474
331,306

Information about the methods and assumptions used in determining fair value is provided in note 44, and information about
the loss allowance recognised on debt investments at FVOCI is provided above,

Lquity instruments measured at fair vakue through OCI

Equity securities which are not held for trading, and which the group has irrevocably clected at initial recognition Lo recagnise
in this category. These are strategic investments and the Group considers this classification to be more relevant.

Equity investments at FVOCI comprise the following:

s . . As at 30
Ordinary shares of unlisted companies June 2019
£000

First Women Bank 102
N.IF.T 7
Passco 26
Swift (Belgium) 14
Techiogix Intemafional Limited 180
Cinepax Limiled 289
Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Co Limited 2,408
The Benefit Company B.S.C 16
3,042
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Notes {continued)

29. Investments in financial assets (cortinued)

Debt instruments measured at Fair value through profit and loss {FVPL)

[Debt investments recognise in this category are those that do not qualify for measurement at either amortised cost or FVOCL

Geins / josses recognised In income statement on debl instruments classificd under fair value through profit and loss arce
disclosed in nole 13.

Information about the methads and assuinptions used in determining fair value of debt instruments at fair value through profit
and loss is provided in note 44.

Investments given as collateral by the Bank

As af 30 June 2019 Total
£000
Marke! treasury bikls 234,424

Equity instruments measwred at fair value through profit and loss (IT'VIL)
The group classifies the following financial assets at fair value through profit or foss;

- equity investments that are held for trading and
- equity investments for which the entity has not elecied to recognise fair value gains and losses through OCI.

Gains / losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments classified under fair value through profit and loss are
disclosed in note 13.

Information about the methods and assumptions used in determining fair value of equity instmments at fair value through profit
and loss is provided in note 44.

Debt instruments measured at amortised cost
The table below shows the fair value of United Bank Limited's (which forms the significant portion of the Banking Group)

debt instruments measured at amortised cost by credit risk, based on UBL's internal credil rating system and year-end stage
classification,

Internal vating grade Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total
£000 £006 £000 £000
Performing
Investinent grade 1,475,255 475,108 - 1,516,363
Non-inveshnent grade - 21,422 - 21422
Past due but not impatred - - - -
Non-performing - - - -
Substandard - - - -
Doubttul - - - -
Lass ‘ - - 4,502 4,902
Taotal ) 1,475,255 62,530 4,902 1,542,687

The table below shows the analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount in relation to debt instruments classified as fair
value through OCI,
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29, Investments in financial assets (continved)

An analysis of the corresponding ECLs is, as follows:

Stagel Stage2 Stage3 Teotat
£000 £000 £600 £000
ECL as at 1 July 2018 1,026 2,022 11,268 14,316
New assets originated or purchased 14 2,066 “ 2,180
Asscts derecognised or malured (excluding write-offs) (210)  (1,209) (2,898) 4,317}
Transfer to Stage 1 94 &4y - -
impact on year end ECL of exposures transferred betwoen stapes 94 (94) - -
during the year
Changes to contractual cash flows due to partial repayments and
changes to estimates and assumptions used 1o calculate ECL. 4 1,802 “42 1764
Foreign exchange adjustments 17 29 (1,140) (1,034)
As at 30 June 2019 1,045 4,676 7,188 12,909

The group classifies its financial assets as at amortised cost only if both of the following criteria are met:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contraclual cash flows, and
- the contractal terns give rise to cash flows that arc solely payments of principal and interest.

Fair value of debt instruments classified at amortised cost is disclosed in note 13.

Information about the methods and assumptions used in determining fair value is provided in note 44 and information about
the loss allowance recognised on debt investiments a{ amortised cost is provided above.

30. Trade and other receivables

2019 2018

Trading Group £000 £000
Trade reccivables 168,627 163,216
Expected eredit losses (5,634) (3.491)
162,993 159,725

Amounts due from related parties 742 1,584
Prepayments and accrued income 48,981 42,402
Othor reccivables 36,438 54,548
249,154 258,259

Trade receivables
Wholesale and pharinacy businesses
Trade receivables disclosed above are classified as loans and receivables and are therefore measured at amortised cost.

The average credit period taken on sales of goods for our wholesale business is 30 days and 63 days for the OPD (Out Patients
Department) of our Pharmacy business. No interest is charged on the receivables balance, oxcept for pharmacy’s OPD
customers for late payment. OPD customers are customers served in Well Phanmacy branches held within hospitals, The
wholesale and pharmacy businesses will assoss debt using the simplified expected credit loss methodology in respect of trade
and other receivablos will be recorded and is assessed subsequently at each reporting period end and if there is a material
change in the credit risk lifetime ECL’s will be recorded, there was no material change in the credit risk of trade and other
reccivablos of the group at 30 June 2019. The debt apeing 90 days, or more are assessed by the wholesale and pharmacy
businesses and a provision is provided apainst the debt which is unlikely to b recovered in the next 12 months. To measure
the expected credit losses tmde receivables are grouped based on shared eredit sisk characteristics and days past due.
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30. Trade and other receivables (continued)
Cenent business

Trade receivables disclosed above are classified as loans and receivables and are therefore measured at amortised cost, All
balances are classified as current.

The average credit pericd taken on sales of goods for our cement business is 10 days. The business' exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainty by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the credit risk of
its customer base. The business has established a credit policy under which each new customer is assessed individually for
oreditworthiness before fhe business's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offercd. Sales jimits are
established for ¢ach customer and are reviewed on monthly basis. The business maiutains provision for doubttul debts that
represents its estimate of probable losses in respect of wade debts.

Trading Group
Belore setting up & new customer accatint on credit, the Trading Group assesses the potentiul custoner's credit quality.

The aging of trade receivables at the balance sheet date was:

Gross Impairment Gross Iinpatrment

2019 2019 2018 2018

£000 £009 £000 £00D

Not past due 152,557 - 151,569 -
0-30 days past due 1,807 167 1,907 -
31-60 days past due 3,761 60 4,139 235
More than 61 days past duc 10,562 5,407 5,601 3,256
168,627 5,634 163,216 3491

Movement 10 expected credit losses:

2019 2018

£000 £000

Balance at the beginning of the period 3,491 2,990
Impairment losses recognised 1,572 710
Provision for uncoliectable debis 749 -
Impairment losses reversed {178) 209
Balance at the end of the year 5,634 3,491

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited duc to
the customer base being large and unrelated.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables is approximately equal to their fair value,

All trade and other receivables for the Trading Group are current and expected to be recovered within 12 months. Other
receivables are held at amortised cost as the objective is to collect the contractual cash flow which are solely the pringipal
balanice and related inferest,

2019 2018

Banking Group £000 £000
Other receivables recognised as financial assets 202,816 241,373
Other reccivables 22,787 34,831
Emgloyee besietits - 865
Insurance recsivable 6,637 7,842
Prepayments und accrued income 24,357 22359
Other assets - net of provisiens 256,597 307,270
Provision held against other assets (7,840) (7.297)
248,757 209973

Provision held against other assets include £0.4 million because of ECL allowance on acceptances as at 30 June 2019,
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31. Lending to financial institutions and advances

Bestway Group [.imiled

Registered number § 1003305

Annual report and financial statements
Far the year ended 30 June 2019

Banking Group Current Non-current Total Current  Non-current Tatal
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Lending to financial institutions

Call money lending 17,382 - 17,382 110,406 - 119,406

Repurchase agrecmeont fending 61,626 - 61,626 33,319 - 33,319

Bai Musjjal receivable from financial 19,390 ) 19,390 } } )

mshtutions

Other lending to financial instjitutions - 10,534 10,534 76,123 58,379 134,502

Provision against lending to financial

institutions s) - (25} (5,682) - (5,682)

98,373 10,534 108,907 214,166 58,379 272,345

Advances

Loans, cash credits, anning finances, etc. 1,843,805 1,621,594 3465399 2,336,910 2,055,633 4,392,543

Bills discounted and purchased 230,870 83,575 314,445 429,370 108,899 538,269

Provision against advances (408,935) - (408,935)  {332,781) - (332,780

1,665,740 1,705,169 3,370,909 2,433,499 2,164,532 4,598,031
1,764,113 1,715,703 3,479,816 2,647,665 2,222911 4,870,576

Details of impairinent losses on lending fo financinl instifufions and advaices subject 1o iiypairment assessnent

Qutstanding exposure as at 36 June 2019

The table below shows the carrying value of the Bank’s lending 1o financial institutions and advances measured at amortised
cost by credit risk, based on the Bank's internal credit rating system and year-end stage classification.

Internal rating grade (Corporate)

Performing

Corporate

High grade

Medium grade

Low grade

Past due but nat impaired

Retail
Nol yet due
Past due but ot impaired

Overseas Branches

Non-performing (Corporate and Retail)
OAEM

Substandard

Doubtful

Loss

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
885,396 52,723 .- 938,119
962,965 242,630 - 1,205,595
182,423 301,317 - 483,740
512,823 114,890 - 627,719
185,121 9,147 - 194,268
19,204 21,029 - 40,233

- - 35,850 35,850

. . 23,614 23,614

- - 339,639 339,639
2,747,932 741,742 399,103 3,888,777
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31. Lending to financial institutions and advances (continued)

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amouni and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to consumer lending
are, s fotlaws:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Gross carrying amount as at 1 July 2018 3,970,502 843,261 394,976 5,209,039
New assets purchased or originated 1,300,644 - - 1,380,644
Payments and assets derecagnised (excluding write-ofls) (1,270,761 (307,268) (43,345) (1,621,380)
Transfers to Stage | 71,615 (71,209 (406) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (462,383) 462,429 46) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (31,378) {340,370) 377,148 -
Changes to contractuai cashflows duc to partial repayment (428,146} 50,850 377,296 -
Changes to estimates and assumptions used to calenlate ECILL (154,113) 233,955  (280,606) (200,764}
Accrued Interest - - 2,235 2,235
Amount writlen off (7,282) - (14,898) (22,180)
Foreign exchange adjustments (663,206) (79,056) (36,555) (778,817
As 30 June 2012 2,747,932 141,742 399,103 3,888,177
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
ECL allowance as at 1 July 2018 undes JFRS 9 31,636 70,285 340,741 442,662
New assets purchased or eriginaled 59,657 - - 59,657
Payments and assets derccognised (excluding write-offs) {10,772) (14,952) (34,065) (59,789
Transfers to Stage 1 2,103 {1,778) (325) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (17,482) 17,528 6) -
Tronsfers to Stage 3 (38.734) (3,50 42,235 .
{mpast on year end ECL of exposures transferred between (54,113) 12,249 41,864 )
stages during the year
Unwind of discount as a reduction of inferest income - - 2,234 2,234
(.,lmnges t-o cotTtraclllfil. cashflows due to modifications not (1.674) (6,553) 10,224 (4.003)
resulting in derecognition ‘
Changc; fo estithates al_ld assumptions vsed for ECL ; . 19,409 19,409
caleulations note 44 (Finangial instruments)
Amounts written off - B (14,906} (14,906)
loroign exchange adjustment (4.097) (8,865) (23,342) (36,304)
As 3 Junc 2019 14,637 52,164 342,159 408,260
32. Cash and cash equivalents
Trading
Trading Hanking Group Baniding Total
Group Group Total  (restated) Group  (restated)
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and cash equivaleats 154,181 1,337,440 1,491,621 170,121 1,229 870 1,399.5891
Bank overdrafts (107,148) (2,085)  (109,233)  (140,649) (6,201) (146,850)
47,033 1,335,355 1,382,388 29472 1,223,669 1,253,141

Details of the restatement are given in note 50.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and shor-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, net
of outstanding bank uverdrafts. The carrying amount of these assets are equal fo their fair value.
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Notes (continued)

33. Trade and other payables

Trade payables

Workers welfare fund payable

Other banking group payables
Agceptances

Insurance payables

Other taxation and social security costs
Asrnounts due to related parties

Other payables and accruals

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and Anancial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Banking
Trading Banking Trading Group Totat
Group Group Total Group  {restated)  {restated)
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
416,297 15,456 431,753 484,327 - 484,327
- 16,946 16,946 - 18,168 18,168
- 99,001 99,001 - 15,258 15,258
- 128,864 128,864 - 212,738 212,738
- 2,234 2,234 - 2,671 2,671
7.841 - 7.841 3,896 - 3.896
167 - 167 51 - 51
116,899 1,029 117,928 94,490 38,244 132,734
541,204 263,530 804,734 582,764 287,079 869,843

Details of the restatement are given innote 50,

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are considered 1o be the same as their fair vaiucs due to their short-term
nalure. Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and on-going costs. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all paysbles are paid within the pre-agroed credit terms.
The Directors consider that the carrying amoont of trade payables approximates their fair value. Trade and other payables in
both current and prior year are current and expected to be paid within 12 months.

34. Other finaneial liabilities

Banking Group

Provision against oft balance sheet abligations
Deferved income
Dreferved liabilities

Off balance sheet obligations
Qutstanding exposure as at 30 June 2019

Direct credit substitates
High grade

Medium grade

Low grade

Transaction-related contingent liabilities
High grade

Medium grade

Low grade

Trade-velnted confingent linbilities
High grade

Medium grade

Low grade

Total as at 30 June 2019

2019 2018

£000 £000

2,576 4,461

10,037 10,910

8,541 10,830

21,154 26,20]

Stagei Stagel Stage 3 Total
£600 £000 £000 £000
73,910 87 - 73,997
228,531 79,936 3,345 311,812
548 4,927 - 5475
312,789 13,602 - 326,391
75,845 1,078 - 76,923
86479 34,930 - 121409
753,350 2,240 - 755,590
112,273 2,562 - 114,835
335 4,044 - 4,399
1,644,080 143,406 3,345 1,790,831
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34. Other financial liabilities (conrinved)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL aflowances is as folfows:

Stagel Stage2 Stage3 T'otal
£000 £000 £000 £000
Gross carrying amount as at | Fuly 2018 1,907 4,566 234 6,707
New assets purchased or originated 423 376 - 799
Payments and assets derecognised (excluding write-ofls) 490y  (3415) - (3,905)
Transfers to Stage | 3 (32) - (29)
Transfers to Stage 2 (243 7 - (n
Transfers to Stage 3 - (2} 2 -
(¢3)] 27 2 (46
Changes to contractual cashflows due to parlial repayment and (438) {93) - (335
changes to estimates and assumptions used to calculate ECL
Foreign exchange adjustments 230 {222) 5 {448)
As 30 June 2019 1,150 1,185 241 2,576
35. Deposits and other accounts
Banking Group Current Non-current Total Current  Non-current Total
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £006 £000 £000 £000 £000
Customers ‘
Fixed deposits - temunerative 1,408,361 299,528 1,707,889 1,506,171 535,504 2,041,675
Savings deposils - remuncrative 2,239,586 - 2,239,586 2,563,291 - 2,563,291
Sundry deposits - remunerative 91,400 249 921,420 245,651 181 245,832
Margin deposits - rethunerative 33,091 145 33,236 54,493 143 54,636
Current accounts - remunerative 50,258 - - 50,258 43,429 - 43,429
Current accounts - nop-remuncrative 2,956,513 - 2,956,513 3,379,841 - 3,379,841
Financisl Institutions
Remunerative deposits 201,808 - 201,808 218,259 - 218,259
Non-remunerative deposits 101,542 - 101,542 136,899 - 136,899
Interest payable 26,549 - 26,549 57,265 - 57,265
7,169,108 299,693 7,408,801 8,205,299 535,828 8,741,127

Deposits include reimunerativo and nen-remunerative deposits, Non-remunerative deposits are non-interest bearing whereas
the remunerative deposits are of saving or (erim nature with interest component.
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Notes (continued)

36. Other interest-bearing loans and borrewings

Trading Group 2019 2018
£000 £000
Current linbilities
Secured bank loans 111,463 91,658
111,463 91,658
Nati-current Habitities
Preference shares classified as debt 58,178 58,178
Sccured bank loans £76,786 275,141
234,964 333,319
Total loans and borrowings 346,367 424,977

Preference shares classified as debt
The cumulative preference shares have been classified as non-carrent liabilitiss as they are redeemable in greater than a year.

316,000 of cumulative preference shares with a par value of £1 each, are redeemable 10 years from the initial date of issue and
accrue dividends at 8% and 10%. In both the current and prior year, the dividend has been waived, consequently no charge
has been recognised in the income statement. Holders of cumulative preforence shares are entitled to priority over other
sharehiolders it receipt of their 8% and 10% preference dividends or o share redemption ou distribution of assets in a winding
up. Holders are not entitied to attend or vote at general meefings of the issuing company except where there is default in
respect of, or proposed resolutions ta madify, their rights. Preference shascholder consent is required for the issue of new or
additional preference shares and modifications 1o the Directors' barrowing powers under the Arlicles of Association.

57,662,428 cumulative preference shares with a par value of £1 sach and a coupon rale of 6%, with interest being paid quarterly,
are redeemable 10 years from the initial date of issue being 4 April 2017, Holders of cumulative preference shares are entitled
fo priority over other sharehiolders in receipt of their preference dividends or o shiwe 1edemptivn un distribution of asscta in a
winding ap. [lolders are not entitled lo attend or vote at gencral meetings of the issuing company except where there is default
in respect of, or proposed resolutions fo modify, their rights. Prefercuice shareholder consent is required for the issue of new
or additional preference shares and modifications to the Directors' borrowing powers under the Articles of Association.

Secured domestic bank lean

During the 205 period the Group attzined bank finance in order to complete its acquisifion of Panacea Holdings Limited. On
19 September 2017, companies in the Bestway Securitics Limited Group, refinanced the leans and became party to a Senior
Facilities Agreement, whereby the liabilities of cach of the subsidiarics are cross guaranteed by cach of the companies. The
loans under the Senior Facilities Agreement amount to £225million of term loan (*Term Loan A", “Term Loan A' is repayable
bisunnally until 26 September 2022, with the first payment, of £16.1 million, made on 25 March 2019, The loans currently
attract interest of LIBOR +2.35%,

During the 2017 period the Group attained bank finance, comprising a £60.0 million loan maturing in 2020 and bearing an

interest rate of LIBOR + 3.85% (*Term loan B’). At the beginning of the year, £32 million remained outstanding, and this was
fulty repaid during the year.
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36. Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

Secured overseas bank loan

Bestway Group Linited
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Daring the 2015 period the Group also acquired a tern finance facilily of 25 billion Pakistani Rupees from a syndicate of banks
with Allied Bank Limited as the lead bank. This facility is repayable in 10 stepped up biannual instalments starting from
October 2015. Interest 15 payable on bisnnual basis at the rate of 6 months’ KIBOR (Karachi Inter-Banking Offering Rate) plus
0.20% per annum. The facility is secured against the present and fulure assets excluding land and buildings of the Cement

group.

Analysis of borrowings by currency:

Currency
Preference shares classified as deb! GBP
Preference shares classified as debt GBP
Preference shares classified as debt GHP
Seoured Term Loan A GBP
Secured Term Lean B GBP
Secured Syndicate Loan PKR

Ali interest-bearing loans and borrowings are at amortised cost. All carrying amounts are equal to the faic value.

Banking Group

Unsecured bovrowing at amortised cost
Call borrowings
Other borrowings

Secured borrowing at amortised cost
Export refinance scheme

Refinance facility for modemisation of SME
Long term financing facility

Repurchase agreement borrowings

Bai Muajjal

Intesest payable

Amount due for sefilement within 12 months
Amount due for settlement after 12 months

Year of
maturity /

Nominal interest rate  redemption

8%
18%
6%

LIBOR + 2.1%
LIBOR + 3.85%

KIBOR + 0.2%

note

I o O

2027

2022
2020

2020

Carrying Carrying
amount amount
2019 2018
£000 £000

2 2

514 514
57,662 57,662
58,178 58,178
208,928 225,000
- 32,000
208,928 257,000
79,261 109,799
346,367 424 977
Carrying Carrying
amount amount
2019 2018
£000 £000
33,860 69,648
113,177 213,324
147,037 282,972
140,196 108,836
41 35
113,150 131,924
601,900 1,118,471
105,383 217,320
960,670 1,576,586
33,886 40,610
1,141,593 1,900,168
967,260 1,734,563
174,333 165,605
1,141,593 1,900,168
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Netes {continued)

36. Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

(a) These are unsecured borrewings carrying mark-up at rates ranging from 2.00% to 10.60% per annuwm and were repaid after
the year end.

{(b) These borrowings carry mark-up at rates ranging from 2.70% to 4.75% per annum and were repaid after the year end.

(c) The Bank has entered into agreements with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) for extending export finance to customers. As
per the terns of the agrecment, the Bank kas granted the SBP the right to rccover the outsianding amounts from the Bank at
the date of matirity of the finances by directly debiting fhe Dank's current account maintained with the SBP. These borrowings
aro repayable by July 2019, These carry mark-up at rates sanping from 3.47% to 12.35% per annum.

(d) These borrowings have been obtained from the SBP (o finance modernisation of 8mall and Medium Enterprises (SME) by
providing financing facilities for purchase of new plant and machinery for Batencing, Modemmisation and Replacement (BMR)
of existing units and setting up of hew units. In addition, financing for import / local purchase of new generators up to a
maximam capacity of 500 KVA is also eligible under this Schems. These borrowings werc repaid after the year end. These
carry mark-up at a rate of 6 2% per annum.

(=) These borrowings have been obtained from the SBD for providing financing facilities to exporiers for adoption of new
technologies and modemising 1heir plant and machinery. Those borrowings are repayable by June 2028, Those carry mark-up
at rates ronging from 2.00% to 9.70% per antum.

(f) These repurchase agrestnent borrowings are secured against Markot Treasury Bills and Pakistan Investment Bonds and
carry mark-up al rates ranging from 12.08% to 12.18% per annum. These borrowings and were repaid after the year end.

() These represent Bai Muajjal borrowings whercby the Bank bought sukuks sold by other financial institutions on deferred
payent basis. These carry mark-up at rates ranging from 12.22% to 12.30% per annum and wore repaid after the yoar end,

All interest-bearing loans and borrowings are at amortised cost. All carrying amounts are equal to face value, All carrying
amounts are in Pakistani mpees translated lo slerling at the closing rate on 30 June 2019.
37. Subordinated loans

The Bank has issued fully paid up, rated, listed, perpefual, unsecured, subordinated, non-cumufative and contingent convertible
debt instrements in the nature of Tenn Finsnce Certificates {TFCs) which qualify as Additional Tier I Capital as outlined by
tocal regulatory requirements, This totals £49.2 million in the year (2018: Nil).
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Notes (continued)

38. Provisions

Trading Group Reductionin  Dilapidation
pharmacy funding provision Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £600
As at 30 June 2017 19,730 : 944 20,694
Additional provision in the year {rostated) 2419 5,115 2,730 10,264
Utilisation of provision (8,370) - . (8.370)
As at 30 June 2018 (restated) 3,799 5,115 3,674 22,588
Additional provision in the year - 200 596 1,496
Utilisation of provision {11,880) (420) - (12,300)
As at 30 June 2019 1,919 5,598 4,270 11,784

Details of the restatement are given in note 50.

£3.4 miilion of provisinﬁs at the year end were classified as non-current 2018: Nil),

The reduction in govemiment funding relates to a provision made for Category M adjustivents relating to the NHS year ended
March 2019. The unutilised provision in respect to NHS funding cuts at year end 30 June 2019 was £1.9 million (2018: £13.8

million}).

Dilapidations provisions comprise store dilapidation costs on stores as idenlified as pant of the acquisition in the for the rotail
and pharmacy businesses.

Provisions are based on management best estimates to be added and could be subject to change in the future and are not subject
to discounting.

Other provisions include paotential liabilities incurred as part of the Trading Group’s operations that are expected fo lead to
cash ontflows,

Banking Group Fire DMarine  Metor Miscellanecous Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Asal 1 July 2017 3,668 906 3,228 9,289 17,091
Cigims incurred during the year 4,536 1,938 4,100 2,375 12,949
Claims paid during the year (2,607 (1,435) (3,310 (4,242) (11,614)
Premium written in the year 6,533 2,042 7,551 6,049 22175
Premiums eamed during the year (3,919) (1,993) (6,342) (6,549) {20,803)
Exchange differences (751) (178) (643) {1,249) (2,821)
As at 30 June 2018 5,460 1,260 4,584 3,673 16,977
Claims incurred during the year 2,404 1,147 3,730 4,568 11,849
Claims paid during the year (3,229) (872 (3,601 (4,348} (12,050)
Premium written inn the year 7.870 2,023 7,481 6,778 24,152
Premiums eamed during the year (6,903) (2,019) (7,034} (6,092) (22,048
Exchange differences (1,254) (327  (1,i22) (1,417) (4,120
As at 30 June 2019 4,348 1,212 4,038 5,162 14,760

The movement in provisions is due to the normal course of business of providing insurance contracts. All provisions in both
finaucial years arc current. These were previously considered non-current (see note 50 for prior year adjustments).
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39. Deferred Tax

‘The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recogutscd by the Company and imovements thereon diring the
current and prior reporting period,

Trading Group

Property, Investments
plant & Intangible Investment and  Empleyee Short term

equipment assets property associates benefits timing Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 30 June 2017 65,713 69,424 5,168 13,257 (£,573) (541) 151,448
On acquisition (restated) 2,502 (940) - - - 28 1,590
fc(,:;:dlt) / clarge to profit and (3,082) (8,302) 965 131 - 1,260 (9,028)
(Credit) / charge to the OC1 - - - (4,552) 465 45) (4.132)
Exchange differences (9,033) 457 - (1,344) - - (10,834
At 30 June 2018 (resfated) 56,100 59,725 6,133 7,492 {1,108) 702 129,044
E((;s;cdlt) / charge to profit and 8,810 Q237 B 395 B 75 7.043
{Credit) / charge to the OCI - - - 986 (154 38 870
Exchange differences {11,923) (258) - (2,039 - 75 (14,147)
At 30 June 2019 52,985 57,230 6,133 6,834 (1,262) 890 122,810

See note 50 for information regarding assets acquired through business combinations and delails of the reslatement.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right te do so. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

2019 2018
£000 £000
Deferred tax liabilities 124,072 130,152
Deferred tax assets (1,262) ([,108)
Net deferred tax Hability 122,810 129,044

Net deferred tax liabilities include £123.8 million of deferred tax liabilities, and no deferred tax assets, which are expected to
be seltled or recovered more than 12 months after the reporting period. For the year ended 30 June 2018 the £122.8 million of
nel deferred tax liability was materially due to be scitled in more than one year and related primarily to intangible assets and
property, piant & equipment.

Banking Group
Employee
welfave Employce Property, plant Investment
provisions Tax losses benefits & equipment property  Sub total
£000 £000 £000 £060 £000
At30 Juns 2017 (5777} (2,002) (1,650 12,547 1,935 5,053
(Credit} / charge to profit and loss (1439 (5,708) (858) 1,027 (89 (10,789
(Credit) / charge to the OCI - 358 (938) 1,515 (46) 889
Exchange differences 992 633 617 (2,113) (307} (E78)
At 30 June 2018 (6,224) (10,719 (2,829 12,976 1,771 {5,025)
{Credit) / charge to profit and loss (2,106) 9,369 (6,770) 1,949 4 2,446
{Credit) / charge to retained ) ) B R )
eamings )
(Credit) { charge to SOCI / ) )
revalyation reserve ) i B )
Credit / {charge) to the OCI - - 7,756 3O) - 1,726
Exchange differences 1,703 1,632 532 (3,276) 401 190
At 30 June 2019 (6,627) 282 (1,311) 11,61% 1,374 5,337
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39. Deferred Tax (continued)
Expected credit

losses and short-
term {iming

Sub total  Investments Associates diffetrences Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 30 June 2017 5,053 49,551 3,439 a3 58,030
{Credit) / charge to profit and loss (10,789 (26) 615 1 (10,199)
{Crodit) / charge to the OCI 889 (49,995) - - (49,106)
Exchange differences (178) (3,886) (524) ) @59
At 30 June 2018 (5,025) (4,356) 3,530 (15) (5,866}
(Credit) / charge to profit and |oss 2,446 (3,735) 1,619 - 330
(Credit) / charge to SOCL/
retnined eamings h 6,045 ) (43,753)  (37,708)
{Credit) / charge to SOCI /
revaluation reserve B (4,876 ) - 4876
(Credit} / charge to the OCI 7,726 (11,010) - {1,158)  {4,442)
Exch.:mgc differences 190 3,899 (1’040} 9,884 12,933
A€30 June 2019 5,337 (14,033) 4,109 (35,042)  (39,629)

During the year, a gain on remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities of £21.0 million through other comprehensive income,
resufted in a deferred tax impact of £7.7 million. Forthenmore, a net loss on investments in debt instruments classified as 'at
FVOCT of £31.1 million resulted in a deferred tax impact of £11.0 million. In the prior year, a loss arising on investents in
securities as ‘at FYOCT of 148.7 million resulted in deferred tax impact of £50.0 million.

Deferred (ax assets and liabilities are offsel where the Group has a legally snforceable right to do so. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax bulances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

Banking Group ‘ 2019 2018

£000 E000
Deferred tax liabilities (17,384) (18,277
Deferred tax asscts 57,013 24,143
Net deferred tax asset 39,629 5,866

Net deferred tax assets include £13.3 million which is expected to be settled or recovered more than 12 months after the
reparting period,

40. Employee benefifs
Trading Group

The Trading Group operates & number of pension plans throughout the world, devised in accordance with local conditions and
practices, The majority of the plans are defined benefit plans and are funded by payments to separately administered trusis or
insurance companies. The principal plans are in the United Kingdom and Pakistan. Reduced disclosures have been provided
for the Pakistan scheme as it is considered immaterial.

United Kingdom Scheme

The Group’s main pension commitments relate to its two occupational pension schemes; the Batley’s Limited Retirement
Benefits Scheme (the “Main scheme”) and the Batley's Limited Officers’ Retirement Benefits Scheme (the “Officers’
scheme™). Both schemes are funded by the payment of contributions to separately administered trust funds. On 31 October
2015, the ponsion schemes were transferred from Batley’s Limited to Bestway Wholesale Limited as part of the group
reorganisation, at which point Bestway Wholesale Limited becaine the sponsoring company.

The Schemes are subject to the funding legislation, which came into force on 30 December 2005, outlined in the Pensions Act
2004. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator, and Guidance Nofes adopted by the Financial Reporiing
Council, set ont the framework for fanding defined benefit oconpational pension plans in the UK.

The trusteos of the Schemes are required fo act in the best interest of the Schemes’ beneficiaries. The appointment of the
trustess is determined by the Scheme’s trust docunientation. It is policy that one third of all frustees should be nominated by
the members.
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40. Employee benefits (continued)

Fult actuarial valuations were carried out as at 30 April 2017 for the Main Schene and 31 Decomber 2018 for the Officers’
Scheme in accordance with the scheme finding requirements of the Pensions Act 2004 and the finding of the Schemes are
agreed between the Company and the trustees in fine with those requirenients, These in particular require the surplus/deficil to
be caleulated using prudent, as opposed to best estimate actuarial assumptions.

The sponsoring company has agreed with the trustees that it will aim to eliminate the deficit for the Main Scheme over a period
of 4.5 years from 30 April 2018 by the payment of annnal contributions of £498,000 increasing each year by 3%. In addition,
and in accordance with the actuarial valuations, the sponsoring company has agreed with the trustees that it will meet expenses
of the Schemes and levies to the Pension Protection Fund.

For the purposes of JAS 19 the actuarial valuation as at 30 April 2017 for the Main Scheme and 31 Decomber 2018 for the
Officers’ Scheme, which were carried out by a qualified independent actuary, have been updated on an approximate basis to
30 June 2019. There have been no changes in the valuation methodology compared to the prior yesr.

Defined benefit pension schemes of the Trading Group

The information disclosed below is in respect of the whole of the plans for which the Trading Group is the sponsoring smployer
throunghout the years shown.

Present values of schieme liabilities, fair values of assets and deficit: 2019 2018

£000 £000
Present value of scheme liabilities (38,542) (37,479)
Fair value of scheme assets 31,067 27,868
Deficit (7,475) [CXI8))]
Related deferred tax asset 1,262 1,108
Net liability (6,213) - (8,503)

The present value of schemeos' linbilities is meastired by discounting the best estinate of twe cash flows to be paid out by
the plan using the projected unit credit method, The value calculated in this way is reflected in the net liability in the statement
of financial position as shown above.

The projected unit credit method is an accrued benefits valuation method in which allowance is made for projected eamings
increases. The accumulated benefit obligation is an altemative actuarial measnre of the Schemes liabilities, whose caleulation
differs from that under the projecied unit credit method in that it includes no assumption for future eamings increases. In
assessing this figure for the purpose of these disclosures, allowance has been made for future stattory revaluation benefits up
to retirement. At the balance sheet date, the acowmulated benetit obligation was £35.4 million (2018: £37.8 million).

All actuarial gains and losses ate recognised in the year in which they occur in other comprehensive income,
Impact of the asset ceiling

The Directors sevicwed implications of the guidance provided by IFRIC 14 and have concluded that it is nol necessary to make
any adjustments to tho TAS 19 figures in respect of an asset ceiling or Minimum Funding Requirements as at 30 June 2019,

Movements in present value of defined Leuefit obligations: 2019 2018
£000 £000
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year 37479 39,529
Current service costs 426 465
[nterest cost 1,122 1,122
Past service costs 439
Actuarial loss / (gain) 2,174 (1,554)
Benefits paid (2,370) (1,800)
Exchange differences (728) (283)
At the end of the year 38,542 37479

There have been no scheme amendments, curtailments or settlements in the accounting period.
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40. Employee benefits (cortinued)

Movements in fair value of scheme assets: 2019 2018

£000 £000
Yalue of scheme assets at beginning of the year 27868 27,594
Interest income on plan asseis 105 -
Expocted rofurn on scheme assefs 730 706
Actuarial gains 1,482 675
Contributions by employer 3,095 369
Benefits paid €2,213) (1,676)
Af the end of the year 31,067 27,868
Expense recognised in the income statement: 2019 2018

£000 £000
Interest on defined benefit pension obligation 1,122 1,122
Current service costs 426 465
Past service costs 439 -
Expected retum on defined benefit pension assets {130) (706)
Total expense 1,257 881
LExpense recognised in other comprehonsive income: 2019 2018

£000 £000
Acharial Josses 2,182 -
Actuarial gains (1,482) (2,229)
Total expense / (gain) 700 (2,229)

The fair value of the scheme assets and 1he refun: on those assets were as follows:

2019 2018

£000 £000

Cash 406 239
Equities 5,824 8,801
Bonds 7,896 5,514
Hedge funds 1,506 -
Liability Driven Investments (LD1) 6,697 5,450
Diversified growth funds 8,738 1,714
31,067 27,368

None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any direct invesiments in the Gioup or Company’s own financial
iustruments or any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the Group or Company. All of the scheme assets have a
quoted market prico in an active market with the exception of the Trustee’s bank uccount balance.

It is the policy of the Trustees and the Company to review the investment strategy af the time of each funding valuation. The
Trustees’ investment objectives and the processes undertaken to measure and manage the risks inherent in the Sclhiemes’
investment strategy are documented in the Schemes” Statement of Investment Principles. The Schemes invest approximately
20% of total assets in Liability Driven [nvestments (1.DI) to broadly provide 70% interest rate hedging and 125% inflation rate

hedging.
All equity securities and government bonds have quoted prices in active markets. All other plan assets are not quoted in an
active market.
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40. Employee benefits (comtinucd)
Actuarial assumptions

The following are the principa! actuarial assumptions at fhe balanoe sheet date {expressed as weighted averages)

2019 2018

UK UK

Discousnt rate 2.30% 2.70%
Inflation (RPD) 3.45% 3.35%
Inflation (CPD) 2.45% 2.35%
Future salary increases 3.65% 3.55%

The assymptions relating to lengevity underlying the pension liabilities at the balance sheet date are based on standard actuarial
mottality tables and include an sllowance for fature improvements in longevity. The assumptions are equivalent to expecting
a 63-year old to live for a number of years as follows:

- Current pensioner aged 65: 22.4 years (male), 24.5 years (female).
- Future retiree upon reaching 65: 24.6 years (male), 26.8 years (female).

Sensifivity analysis

The calculation of the defired benefit abligation is sensitive to the assumptions set out above. The following table summarises
how the impact on the defined benefit ohiigation at the end of the reporting period would have increased / (decreased) because
of & change in the respective assumptions:

Change in assumption  Change in liabilities

Discount rale Decrease of 0.25% p.a. Increase by 4.9%
Rate of inflation Inerease of 0.25% p.a. Increase by 1.5%
Rate of salary growth Increase of 0.25% p.a. Increase by 0.5%
Rate of mortality [nerease in life expectancy of 1 year Increase by 3.2%
Comnutation Members commule an extra 10% of Post A Day Decrease by 0.7%

pension on retircment

The sensitivities shown above are approximate. Each sensitivity considers one change in isolation. The inflation sensitivity
includes the impact of changes fo the assumptions for revaluation, pension increases and salary growth. The average duration
of the defined benefit obligation at the period ended 30 June 2019 is 13 years (2018: 20 years),

The Schemes typically expose the Group to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk, salary growth risk,
morttality risk and longevity risk. A decrease in corporate bond yields, a rise in inflation or an increase in life expectancy would
result in an increase to plan lisbilities. This would detrimentally impact the statement of financial position and may give rise
in increased charges fo the income statement in the future. This effect would be partially offset by an increase in the value of
the Schemes® bond and LDJ holdings, and in qualifying death in service insurance policies that cover the mortality risk.
Additionally, caps on inflationary incroases are in place o protect the plan against extreme inflation.

The Group and Trustees are aware of these risks and manage them through appropriate investiment and funding strategies.
Funding

The best estimate of contributions to be paid by the Group to the schemes for the year beginning 1 July 2019 is £559,000 per
annum.
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40. Employee benefits (continued)

Banking Group
I 2019 2018
ct surplus et liability et surplus el liability
i N lus | Net liabili N lus| Net liabili
£000 £000 £000 £000
Defined benefit scirentes
United Bank Limited, Pakistan (L/BL) - 2,825 - 61,092
United National Limited, United Kingdom (UBL UK) 147 - - 160
UBL Fund Managers Limited, Pakistan (UFML.) - 5 - 41
UBL Insurers Linited, Pakistaa (UIL) - 38 - 44
Defined contribution schentes
UBL - Provident Fund, Pakistan 609 - 131 -
UBL Bank {Fanzanja) Limited, Tanzania - - - 17
756 2,868 131 61,354
Net liability 2,112 61,223

Banking Group (Paldstan) scheme - United Bank Limited, Pakistan (UBL)

The Bank operates a funded pension scheme established in 1975, as well as a lunded gratuity scheme for new employces and
for those employees who have not opted for the pension scheme,

The Bauvk also operales a contributory benevolent fond scheme and provides post-retirement medical benefits to eligible retired
employees. The benevolent fund scheme and the post-retirement medicaf scheme cover all regular employees of the Bank who
joined the Bank pre-privatisation.

The liabilities of the Bank in respect of these schemes are determined based on actmarial valuations carried out using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. Actnarial valuations of the defined bencfit schemes are carried oul every year and the latest
valuation was carried out as at 30 June 2019,

Tho number of employees covered under the following defined benefit schemes are:

2019 2018
Pension fund T.891 10,608
Gratuity fiind 9,447 10,382
Benevolent Fund 3,558 3,386
Post-retitement medical benefit scheme 8,250 9,744
Principal actuarial assumptions
The actuariat valuations were carried out as at 30 June using the following significant asswmptions:
2019 2018
Discount rate and expected rate of retum on scheme assets 14.25% 9.00%
Expecited rate of future salary increase 12.25% 7.00%
Expected rate of increase in pension 5.086% 5.00%
Expected rate of increase in medical benefit 14.25% 9.00%
Post-retirement moriality at age 60:
Pension fund 17.34 1734
Benevolent Fund .71 7.71
Post-retirement medical benefit scheme 13.87 13.87
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Notes (continued)
40. Employee benefits (continued)

Present values of scheme liabilities, fuir valiees of
assets and deficit;

Present value of scheme liabilities
Fair value of scheme assets

Net asset / (Hability)

Present value of scheme liabilities
Fair value of schete assets

Net asset / (liability)

Movenient in presenl value of defined benefit
ebligations:

Defined benefit obligation at 1 July 2018
Current seqvice cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid

Return aliocated 1o other funds

Actuarial (gain) / loss

Exchange difference

At 30 June 2019

Movement in fair value of scheme assels:

Value of schemne assets at 1 July 2018
Interest income on scheme assets
Contribution by cmpltoyer

Benefits paid

Amount paid by the fund to the Bank
Actuarial gain / (loss)

Exchange difference

At 30 Junc 2019

Bestway Group Limited

Repistered number 11003305
Annual report and flinancial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Post-

vetirement

Pension Gratuity  Denevolent medical
fund fund Fund lbenefit Total
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
37,648 4,159 1,243 9,993 53,043
(43,987 (4,255) (1,976) - {50218)
(6,339) (96) (733) 9,993 2,825

Posl-

retirement

Pension Gratuity  Beuevolent medical
(ind fund Fund benefit Total
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £600 £000 £000 £000
71,823 4,692 2,474 9,910 28,809
(19,909) (4,785) (3.113) L (27807
51,914 ©3) (639) 9,910 61,092

Post -

retivement

Pension Gratuity  Benevolent medical
fund fund Fund benefit ‘Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
71,823 4.692 2,474 9,910 88,899
222 785 32 8 1,047
3,147 402 145 784 6,478
(4,715) (726) (258} 692y (6,391
305 - - - 305
(22,068) 158 (709) 2,631 (19,988)
(13,066) (1,152) (441) (2,648 (17,307
37,648 4,159 1,243 9,993 53,043

Pension Gratuity Benevolent Post-retirement
fund fund Fund medical benefit Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
19,905 4,785 3,113 - 27,807
1,190 409 196 - 1,795
38,137 1,007 1! - 39,155
- - 11 - 11
(6,985) (659) (696) - (8,340)
1,262 (109) 34 - I,119
(9,526) (1,178) {625) - (11329)
43,987 4,255 1,976 - 50,218
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Notes (continued)

40. Emplayce benefits (continued)

Expense recognised in the income statentont:

Current service cost
Net interest on defined benefit assct or lability
Retum allocated to other finds

Current service cost
Nst interest on defined benefit asset or liability
Retum allocated to other funds

Employees' contribution

Mavemeni recognised in the statement of
compreliensive income:

Financial assumptions

Actuarial loss on obligation
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets
Adjustment for mark up

Financial assumptions

Experience adjustments

Return on plan assels over interest income
Adjustinent for mark up

Hestway Group Limited

Registered number 1003305
Annual report end financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Pension Gratuity Benevolent Post-refirement Total
fund fund Fund medical benefit
2019 2018 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
222 785 32 8 1,047
3,946 ) ShH 784 4,672
305 - - - 305
4,473 778 (19 792 6,024
Pension Grawity Benevolent Post-retireinent Total
fund fnd Fund  medics! benefit
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
60,534 762 21 13 61,330
(1,093) (16) (18) 671 (456)
908 . - - Q08
60,349 746 3 684 61,782
Pension Gratuity Denevolent Post-retivement
fund fund Fund medical benefit Total
2019 2019 2019 20192 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(15,288) 32 (277 2,971 (12,562)
{6,780) 126 (433) (339 (7,426}
(1,262) 169 34 - (1,119
81 2 - -~ a3
(23,249) 269 (676) 2,632 (21,024)
Pension Grataity  Benevolent  Post-retirement
fund fund Fund medical benelit Total
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
- 15 (19 (2441) (2,623)
308 175 112 4,459 5,054
1,939 42 8] - 2,062
133 2 14 - 149
2,380 234 10 2,018 4,642
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Notes (continued)

40. Employee benefits (continued)

The fair value of the sclreme pssets and the return oir ihose assefs
were as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents

Quoted ordinary shares

Unquoted term finance certificates
Market treasury bills

Pakistan investment bonds

Term depasits

Bostway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Aunnual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Cash and cash equivalents

Quoted ordinary shares

Unguoted tenm finance certificates
Pakistan investment bonds

Special savings certificates
Reverse repo

Pension Gratuity  Benevolent
fund fund Fund Total
2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
7 356 22 455
544 200 100 844
6,843 - 96 6,939
14,610 1,196 664 16,470
21913 2,239 626 24,778
- 264 468 732
43,987 4,255 1,976 50,218

Pension Gratuity  Benevoleat
fund fund Fond Total
2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
97 22 14 133
744 161 111 1,016
430 923 49 1,402
8,793 3,009 1,201 13,003
9,845 573 1,737 12,155
- 98 - 98
19,809 4,786 3,112 27,807

‘The funds primarily invest in government securities and accordingly do not carry any significant credit risk. These are subject
to interest rate risk based on market movements. Investnent in tern finance cerdificates are subjeet to credit risk and interest
rale 1isks, while equity sccurities arc subject to price risk. These risks are regularly monitored by Trustees of the employee

funds.
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Notes (continued)
40. Employec benefits {comtinued)
Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis has been performed by varying one assumption keeping all other assumptions constant and caleulating the
impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations under the various employee benefit schemes. The
increase/{decrease) in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of a change in each assamption is sumnarised
below:

Post- Post-
refirement retirement
Pension Gratuity Benevalent  medical Pension Graisity Bencvolent medical
Banldng Group fund fund Tund benefit fund  fund Fund benefit
2019 2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000  £00D £00D £000 £0D0 £000 £000 £000
Increase in discount rate by 1% 12,567 (826) 580 {3,026 (6437 (387 (118) (908)
Decrease in discount rate by 1% 23,922 arn Tis (1,485) 7714 451 133 1,082
Increase in expected futre
increment in salary by 1% - um 672 - ) 436 ) )
Decrease in expected future
increment in salary by 1% B (834) 672 - RS ) )
'[ucrease in expecIFd future 23,730 ) } . 7466 ) ) }
increment in pension by 1%
Decrease in expected future
increment in pension by 1% 13,030 - ) - (6357 ) B
Increase in expecled future
. : . - - - 1,5 - - - 1,041
increment in medical benefit by 1% (.517)
Decrease in expected future _ - . (3,014) _ ~ ~ (892)

increment in medical benefit by 1%

Although the analysis does not take acconnt of the fulf distribution of expected cash flows, it does provide an approsimation
of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown,

Expected contributions to be paid to the funds in the next financial year

The Banking Group coniributes to the pension and gratuity funds according to tho actuary's advice. Based on actuarial advice,
management estimates that the expected contribution of £0.7 million in the financial year to 30 June 2019.

Funding policy

The Bank endeavours to easure that liabilities under the various employee benefit schemes are covered by the Fund on any
valuation date having regards to the various actuatial assnmptions such as projected future salary increase, expected future
contributions 1o the fund, projected increase in lizbility associated with future service and the projected investment incowe of
the Fuad.

Defined contribution plans

LUBL Pakistan opetates a contributory providen! lund scheme for its cmployees who are ot in the pension scheme. The
employer and employee cach contribute 8.33% of the basic salary to the fiunded scheme every month.
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Notes (continued)

41. Operating lease arrangements

Trading Group 2019 2018
£000 £000
Lease payments under operating leases recagnised as an expense in the year 22,322 16,640

At the balance sheet date, the Trading Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellabte operating leascs, which fall due as follows:

2019 2018

£000 £000

Less than one year . 21,354 14,392
Between one to five years 65,441 45,024
More than five years 75,519 56,718
162,314 116,334

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Trading Group for certain of its office properties, retail stores,
pharmacies and vehiclos. Property leases are nogotiaied for an average torm of 8 years and rentals are fixed for an average of
8 years with an option to extend for further at the then prevailing market rate. The vehicle leases normally run for a period of
3.3 years.

Leases as lessar

The investment properties are It under operating leases. The future minimum lease receivables under non-cancefiable leases
are as foliows:

2019 2018
£000 £000
Less than one year 4,539 4,703
Between one and five years 4,246 15453
More than five years 44,310 48,785
63,095 68,943

During the year £6.5 miltion (2018: £7.2 million) was recognised as rental mcome,
Banking Group 2019 2018
£000 £000
Lease payments under opersting leases recognised as an expense in the year 18,808 18,544

Al 30 June 2019 the Banking Group had annual commitnionts under non-cancellable operating leases of £72.2 million (2018:
£74.6 million).
42. Capital Commitments

At 30 June 2019 the Group had entered into contracts to purchase property, plant and equipment; the Trading Group
commitment was £12.4 million (2018: £1.8 million) and the Banking Group commitment was £4.6 million (2018: E123

miliion).
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Naotes {continued)

43. Contingent liabilitics
Trading Group
Cement business

The cement business is subject to certain contingent fegal and tax matters which are currently at different fegal stages. The
Dircctors and the Company’s legal advisor are confident of a favourable outcome on all these matters, accordingly no provision
has been made in respect of these matters in the consalidated financial statements.

Banking Group

Penalties amounting to £23.0 million have been levied by the Banking Group’s (UBL) regulator rclating to alleged
contraventions of the requirements of foreign exchange regulations, UBL maintains that it fully discharged its lability, in
accordance with the law and has filed a civil suil in the respective High Court challenging the levy of the penalty. The High
Court has granted a stay on action being taken against UBL. The Directors based on the advice from [egal counsel, are confident
that the view of UBL will prevail and therefore no provision has been made ju rospect of same in the consolidated financial
staternents.

The banking business is subject to certain contingent fegal und lax matlers which are currently at different legal stages, The
Directors and the Bank’s legal advisor are confident of a favourable outcome on all these matters, accordingly no provision
has been made in respect of these matters in the consolidated financial statements.

44, Financial instruments

Trading Group

a} Capital risk management

The Group mansges ils capital fo ensvre that entities in The Group will be able to conlinue as a going coucern while maximising
tlte return to the sharehiolders through the optimisation of the debt and eguity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (borrowings disclosed in note 36 after deducting cash and bank balances)
and equity of the Group (comprising issved capital and retained eamings).

The Group manages its capital by increasing/decreasing its debt and/or equily as needed and aiso by adjusting the number of
dividends paid to sharcholders. The Trading Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

&) Financial risk

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities by categories:

Financinl Assets 2019 2018
£000 £000

Loans and receivables

Amounts receivable for sale of goods 162,993 159,725

Ollier receivables 35,297 54,548

Cash and cash oquivalents 154,181 170,121

Total financial assets 352,471 384,394

Tinancial liabilities

Overdiaft 107,148 140,649
Trade payables 416,297 484,327
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings 288,189 366,799
Tetal financial liabillties 811,634 991,775
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Notes (continted)
44, Finaneial instruments (continued)
Financial risk management objectives

The Trading Group's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and
intemmational financial markets, maonitors and manages the financial risks relafing to ihe operations of the Trading Group
through internal risk reports which analyscs exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include liquidity risk
and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Trading Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by detziled forecasting and cash management to ensure that
loan covenants are not breached. The Group has a policy of using reasonable cash surpluses to pay down debt and thereby
reducing interest costs. The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instrumonts,
for speculative purposes,

¢) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Trading Group if a custamer or counterparty to & financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Trading Groups receivables from cusiomers.

The Trading Group manages credit risk principally through the performance of credit checks on new customers and credit
control procedures in accordance with IFRS 9, The trade debtor balances are inade up of a large number of individuat customer
balances, none of which are individuaHly significant. Cash and cash equivalents represents deposits at high guality financial
institutions.

The carrying amoun! of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposire, The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reponting date is listed in financial assets within the table above. All trade receivables at the balance sheel date are within the
UK or Pakistan. See note 30 for more mferination on provisions refating to credit customers.

d) Interest rate and liqueidity risk

The Group is exposed fo interest rate risk because the Trading Group borrows funds at floating interest rates, nanely LIBOR
(London inter-bank offer rate) and KIBOR (Karachi inter-bank offer rete).

Ultimate respounsibility for Hiquidity risk management rests with the board of Directors, which has established an appropriate
fiquidity risk management framework for the management of the Trading Group's short, medium and long-term linding and
liquidity management requirements. The Trading Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
tacilities and reserve borrowing laciliites, by contimuously moniforing torecast and actual cash lows, and by matching the
matnrity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Details of additional undrawn facilities that the Group has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk are sct out below. The
group had access lo undrawn borrowing (acilities at the end of the reporting period of £56.3m (2018: £50.3m).

Liquidity and intcrest risk tables

The following tables detail the Trading Group's rentaining contractuat maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with
agreed repayment periods. ‘The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on fhe easliest date on which the Trading Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the
balance sheel date. The contractual maturity is based on the earficst date on which the Trading Group may be required to pay.

Weighted
average effective 1 year or
interest rate less 1-5 years 5+ years Total
% £000 £000 £000 £000

30 June 2019
Fixed interest rate instiruments:
Shares classified as debt 10.8 52 206 719 975
Shares classified as deb! 6.0 - - 57,662 57,662
Variable interest rate instruments:
Bank loans LIBOR + 2.1 38,574 190,154 - 228,728
Bani loars KIBOR+ 0.2 79,260 27,086 - 106,346
Trade payables 0 416,597 - - 416,597

534,483 217,446 58,379 810,308
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Notes (continued)

44. Financial instruments (continyed)

Wetghted
averago cffective
mterestrate 1 year or less 1-5 years S+ years Total
% £000 EDOO E00G £000
30 June 2018
Fixed interest rate instriments: 10 52 206 717 975
Shares classified as debt 6 - ~ 57,662 57,662
Shares classified as debr
Variable interest rate instrements: ) .
Bank loans LIBOR + 2.1 21,970 224975 - 246,945
Bank loans KIBOR +0.2 103,579 62,204 - 165,783
Trade payables 0 484,327 = - 434,327

609,928 287,385 58,379 955,602

Sensitivity analysis
The Group has exposure to interest rate risk on bank loans that bear interest on LIBOR or KIBOR plus basis.

A 1% change in LIBOR or KIBOR rates will increase or decrease equity by:

2019 2018
£000 £000
Bank loans 2,882 3,628
2,882 3,628
A 1% change in interest rates will increase or decrease profit and loss by:
2019 2018
£000 £000
Bak loans 2882 3,628
2,882 3,628

Banking Group

This section presents information about the Banking Group’s banking business (UBL) exposure to and its management and
control of risks, in particular, the primary risks associated with its use of financial instruments such as credit, market, lquidity,
and operational risks.

Risk management

The Banking Group has an integrated risk management structure in place covering domestic and intemational franchise. The

Board Risk and Compliance Comumittee (BRCC) oversees the enfire risk management process of the Banking Group.

Furthermore, Risk Management Committee has been formed which looks at al) risks collectively at senior management level.

The cominittes is chaired by the President and comprises of Heads of all risk areas, finance, business ete. The Risk and Credit

Policy Group is responsible for the development and implementation of all risk policies as approved by the BRCC / BaD). The

group is organised inio the functions of Market & Treasury Risk, Financial Institution Risk, Credit Policy & Research,

Consumer Credit Policy, Credit Risk Managemenl and Operational Risk & Bascl. Each risk function is headed by & senior

manager who reports directly lo the Group Executive, Risk and Credit Policy. The role of the Risk and Credit Policy Group

inctudes:

+  Defermining guidelines relating fo the Banking Group’s risk appetite;

» Recommending risk management policies in accordance with the Prudential Regulations, Basel II framework and
international best practices;

» Reviewing policies/manuals and ensuring that {hese are in accordance with BRCC/Board of Direciars approved risk

management policies;

Developing systems and rescurces to review the key risk exposures of the Banking Group;

Approving credits and granting approval autherity to qualified and experienced individuals;

Reviewing the adequacy of eredit training across the Banking Group;

Organising portfolio reviews focusing on quality assessment, risk profiles, industry concentrations, cto.,

Setting systems 1o identify significant portfolio indicators, problem credits and Lovel of provisioning required; and

« Assigaing of Obligor's Risk Rating (ORR) to custemers.

*« 8 8 »
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Equity
investinents
Financial Debt - Imitially
assets (other 2ebt investments designated Equity
than Debt investments at fair at fair investinents- Financial
investrnents) investments at falr value value Initinlly liabilities
- At at value through through designated at at
amortised amortised through Profit and  Profit and fair value amortised
310 June 2019 cost cost ocl loss loss through OCI cost Tatal
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £090
Financial assets
Cash and cash 1,336,341 - - - . - - 1,336,341
squivalents
Tvestments in - 1,529,777 2,131,755 663,215 72,214 6,305 - 4,403,266
financial asssts
Lending to
financial 108,907 - - - - - - 108,907
institutions
Advances 3,370,909 - - - - - - 3,370,909
Othier assets 202,816 - ~ - - - - 202816
5,018,973 1,529,777 2,131,755 663,215 72,214 6,305 - 9422239

Reinsurance assets of £10.3 mitlion recognised by our insurance business, is classified as a financial assel at amortised cost.

Financial
liabilities
Trade and other
payables
Deposit and
other accounts
Sub ordinated
loans

Payable to
investors of UBL - - - -
Fuads

Bills payable - - - .
Othier interest-

bearing loans - - . -
and berowing

Other liabilities - - - -

195,668 195,668
7,408,802 7,408,802

49,202 49,202

9,536 9,536
143,886 143,886

1,143,559 1,143,559

2,576 2,576

8,953,229 8,953,229
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44. Financial insiruments (continued)

Other
financial
Loans and Held-to- Available- Held for assets /
30 June 2018 receivables maturity for-sale Trading liabilitics Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 1,228,015 1,228,015
Investments in financial assets - 2,137,648 2,959.413 221,366 - 5,318,427
lending to financial instilutions - (38,776) - - - (38,776)
Advances 272,545 - - - - 272,545
Other assels 4,598,031 - - - - 4,598,031
{mpalrmcnt provision on 241373 _ B _ . 241373
mvestments
5,111,949 2,098,872 2959413 221,366 1,228,015 11,619,615

Reinsurance assots of £11.4 million recognised by our insurance business, is classified as & financial asset at amortised cast.

Financial liabilities

253,083 253,083
8,741,126 8,741,126

Trade and other payables - -
Deposit & olher accounts - - -

Sub ordinated loans - - - - 7,487 7,487
Bills payable - - - - 96,844 96,844
Other interest-bearing laans and

b X - - - - 1,906,370 1,506,370
OITOWing

Other liabilities - - - - 4,462 4,462
- 11,009,372 11,009,372

The 2019 figures presented are on IFRS 9 classifications while the compared figures are based on LAS 39 classification.
(¢) Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
markot participants at the measurement dato in the principal or, in its absence, tho most advantageous market to which the
Banking Group has access to at that dato.

[nvestments which are tradable in an opon market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the balance sheet date.

The fair value of fixed term loans, other assets (except for unrealised gain on derivative financial instruments and forward
exchaitge contracts), other liabilities (except for unrealised loss on derivative financiul instruments and forward exchange
contracts) and fixed term deposits cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to the absence of a current and active
market for these assets and liabilitics and reliable data regarding market rates for similar instnuments.

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities ore not significantly different from
their carrying values since these are either short-term in natire or, in the case of customer loans and deposits, are frequently
repriced. :

The information sct out below provides information about how the Group determings fair values of varions financial assets
and financial liabilities.

-~ Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities,

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, cither directly (i.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.¢. derived from prices); and

-Level 3 fair value measurements are those detived from valuation techniques thal include inputs for the asset or liability that
are nol based on observable market daia (snobservable inputs).
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44, Finaneial instraments {comtinuedy

Investments in financial assets measured at fair
value (Note 29)

Investitents in:

Govemment Securities (T-bills, PIBs, GoP Sukuks
and Eurcbonds)

Foreign Bonds

Ordinary shares of listed companics

Ordinary sharcs of unlisted companies
Preference Shares

Debt securitics (TFCs, Sukuks and others)
Mutual Funds

REIT scheme

Investments in financial assets notf measured at fuir
value (Note 29)

Securities carried at amortised cost (2018: held-to-
maturity)

Off balance sheet financial instraments (at notional
valie)

Forward purchase and sale of foreign exchange
confracts

Interest rate swaps

Destway Group Limited

Repgistered number 11003305
Annual report and financral statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Fair value hierarvchy as at 30 June 2019

FX options - purchased and sold

Forward purchase of government securities

Level 1 Level 2 Level3  Carrying Value
£000 £000 £000 £000

- 2,348,975 - 2,348,975

- 428,761 - 428,761
69,085 - - 69,085
- - 6,305 6,305

- 177 177

- 17,057 - 17,057

- 1,088 - 1,088
2,042 - - 2,042
71,127 2,795,881 6,482 2,873,490
- - - 1,415,700

- 34,281 - 3,458,334

- (96) - 1,524

- - - 8,076

- 158 - 382,280

Fair value hicrarchy as at 3¢ June 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Carrying Value
£000 £000 £000 £000
Investments in financial assefs measiired af faiy
value (Note 29)
Investments in:
Govemiment Sequrities (T-bills, PIBs, GoP Sukuks - 2,632,526 - 2,632,526
and Burobonds)
Foreign Bonds - 403,337 -~ 403,337
Ordinary shares of listed companies 130,782 - - 130,782
Ordinary shares ol unlisted companies - - 4,685 4,685
Preference Shares - - 2,656 2,656
Debt securities (TFCs, Sukuks and others) - 3,448 - 3448
Mutual Funds - - - -
REIT scheme 3,345 - - 3,345
134,127 3,039,311 7,341 3,180,779
Investments in financial assels not measured of fair
value (Note 29)
Secu rities carricd at amortised cost (2018: held-to- 3 3 ; 1,643,521
maturily)
Off balance sheet financial instriments (ai notional .
value) B i -
Forward purchase and sale of foreign exchange
cantracts - 4,652 - 2,552,728
Interest rate swaps - 126 - 14,098
FX options - purchased and sold - - - 1,057
Forward purchase of govermment securities - (19 - 5,072
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Notes (continued)
44. Financial instruments (continned)

Operating fixed assets and invesiment properties are carried at revalued amounts determined by professional valuers (level 3
measurement) based on their assessment of the market values as disclosed in notes 24 and 25 respectivcly.

During the year there have been no transfers between the levels.

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified at amortised cost, is based on quoted market price. The fair value
of unquoted equity securities, other than investments in associates is the fair value of unquoted equity investments is measured
by using the markef approach (comparable compauy multiples) and the cost approach {adjusted net assels) under [FRS 13, The
fair value of associates is based on the net assets of the associates as per their latest financial statements.

(O Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a cuslomer or counterparty may not settle an obligation for full value, either when due or at any time
thereafier.

This risk arises from the potentie! that a customer's or counterparty’s willingness or ability to meet such an obligation is
impaired, resulting in an economic loss to the Banking Gronp. The credit risk management process is driven by the Bank's
Credit Policy, which provides policies and procedures in relation to credit initiation, approval, documentation and
disbursement, credit maintenance and remedial management, Individual credit authorities are delegated to credit officers by
the Board according to their scasoning/maturity. Approvais for corporate and consumer loans arc centralised, while approval
authorities for Commercial and SME exposures are delegated to a Regional level. All credil policy functions are centrally
organised.

Concentrations of credit risk exist if clienis are engaged in similar activities, or are located in the same geographical region, or
have comparable economic characteristics such that their ability to meet contractual obligations would be similarly affected by
changes in economic, political or other conditions. The Banking Group manages limits and controls concentrations of credit
risk to individual cownterpartics and groups, and to mdustries, where appropriate. Limits are also applied to perifolios or sectors
where the Banking Group considers it appropriate to restrict credit risk concentrations, or to areas of higher risk, or to control
the rate of portfolio growth.

Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Banking Group manages, limits and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever they are identified — in particular, to
individual counterparties and groups, industries and countries.

The Banking Group struciures the tevels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation
to one borrower, or groups of borrowers, and 1o geogrephical aud industry scgments. Such risks are monitored on a revolving
basis and subject to an annual or mote frequent review, when considered necessary, Limits on the level of eredit risk by product
and industry sector are approved quarterfy by the Management Board.

The exposure to any one borrower is further restricted by sub-limits covering on- and off-balance sheet exposnres. Actual
exposures against limits are monitored daily.

Exposure to credit risk is also managed through analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential borowers to meel intercst
and capital repayment obligations at the time of loan appraisal for initial and subsequent loans.

Seme other specific conteof and mitigation measures are outlined below.
(i) Collateral

The Banking Group employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking
of security for funds advances, which is common practice. The Banking Group implements guidelines on the accoptability of
specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The pencipal collateral types for lvans and advances are given in
described in note 44.

In addition, in order to minimise the credit loss, the Banking Group will seck additional collateral from the counterparty as
soon as impairment indicators arc noticed for the relevant individual Joans and advances,
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44. Financial instruments (continned)
(it) Credit-related commitments

‘The primary purpose of these instnyments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required. Guarantees and standby
letters of credit carry the same credit risk as foans. documentary and commercial letters of eredit - which arc written
undertakings by the Banking Group on behalf of a customer authorising a third party to draw drafts on the Banking Group up
to a stipulated amount under specific terts and conditions - are collateralised by the underlying shipments of goods to which
they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direc! loan.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of autherisations to extend credit in the forn of loans, guarantees or
letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Banking Group is potentially exposed to loss
in an amount equal o the fotal unused commitments, However, the likely amomnt of foss is less than the tafal unused
commiitments, as most commitments fo extend credif are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards, The
Banking Group monitors the term to maturity ol credit commitments because longer-term commitments generally have a
greater degree of oredit risk than shoiter-term conumnitments.

Lending to Investments

financial Loans and {debt  Off balance
institutions advancoes securities) sheet items
2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000

At amortised cost
Considered good 108,908 3,234,529 1,542,689 -
Watch list - 169,739 - -
Substandard - 33,432 - -
Doubtful - 24,669 - -
Loss - 317474 - -
Less: Allowance for impairment - (408,934) (12,910) -
Fair valne through OCI/ availuble for sale - - - -
Considered good - - 2,122,672 -
Watch list - - $,083 -
Loss - - - -
Less: Allowance for impairment - - - -
Fair valae throngh prafit and loss - - - -
Considered pood - - 663,215 -
Loss - - - -
Less: Allowance for impairment - - - -
Off balance sheet - - - -
Trade-related contingent labilitics - - - 959,552
Direct credit substitutes - - - 181,307
Transaction-related contingent liabilities - - - 710,717
Fonward contracts — purchase* - - - 2,055,005
Forward coniracts — sale® - - - 1,740,420
Derivatives - Interest rale swaps* - - - 1,524
Derivatives - Cross currency swaps - - - -
FX options — purchased* - - - 4,038
EX options — sold* - - - 4,038
Forward puechase of Governmeut securities* - - - 382,280
Forward sale of Govermnnent securities® - - - -
Other claims, commitinents and contingencies - - - 798,059
108,908 3,370,909 4,324,749 6,836,940

* These represent the notional amouni of the derivatives trade.
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Lending to Investments

financia} Loans and (debt Off balance
institutions advancey securities) sheet items
2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

Ar amortised cost
Considered good 269,750 4,569,481 2,111,553 -
Watch list - - - -
Substandard - 28,335 - -
Doubtful 8,052 24 483 - -
Loss 425 308,512 20,338 -
Less: Allowance for impairment (5,682} (332,781) (£1,262) -
Fair vatue through OCI/ available for sale - - - -
Considered good - - 2,796,188 -
Waich list - - - -
Loss - - 607 -
Less: Allowance for impairment - - 6o -
Fair value through profit and loss - - 221,366 -
Considered good - - - -
Loss - - - -
Less: Allowance for impairment - - - -
Off balaice sheet - - - 1,199,358
Trade-related contingent liabilities - - - 164,656
Direct credit substitutes - - - 1,014,206
Transaction-related contingent liabilities - - - 1,794,251
Forward contracts — purchase¥ - - - 1,503,421
Forward contracts — sele® - - - 18,212
Derivatives - Interest sate swaps* - - - -
Derivatives - Cross country swaps - - - 683
FX options — purchased® - . - 683
FX options — sold* - - - 6,552
Fonward purchase of Gevernment securities® - - - -
Fonward sale of Govemment securities* - - - 137,827
Other claims, commitatents and contingencies - - - -
272,545 4,598,030 5,138,183 5,839,849

* These represent the notional amounnt of the derivatives trade.

The Banking Group has pledged marketable securities amounting to £566 million against repurchase borrowings. The breakup
of these securities has been disclosed in nofo 29.
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The table below sots out the concentration of risk by sector aud by geographical location:

Investments
Investments Tnvestments {deht
(debt (debt  securities)
Cash and  Lending to securities) securities) through off
cash finaneial through through Amortised Other balarnce
equivalents insfitutions Advances FVTPL EFYOC1 cost  nssets sheet items
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £009 £000 £000  £000 £000
Concentration of credit risk
Chemical ﬂl‘ld N ) 62,164 i } 487 726 20,321
pharmacenticals
Agri business - - 393,717 - - - - 22,403
Coammunication - - 14,536 - - - 53,323 38,301
Textile B - 336046 177 313 333 2,487 32,462
Sugar - - 43,320 - - - - 1,375
Shoes and leather ) } 5898 B _ i 407 6,647
garments
T:'m_\sporlatmn R } 4,968 ) oL ) _ .
equipment
Financial 197,066 108,908 299,419 15,170 58,396 7,119 66,331 5,346,675
Efectronics and - - 71346 . : - 2449 5180
electrical appliances
Production and
transmission of - - 866,951 - 12,423 82,330 38,834 469,763
clergy
Paper and allied - - 3,524 - - " 369 7,438
Wholesale traders - B 127,262 - - - 2911 20,193
Fertilizer dealers - - - . - 2,051 - 8,222
Sports goods - - - - - - - -
Food industries - - g1,902 - 2,231 - 487 6,122
Construction - - 176,567 - - - 15,764 4,514
Engineering - - 19,171 - - - 1,218 80,166
Glass and allied - - - - - - - -
Hotels - - 2,656 - B - - [,612
Polyester and fibre - - - - - - - 30,561
Individuais - - 348,230 - T 37,757 - - 12,190
Others including 1,139,275 - 429230 647,869 2,020,633 1437457 10461 643,794

govermment securitics

1,336,341 108,908 3,370,907 663,216 2,131,753 1,529,777 202,817 6,836,939

Concentration by locations

Pakistan opcralions 873,238 98,398 2,356,504 663,216  1,707473 1417813 179,564 4,084,000
Middle East 352,415 - 794,823 - 237,111 6L ELE 22,705 2,382,060
United States of 14,137 - - - 2487 - - B
Amierica

Export processing 172 - 374 - - - 499 12,015
Zones

Europe 93,020 - 122,432 - 3,060 3,444 49 337,942
Affica - 8,659 14,781 - 69,484 17,970 - -
Rest of the world 3,359 1,851 81,993 - 112,138 29,439 - 20,922

1,336,341 108,908 3,370,907 663,216 2,131,753 1,529,777 202,817 6,836,939
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Lending to

financial Loans and Investments Off balance
institutions advances {(debt sccuritics) sheet items
2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

Concentration of credit risk
Chemical and pharmaceulicals - 88,167 756 25,793
Agri business - 56,266 - 235,824
Communication - 184,237 13 82,514
Textile - 700,657 1,440 17,961
Sugar - 104,607 - 75
Shoes and leather gariments - 14,212 - 7,909
Transportation cquipment - 90,627 2,098 18,283
Financial 278,227 311,916 73315 3,463,602
Electronics and efectrical appliances - 32,609 3,117 8,363
Production and {ransmission of encrgy - 1,134,075 112,572 699,612
Paper and allied - 135,386 - 3441
Wholesale traders - 98,931 - 17,997
Fertilizer dealers - 104,636 5,499 10,894
Sports goods - 10,188 - -
Food industries - 517,004 8,153 9,659
Construction - 296,262 626 199,019
Engincering - 137,970 - 108,579
Cilass and allied - 10,090 - 986
Hotels - 177,955 - 175
Polyeslter and fibre - 25,540 - 33,51t
Individuals - 406,079 19,34] 21,352
Others including government securities - 293,907 4,911,253 869,300
278,227 4,930,811 5,138,183 5,839,849

Concentration by loeations

Pakistan operations 197,601 3,673,365 4,370,111 3,051,154
Middie East 59,031 922,839 497,774 2,197,751
United States of America - - - -
Export Processing Zones 8,842 1,290 11,892 15,399
Europe 12,753 313,525 246,657 573,861
" Aftica - 19,792 11,749 1,684
Rest of the World - - - -
278,227 4,530,811 5,138,183 5,839,849

Credif risk measurement

The esttination of credit exposure for risk imanagement purposes is complex and requires the nuse of models, as the risk
associated with exposure varies with changes in market conditions, expected cash flows and the passage of fime. The
assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of asscts entails further estimations as to the likelihood of defautts cceurring, of the
associated loss ratios and of default correlations between counterparties, The Banking Group measures credit risk using
Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss Given Defauit (LGD). This is similar to the approach used
for the purposes of measuring Expecled Credit Loss (ECL) under IFRS &,

Cretdif rafings and P estimation process

The Banking Group’s Credit Risk Departiment operates its intemal rating models for Advances, lending’s to financial
institutions and off-balance sheet obligations. The modols incorporate both qualitalive and quantitative information and, in
addition to information specific to the borrower, utilise supplemental external information that could affect the bomower's
tehavior. PDs for rated portfolios are determined using migration of rating grades from one period fo other within {ie PD
observation period. Consumer lending comprises unsecured personal loans, credit cards and overdrafls. PDs models of these
products are primarily driven by days past due,

For debt securities and balances with banks in the Treasury portiolio, extemal rating agency credit prades are used. The PDs
associated with each prade are determined based on realised default rates as published by the rating agency.

Estimated historical realised default rates are adjusted for IFRS 9 ECL calculations to incorporate forward locking information
and the IFRS stage classification of the exposure. This is repeated for each economic scenario as appropriate.
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The Bauking Graup's internal credit rating grades

Lending fo financial institutions, advances and ({f-baiance sheet ohligations

Internal credit xating

Performing

1-4

5-6

7-9
Non-performing
10-12

Internal credit
rating description
High Grade
Medium Grade
Low Grade

Default

Dbt securities and balances with banks

Ratings Apency's
Internal credit rating Rating (JCR - VIS)

Medium to Long term Ratings Agency's Description
Performing

Highest credit quality. The risk factors are negligible being only shightly

AAA more than for iisk-free Government of Pakistan debt

AAL AA , AA- High cgedit quality._Protcct‘ion factors are stronig. Risk is ll:l(.)dBS[ but may
investment grade vary shght!y fro:}\ fime to u{ne because of sconomic cqndlllOns.

At A A Good credit quality. Profection factors are adequate. Risk factors may vary

T hvith the possible changes in tlie cconomy.
BBEB+. BBB Adequate credit quelity. Protection factors are reasonable and snfficient. Risk
’ factors are considered variable if changes occur in the economy.
BBB- Adequate credit quality. Protection factors are reasonable and sufficient. Risk

\factars are considercd variable if changes occur in the economy.

Obligation deemed likely to he met when due. Protection factors are capable
BB+, BB, BB- of weakening if changes occur in the economy. Overall quality may move up
or down frequently within this category,

Obligations deemed less likely to be met when due, Protection fartare nra
capable of fluctuating widely if changes occur in the economy. Overall

Non-Investment
Grade

Bt B, B- qualily may move up or down frequently within this category or into higher
or lower rating grade.
Non-performing
ICansiderable uncertainty exists towards obligations when due. Protection
cce b .
factors are scarce, and risk may be substantial.
[Loss CcC A high default risk.
Cc very high default risk.
D Defaulted obligations.

Expected credif loss measurement

IFRS 9 outlines a *three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised
below:

- A financial instrument that is not credit-impnired on initial recoguition is classified in *Stage 1’ and has its eredit risk
continuously menitored by the Banking Group.

- If a significani increase in credit risk (‘SICR") since initial recognition is identificd, the financial instrument is moved to
*Stage 2° but s not yei deemed to be credit-impaired.

- If the financial instryment is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to *Stage 3°.

- Financial instruments in Stage { have their ECL measured at an amount squal to the potfion of lifelime expected credit losses
that result from default events possible within the next 12 months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL. measured based
on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

- A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with IFRS 9 is that it shouid cousider forward- iooking information.

- Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial assels that are credit- inmpaired on initial
recognition. Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis (8tage 3).

Fusther explanation is also provided of how the Banking Group determines appropriate groupings when ECL is measured on
a collective basis,
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Significant increase in eredit rish (SICR)

The Banking Group continuously monitors all assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether an instrumeat or a portfolio
of instruments is subject to twelve months expeoted credit luss or lifetime expocted credit loss, the Banking Group assesses
whether there has been a significant inerease in credit risk since initial recognition, The Banking Group has established a policy
ta perform an assessinent, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased
stgnificantly since initial recognition.

Significant increase in oredit risk is measured by comparing the risk of default estimated at origination with the risk of default
at reporting date. The Banking Group also applies a secondary qualitative method for triggering a significant increase in credit
risk for an asset, such as moving a customer/facility to the watch lisi, or the account becoming forbome. Regardless of the
change in credit grades, if contracteal payments are more than 60 days past due in case of corporate advances and 30 days past
dug in case of retail advances and other financial assets subject to impairment, the credit risk is deemed to have increased
significantly since initial recognition.

As per IFRS 9 there is a rebuttable presumption that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments arc more than 30 days past due, however the Banking Group has cartied out an analysis
of corporate advances whereby the Banking Group has monitored repayment behavior of those corporate customers who were
in the bucket of 30-60 days past due at any {ime during the year ended 30 Junc 2019 and observed that majority of such
customers pay back before 90 days and therefore, do not ultimately fall under default category.

Definition of default and credit-impaired assels

The Banking Group considers a financial instrument delaulicd and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL caloulations in
all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its confraciual payments or when the entity is rated at ORR 10 or
above or CCC/ CC as at the assessment date. As a part of a qualitative asscssment of whetfier a customer is in default, the
Banking Group also considers a variety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness o pay, When such events cocur, the Banking,
Group carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore aszessed as Stage
3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.

Meusuring ECL - Explanation af inputs, assumptions and estimation techniqies

“The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured on either a 12-month (12M) or Lifctime basis depending on whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired. Expecied
credit losses are the discounted product of the Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD), end Loss Given Default
(1.GD), defined as follows:

- The PD represents the Jikelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per “Definition of default and credit-
impaired” sbove), sither over the next 12 menths (12M PD), or over the remaining tifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

- The EAD is an estimate of the exposurc at a future default date, considering expected changes in the exposure aller the
reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or othenwise, expected
drawdowns on committed Facilities, and accrued interest from missed paynents. The EAD represcuts the gross camrying amount
of the financial instruments subject to the impairment calculation, addressing both the client’s abilily fo increase its exposure
while approaching default and potential early repayments teo. The EADs are determined based on the expected payment
profite, which varies by product type. Far amortising products and bullet repayment Joans, this is based an the contractual
répayments owed by the borrower over the 12 months and lifetime basis. This is also adjusted for any overpayments made by
the borrewer. For revolving products, the EAD is predicted by 1aking current drawn balance and adding a credit conversion
factor which allows for the expected drawdown of the remaining limit by the time of default.

The maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the contractual life of a financial instrument unless the
Banking Group has the logal right to call it earlier. The Banking Group's product offering includes a variety of corporate and
retail eredit cards fecilities, in which the Banking Group has the right to cancel and/or rednce the facilities with one day’s
notice. However, in case of credit cards, the Banking Group does not limit its exposure to credit losses to the contractual notice
period, bul, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the Banking Group's expectations of the customer behaviour, its
likelikood of defoult and the Banking Group’s fsture risk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling
the facilities. Based on past experience and the Banking Group’s expectations, the period aver which the Banking Group
calcnlates ECLs for credit card, is till the date of validity of credit card.

To calculate the EAD for a Stage 1 loas, the Banking Group assesses the possible default evenis within 12 months for the
calculation of the 12 months ECL. For Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI financial assets, the exposure at default is considered for
events over the lifetime of the instruments.
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- LGD is au estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at o given time, [tis based on the difference betwoon
the cantractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral.
it is nsually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

Banking Group calculates [,GG1) rates and these LG rates take into account the EAD for historical pool of nan-performing
loans in comparison to the amount recovered or realised against such loans. In determinin g £.GDs, the Banking Group considers
all eligibic coilateral provided the collateral can be legally enforced. Due to the complexities involved regarding collateral
realisation and lack of historical experience to demonstrate recoveries through realisation of coflaterals, the Banking Group
resiricls the expected recoveries (to be considered in LGD computations) based on ils historical recovery experiences.

LGDs for corporate and retail portfolio is caleulated using the actual historical recaverics on its defaulted portfolia over a
period ol at least 5 years prior to the assessment date. The historical defauils are taken For the different vintages and the
recoveries are caloulated and discounted back for that particular vintage. The recovery period / crystallisation period is not
defined as such and will change based on the vintages taken.

L.GDs for investment portfolio has been fixed at 45% as per the Basel guidelines. This approach is followed due io the
complexities involved with respect 1o collateral realisation and lack of sufficient historical data points to demonstrate recoverics
through realisation of collatersl.

PD, EAD and LGD are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.¢. the exposure has not prepaid or
defaulted in earlier year) on annual basis, This effectively caloulates an ECL for each future year, which is then discounted
back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate used in ECL computatton is the original effective interest rate or an
approximation thercof.

Forward looking economic information is also inchided in determining the (2 months and lifetime ECL. The Banking Group
has performed histosical analysis and identified key economic variables impacting oredit risk and ECL for each portfolic. These
economic variables and their assaciated impact on PD, EAD and LGD vary by finencial instrument. Exper! judgement has glsa
been applied in this process, Foreeast of these economic variables (the “base economic scenario™) are obtained from external
sources on a quasterly basis.

In addition to the basc economic scenario, the management abso estimate ofher possible scenarios along with scenarios
weigliting, The scenario weightig is determined by an expert credit judgement. As with any cconomic forecasts, the
projections and likelilicods of the ocourrence are subject 1o a high degree of inherent uncertainty and thercfore the actual
outeomes may be significantly different to those projected. The Banking Group considers these cstimates of the possible
outeomes. The Banking Group has used base, upside and downside scenarios for its ECL estination,

Forward-looling information incorporated in the ECL models

‘The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate forward-looking information. The Banking Group has
performed historical analysis and identificd the key cconomic variables impacting credif risk and expected credit losses for
each portfolio,

In its ECL models, the Banking Group relics on a range of forward looking information on a geographic regions basis with
economic inputs, such as:

- GDP growth

- Consumer Price Index
- Export growth

- Unemployment

Analysis of inputs to the ECL model under multiple econontic scenarios per geographic regions

To ensuee completeness and accuracy, the Banking Group obtains the data used from third party sources i.c., publications of
Intemational Monetary Fund and verifies the accuracy of inputs to the Banking Group' ECL models including determining the
weights attributable to the multiple scenarios. The following tables set out the key drivers of expecicd loss and the assumplions
used for the Banking Group's base case estimate, ECLs based on the base case, plus the offect of the use of multiple economic
scenarios for each of the geographical segments, as at 1 July 2018 and 30 June 2019,

The tables show the values of the key forward looking econnmic variables/assumptions used in cach of the economic scenarios
for the ECL calculations.
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Region Pakistan
30 Juue 2019
Key drivers

GD?P growth %

Consumer price index %

Volume of exports of goods %

1 July 2018
Key drivers

GDP growth %

Unemployment rates %

Consumer price index %

Volume of exports of goods %

Region United Kingdom
30 June 2019

Key drivers

GDP growth %

1 July 2018
Key dnivers

GDP growth %

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

Upside
Base case
Downside

Upside
Rase case
Diownside

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

Upside
Base case
Downside

Upside
Base case
Downside

Upside
Base casc
Downside

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

Assigned
Probabilities
%

5%
60%
3%

5%
60%
35%

5%
60%
35%

Assigned
Probabilities
%o

5%
60%
35%

5%
60%
35%

2%
60%
35%

5%
0%
35%

Assigned
Probabilitics
%

10%
80%
10%

Assigned
Probabilities
%a

10%
80%
10%

2019
Yo

2017

2019

1.7
1.2
0.6

2017
%

L7
17
1.7
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2020 2021 2022 2023
% % % %
34 3.4 33 3.2
2.8 28 2.7 26
2.2 22 2.1 2.0
92 72 T2 72
7.0 5.0 50 5.0
4.8 2.8 2.8 238
123 2.9 9.4 8.5
6.3 39 34 25
0.3 -2.0 26 -34
2018 2019 2020 2021
% % % %
6.1 4.3 38 38
5.8 4.0 3.5 3.5
5.5 37 32 3.1
6.1 6.2 6.2 0.3
6.1 6.1 6.2 63
6.0 6.1 6.2 6.2
72 107 9.7 82
39 7.5 6.5 50
0.7 4.2 32 138
15.5 17.2 133 10.2
118 13.6 97 6.5
8.2 9.9 60 29
2020 2021 2022 2023
% Y% % %
2.0 2.1 2.1 22
14 1.5 i6 1.6
0.8 1.0 1.0 1.0
2018 2019 2020 2021
% % % %
1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0
14 1.5 1.5 1.6
0.9 1.0
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Reygion Switzerland

30 June 2619
Key drivers

GDP growth %

L Juty 2018
Key drivers

GDP growth %

Region UAE
30 June 2019
Key drivers

GDP growth %

1 July 2018
Key drivers

GDP growth %

Region Bahrain
30 June 2019
Key dyvivers

GDP growth %

1 July 2018
Key drivers

GDP growth %

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

ECL

Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Dowaside

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

Assigned
Probabilities
Yo

10%
80%
10%

Assigned
Probabilities
%

L7
1.7
1.7

Assigned
Probabilities
%

30%%
40%
30%

Assigued
Probabilities
%

30%
40%
30%

Assigned
Probabilities
Y%

30%
40%
30%

Assigned
Probabilities
%

30%
16%
30%

2019
%

2017

35

2.6

2019
%

4,0

28
1.6

2018
%

2018
%

3.2

2.2

Bestway Group Limited

Registered nnmber 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

2020 2021 2022 2023
% Yo % %
21 22 22 22
L5 1.6 1.6 1.6
1.0 1o L0 1.0
2018 2019 2020 2021
% % % %
23 22 2.1 1.7
1.8 1.7 L7 1.7
14 1.2 12 1.7
2020 2021 2022 2023
% % Y %
4.5 4.2 4.1 4.0
33 3.0 29 28
2.1 1.8 1.7 16
2619 2020 2021 2022
% % % %
4.6 4.4 4.3 43
34 32 3.1 31
22 20 19 1.9
2020 2021 2022
% Y %
2.5 25 2.6
335 3.5 3.6
1.5 1.5 1.6
2019 2020 2021 2022
% % % %
2.6 25 2.5 26
3.6 35 3.8 3.6
1.6 1.5 1.5 1.6
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44, Financial instruments (confinued)

Region Qatar
30 June 2019

Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003303

Annual report and financial slatements
For the year ended 30 Junc 2019

Key drivers ECL Asslgned
Scenarie  Probabilities 2019 2020 2021 2022
% % Y% % Y%
GDP growth %
Upside 30% 2.8 2.6 2.7 2.9
Base case 40% 4.0 38 39 4.1
Downside 0% 1.6 1.4 1.5 1.7
1 Juky 2018
Key drivers ECL Assigned
Scenario Probabilities 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
% % % % Yo %
GDP growth %
Upside 30% 2.7 2.8 2.6 2.7 29
Base case 40% 3.9 4.0 3.3 3.9 4.1
Downside 30% 1.5 1.6 1.4 1.5 1.7
Following tables ouitline the impact of multiple scenarios on the allowanee:
Region - Palistan
30 June 2019
£000 Balances Debt
with Debt Instruments Lending  Small
other Instruments at Amortised and Business Consumner
banks at IVOCI Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances Tatal
Upside (5%) 10 23 160 7,200 - - 31 7 7431
Base case (66%) 148 281 1,916 89,441 - - 528 {712 92486
Downside (35%) 105 164 1,118 55,165 - - 499 201 57,252
Total 263 468 3,194 151,866 - - 1,058 380 157,169
1 July 2018
£000 Debt
Balances Debt [nstruments st Lending Smal!
with other Instruments Amortised and Business Consamer
banks at FVOCI Cost Advances Lending  Lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) 6 30 206 9,393 - - 61 22 9718
Base case (60%) 87 363 2477 117,797 - - 1,015 477 122,216
Downside (35%) 55 212 1446 81872 - - 1,516 945 86,056
Tola] 158 605 4,129 209,062 - - 2,592 1,444 217,990
Region - United Kingdom
30 Jome 2019
£000 Balances Debt
with Debtiustruments at Lending  Small
other [nstruments  Amortised and Business Consumer
banks at FVOCI Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) 9 848 - 1,007 - - - - 1,864
Base case (60%%) 88 7,795 - 8,796 - - - - 17,679
Downside (35%) 13 1,126 - 1478 - - - - 2617
Total 110 9,769 - 12,281 - - - - 22,160
1 July 2018
£00p Balances Debt Debt Lending  Small
vith other Instruments Instruments at and Business Consumer
banks at FVOCIAmortised Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances Tatal
Upside (5%) y 164 193 2,684 - - . - 3241
Base case (60%) 1 2,136 3392 23,802 - - - - 29331
Downside (35%) - 426 468 3,323 - - - - 4,217
Totsl 1 2,126 4,253 29,809 - - - - 36,789
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44. Financtal instruments (continued)

Region - Switzerland
30 June 2019

Bestway Group Limited
Repistered number 11003305

Annual repart and financial statements

Far the year ended 30 June 2019

£000 Balanc Debt
es with Debt Instruments Lending  Small
other Insiroments at Amortised and Business Consumer
banks at FYOCI Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Accepfances Total
Upside (5%) 13 - 275 s - - - - 293
Base ease (60%) 215 - 2,574 57 - - - - 2,846
Downside (35%) 53 - 373 11 - - - - 439
Total 281 - 3,224 73 - - - - 3,578
I July 2018
£000 Baiances Debt
with Debt Instruments at  Lending  Smell
otherlnstruments at ~ Amortised and Business Consumer
banks FvocCl Cost Advances Leading Lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%} 7 - 10 3z . - - - 49
Base case (60%) 138 - 116 315 - - - - 569
Downside (35%) 38 - 20 48 - - - - 106
Total 183 - 146 395 - - - - 724
Repgion - Qatar
30 June 2019
£009 Ralances Debt
with Debi Instruments Leading  Small
other Instruments at Amortised and Business Consumer
banks at FVQCI Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances Totnal
Upside (5%) - 50 129 12,521 - - 68 - 12,768
Base case (60%) - 67 172 16,694 - - o1 - 17,024
Downside (35%) - SU 124 14,5241 - - bY - 12,788
Total - 167 430 41,736 - - 227 - 42560
1 July 2048
£000 Ralances Debt
with Debtlnstruments at  Lending Small
other [nstruments  Amortised and Business Consumer
baunks at FVOCI Cost Advances Lending  Lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) - 147 49 3414 - - 20 - 3,630
Base case (00%) - 195 65 4,553 - - 27 - 4,840
Downside (35%) - 147 49 3414 - - 20 - 3,630
Total - 489 163 11,381 - - 67 - 12,100
Region - Bahrain
30 June 2019
£000 Balances Debt
with Debt  Instruments Lending Small
other Instruments at Amortised and Business Consumer
banks at FYOCI CostAdvances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptarces Total
Upside (5%) - 348 124 866 - - 108 - 1,446
Base case {60%) - 464 165 1,154 - - 144 - 1,927
Downside {(35%) B 348 124 866 - - 108 - 1,446
Total - 1,160 413 2,886 - - 360 - 4,819
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44, Financial instruments (continned)

1 July 2018

Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 15003305

Aunnual report and financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2019

£000 Debt
Balances Debt Instruments Lending  Small
with other Instruments at at Amortised and Business Consumer
banks FVOCl1 Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances  Total
Upside (5%) - 370 92 878 - - 54 - 1,394
Base case (60%) - 493 [22 1,171 - - 72 “ 1,858
Downside (35%) - 370 92 878 - . 54 - 1,394
Total - 1,233 306 2,927 - - 180 - 4,646
Region - UAE
30 June 2019
£606 Debt
Balances Debt Instrumtents Lending Small
with other Instruments at Amoertised and Business Consumer
banks  at FVOCI Cost Advances Lending Lending Untunded Acceptances  Total
Upside (5%) 12 854 1,654 55,386 - - 238 - 58,204
Hase case (60%) 103 1,220 2256 74,166 . - 352 - 78,097
Dawaside 33 985 1,738 55,902 - - 303 - 59011
(35%)
Total 258 3,059 5,648 185,454 - - 893 - 195312
1 uly 2018
£000 Balances Debt Debt Lending Small
with other Instruments Instruments at and Business Consumer
banks at FVOCIAmortised Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances  Total
Upside (5%) 133 583 1,566 49483 - - 785 - 52,550
Base case (60%) 178 841 2,125 66,464 - - 1,447 - 71,655
Downside (35%) 133 686 1,627 50,272 - - 1,530 - 54248
Total 444 2,110 5,318 166,219 - - 3,762 - 177,853

Grouping of instruments for losses measured on a collective basis

"For expected credit loss provisions modellied on a callective basis, a grouping of exposures is performed on the basis of shared
risk characteristics, such that risk exposures within a group are homogencous, In performing this grouping, there must be
sufficient information for the group to be statistically credible. Where sufficient information is not available iuternally, the
Banking Group has considered benchmarking intemal / external supplementary data to use for modelling purposes. The

characleristies and any supplementary data used to determine groupings are outlined betow:

Region - Palistan

-Gbligors Risk Rating

Corporate, Commercial and SME

Retail

-Product Basis

{Personal Loans, Auto Loans, Credit Cards, Agricuitural Loans and

Housec Loans)

Switzerland
Corporate
-External Ratings

Region - United Kingdom and

Consumeyr Loans
“Individuals

Retail Exposure
-Oblipors Risk Rating

Region - UAE, Qatar and Bahrain

Non-Refail Exposure
-Individuals
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Notes (continued)

44, Financial instruments (contined)

Exposure fo credit risk

Maxisnicat exposure to credit risk - Financial instruments subject to impairment

The analysis of the credit risk exposure of financial instruments for which an ECL allowance is recoguised is disclosed in their
rospective notes. The gross carrying amount of these financial assets also represents the Group's maximum exposute to credit
1isk on these assets. The disclosure is in the notes as per the following:

Financial Assets Note reference
Lending to financial institutions and advances 31
Investments in financial assets 29
Off balance sheet obligations 34
Cash and cash equivalents 32

Maxinuem exposure to credit risk - Fipancial instriments not subject to impairment

The following information lists the maxinwm credit risk exposure from financial assets nat subjest to impairment:

Maximum

Exposure to

Risk

£000

Drebt investments at fair value through profit and loss 663,215
Equity investments- Initially designated at fair value through profit and toss 72,214
Equity investments- [nitially desigrated at fair value through OCI 6,303
741,734

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The umount and type of collateral required depends on an assossment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are in
place covering the acceptabilily and valuation of each type of collateral.

The main types of collaternl obtained are, ns follows:

Exposure Collateral
Securities fending and
Teyerse repurchase Cash or securities.
Iransactions
Carporste and small
business lending
Retail lending Mortgages over residential properties, charge over vehicles and cash collaterals.

Charges over real estate properties, govemment guarantees, cash or othier liquid collaterals.

The tablies below show the maximum exposure to credit 1isk by class of financial assst. They also show the total fair value of
collateral and the net exposure to credit risk.
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44. Financial instruments (contfinned)

Type of Collateral and Credit Enhancement
Fair Value of Collateral and Enhancements held

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

30 June 2019
Maximum
exposure
to credit Government Total Net Associated
In £000 rishk Cash Securitics puarantees Real Estate  Others Collateral Exposure ECL
Balances with
Other Banks 210 B i - - - - 210 !
Loans and
Advances to 3,780 106 14 784 244 29 £,177 2,603 409
Cuostomers
Lending 1o
Financial 109 - - - - - - 109 -
institutions
4,099 106 14 784 244 29 1,177 2,922 410
Debt
instruments at 1,543 - 2 75 - - 77 1,465 13
amortised cost
Total financial
assets at 5,642 106 16 859 244 29 1,254 4,388 423
amortised cost
Debt
instruments at 2,132 ) ) } . ) B 2,132 (s
fair value
through OCI
7,774 106 16 859 244 29 1,254 6,520 438
Otheer 1920 56 . - ! - 57 1,863 2
commitnients
9,694 162 16 359 245 19 1,311 8,383 440
Fair Value of Collateral and Enhancements held
30 June 2018
Maximtin
exposure {o Govermnmment Total Net Associated
1o £000 credit risk  Cash  Securities  guarantces  Real Estate  Othors  Collateral Lixposure ECL
Balances with
Other Banks 153 ) - ) ) ) ) 153 !
Loaris aid
Advanges fo 3,817 132 9 1,029 294 34 1,498 2,319 338
Customers
Lending to
Financial 215 - - - - - - 215 4
institutions
4,185 132 9 1,029 204 34 1,408 2,687 343
Debt
instruments at 1,645 - i 56 - - 57 1,588 i
antortised cost
Total financial
assets at 5,830 [32 10 1,085 294 34 1,555 4,275 354
amortised cost
Debt
in.strumcnts at 2182 ) ) _ B ; R 2,182 6
fair value ’
through OC1
8,012 132 18] 1,085 294 34 1,355 6,457 360
Other i 1,956 34 . - 6 27 67 1,889 6
comntitments
9,968 166 10 1,085 300 61 1,622 8,346 366
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Notes (continued)
44, Financial instrwnents (continned)

Loss allowarnce

- Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3 due io financial instruments experiencing significant increases (or
decreases) of credit risk or becoming credit-impaired in the period, and the consequent “step up” (or “stop down™)
between 12-month and Life

- Additional allowances for new financial instruments recognised during the period, as well as releases for fnanoial
instruments de-recognised in the period;

- lmpact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in PDs, ZADs and LGDs in the period, arising from regular
refreshing of inputs to madels; :

- Impacts on the measurement of ECL due to changes made to models and assumptions;

- Discount unwind within ECL due to the passage of time, as ECL is measured on a present value basis;

- Foreign exchange retranslations for assets denotninated in foreign currencies and other movements; and

- Financial assets derecognised during the period and writc-offs of allowances related to Assats that were written off
during the period.

The changes in the loss allowance between the beginning and the end of the annual periods due to the above factors and the
significant changes in the gross carrying amount of financial assels that contributed to changes in the loss allowance is disclosed
in their respective notes as follows:

Financial asscts Note reference
Lending lo financial institutions and advances 3
Investments in financial assets 29
Off balance sheet obligations 34

Write off policy

The Banking Group writes off financial asscts, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted 2ll practical recovery offorts and has
concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
inchude (i) coasing enforcement activity and (i) where the Banking Group’s recovery method is foreclosing on collateral and
the value of the collateral is such that there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the residual exposure
in full.
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Notes (continueid)

44, Financial instvuments (continted)
(&) Markei risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will flucmate due to movements in market prices. It results
from changes in interest rates, exchange rates and equity prices as well as from changes in the correlations botween them, Each
of these components of market risk consists of a general market risk and a specific market risk that is driven by the nature and
composition of the portfolio.

Measuring and controlling market risk is nsually carricd out at a portfolio level. However, cortain contiols are applied, where
ttecessary, to individual risk types, to particular books and to specific exposures. Controls are alsa applied to preven( any undue
risk concentrations in trading books, taking into account variations in price, volatility, market depth and liguidity. These
conirels include limits on exposurs to individual market risk variables as well as fimits on concentrations of fenors and issuers.

Trading activities are cantored in the Treasury and Capital Marksts Group which facilitates clients and also rans proprictary
positions. The Group is active in the caslt and derivative markets for equity, interest ratc and foreign exchange.

The Market and Treasury Risk division performs market risk management activities, Within this division, the Market Risk
Management unit is responsible for the development and review of market risk policies and processes, and is involved in
research, financial modelling and testing / implementation of risk management systems, while Treasury Middle Office is
respensible for implementation and monitoring of market risk end other policies, escalation of deviations fo senior
managemenl, and management information system reporting.

The functions of the Market Risk Managetment unit are as follows:

+  to keep the market risk exposure within the Group’s risk appetite as assigned by the Board of Directors.

» to develop, review and upgrade procedures for the effective implementation of market risk management policies approved
by the Board of Directors.

+ foreview new product proposals and propose / recommend / approve procedures for the management of their market risk.
Vearious limits are assigned to different businesses on A product/portfolio basis. The products are approved through product
programs, where risks are identified, and limits and parameters are set. Any transactions / products falling outside these
product programs are approved through separate transaction / product memos.

® to maintain a comprehensive database for performing risk analysis, Stress testing and scenario analysis. stress testing
activities are performed on a quarterly basis on both the Banking and Trading books.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign Exchange Risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates, Exposures are monitored by currency to ensure that they remain within the established limits for each curreney.
Exposures are also monitored on an overall basis to ensure compliance with the Group’s S8BP approved Foreign Exchange
Exposure Limil for Banking Group.

The Banking Group is an active participant in the cash and derivatives markets for currencies and carries currency risk fron
these trading activities, conducted primarily by the Treasury and Capital Markets Group (TCM). These trading exposures are
monitored through prescribed stress tests and sensitivity analyscs.

The Banking Gronp's local reporting currency is the Pakistan Rupee, but its assets, liabilitics, income and expenses are

denominated in raultiple currencies and converted to Pakistani Rupee. From time to time, TCM proactively hedges foreign
currency exposures resulting from its market making activities, subjeci to pre-defined fimits.
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Notes (continied)

44, Financial instruments ¢(continaed)

Off- Net Net
balance currency Off-balance currency
Assets  Llabilitics sheetitems exposore Assets  Liabilities sheefitems  exposure
2019 2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Pakistan 7,502,677 (5,4
Rupee /502, (6,423,993) (347,769) 730915 9369240 (8,101,010) (300974} 967,256
US Dollar 1,198,181  (882273) (311,888) 4,020 1,570,243 (991,339) (599,793)  (20,889)
]S):::'llli(tilg 332,058  (350,052) 94,045 76,951 274,750 (327,734) 129260 76,276
i,“gf“e“ 207 G0 72) 85 157 “0) (74) 43
Bure 19,506 (49,558} 30,180 128 31,833 (82,175) 51,304 962
UAE Ditham 596,675 (1,045,688) 446,218  (5,795) 598,766 (1,211,324) 612,011 (547)
g’;‘s:"“ 66,056  (129,054) 63,315 317 73000 (140,720) 69,999 2,369
Qatari Riyal 112,176 (149,090) 35506 (LA08) 151,047 (176,931) 22,518 (3,366)
8"‘_‘” . 91,440  (33,661) (9,535) 48,244 113,796 (92,183) 15,749 37,362

UITENCIES

9,919,876  (9,066,419) - 853,457 12,182,922 (11,123 456) - 1,059,466

Seusitivity analpsis

The effect of different levels of impact in the exchange rates would have following impact on the equity of the Banking Group.
This analysis assumes that ail other variables, in parlicular interest rates, remain constant,

Magnitude of impact (%) 20% 30% 50%
Net foreign impact (£million) 122.54 122.54 122.54
Laoss on excliange rate change (£ million) (24.31} (36.76) ©1.27)
Tax adjusted loss (£ million) (14.95) (22.43) (37.38)

(1) Equity position risk

Equity position risk is the risk that the fair value of a (inancial instrument will flucinate due to changes in the prices of individual
stocks or the levels of equity indices. The Bank’s equity book comprises of TVPL and FYOCI portfolios. The objective of the
FVPL porifolio is to make short-lerm capital gains, whilst the FVOCI porifolio is maintained with a medium-term view of
caiming both capital gains and dividend lncome. Praduct program manuals have been developed to provide guidelines on the
objectives and policies, risks and mitigants, fimits and controls for the equily portfolios of the Group.

2019
£000
Impact of 5% change in equity prices on,
Income slatemment
+5% change 3,611
-5% cheage (3.611)
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Notes (continued)

44, Financial instruments (continned)
() Yield / interest risk
Mismatch of interest rate sensitive assets and Labilities

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value of a financial instrument will fuctuate as a result of changes in interest rates, including
changes in the shape of yield curves. Interest rate risk is inherent in maay of the Group's businesses snd arises from mismatches
between the contractual malurities or the re-pricing of on and off-balance sheet assets and labilities. The intersst rate scasitivity
profile is prepared on a quarterly basis based oa the re-pricing or contractual maturities of assets and liabilitics.

Interest rate risk is monitored and managed by performing periodic gap analysis, sensitivity snabysis and stress testing and
taking appropriate actions where required.

The table belovy discloses the mismatch between contraciual maturities snd re-pricing of cash flows of on asseis and lisbilities
in the statement of financial position:

Non-interest-

Over 1 Over 2 bearing
On balance sheet Effective yicld Uptol yearto2 yearsto5 Over 5 financial
financial instruments / interest rate Total year years years years  instruments
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
Yo £600 £000 £400 £000 £000 £000
Assets
Cash and bulances with 0.509%-0.90% 1,336,390 287,005 . . - 1,049,335
treasury banks
Lending Lo financial 5.60%-10.50% 108907 107,172 - LS : .
institutions
Investments 7.30%-8.70% 4,403,269 2,548,186 330,542 804,726 605,869 113,946
Advances 6.30%-9.60% 3370909 3,245726 5,858 21,663 26,770 70,892
Other assets 202816 - - - - 202,816
9422241 6,188,089 336,400 828,124 632,639 1,436,989
Linbilities
Bills payable 143,386 - - . . 143,886
Borrowings 3.40%-4.60% 1,143,559 995,093 113,342 - - 35,124
ﬂ‘;’;‘f}:: and other 2.50%-4.30% 7408,801 3,964,901 126871 0,170 77,570 3,169,289
Subordinated Debt 10.20%-12.10% 49202 48,152 - - - 1,050
Payable to investors of _ . .
UBL Funds 9,336 9,536 )
Other liabilities 198,245 20,094 - - - 178,151
8953229 5037776 240,213 70,170 77,570 3,527,500
On balance sheet gap 469,002 1,150313 96,187 757,954 555,069 (2,090,511)
Net non-financial assets 384,442
e ————
Tatal net nssets 853;454
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44. Financial instruments (contined)

Off-balance sheet
financial instruments

Interest rate long
derivatives

Interest rate short
derivalives

Cross currency long swap
Cross currency short swap
Foreign currency forward
purchases

Foreign currency forward
sales

FX options - purchased
FX options - sold

Forward purchase of
government securities
Forward sale of govemment
securities

Off-balance sheet gap

Total yield / interest rate risl sensitivity gap

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Aunual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 Junc 2019

Cum yield / Interest rate risk sensitivity gap

On balance shee! financial
instruments

Assets

Cash and balances with
treasury banks

Balances with other banks
Lending to financial
institutions

Invesiments

Advances

Other assets

Liabilities

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and otlier accounts
Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease
Payable to investors of UBL
funds

Other liabilitics

On balance sheet gap
Net non-financial assets

Total net assets

Fair  Notional Non-interest-
value value Total Exposed to yield / interest rate bearing
financial
Up to 1 year 1-2years 2-5ycars >3 years instruments
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000¢ £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1,524 - 1,524 - -
(96) 1,524
(1,524) (1,524) - - - -
2,055,005 2,055,005 - - - - 2,055,005
34,281

(1,740,420) (1,740,420} - - - - (1,740,420)
4,038 4,038 - - - - 4,038
(4,038) (4,038) - - - - (4,038)
158 382280 382,280 - - - - 382,280
696,865 (1,524) 1,524 - - 696,865
1,165,874  1,148789 97,711 757,954 555,069 (1,393,649)
~ 1,148,789 1,246,500 2,004,454 2,559,523 1,165,874
Non-interest
Over 2 bearing
Effective yield / Upto | Over ] year yearsfo5 Over S financial
interest rate Total year o2 years years yonrs instuments
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
% £000 L£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
0.07% 1,030,647 58,803 - - - 971,844
3% 197,368 104,991 - - - 92377
5% 272,545 256,493 5,942 10,119 - -
7% 5,304,883 2,439,158 901,233 1,064,381 733,301 166,810
6% 4,598,032 4,422,334 44,613 64,308 49,859 16,868
- 242,237 - - - - 242237
11,645,712 7,281,829 951,788 1,138,799 783,160 1,490,130
- 96,844 - - - - 96,844
5% 1,865,759 1,706,042 132,192 23,811 - 3,714
3% 8,683,862 4,608,787 56,378 72,625 96,127 3,789,945
3% 75 15 - - - -
- 7487 7,487 - - - -
- 423,755 - - - - 423,755
11,077,782 6,382,391 188,570 96,436 96,127 4,314,258
567,930 899438 761,218 1,042363 GR7,033  (2,824,122)

491,336

1,059,466
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44, Finaucial instruments {continued)

Off-balance sheet financial Fair  Notional - . L Non-interest
instaiments valye value Total Exposed to yield / interest rate bearing
) financial
Uptlo )l year 1-2yemrs 2-5years > 5 years instruments
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
yfr‘:; o \f::’ foug 18212 18212 - - - -
Interest rate short 163 18,212 13212 (18212
derivatives (18,212) 212) - - - -
Cross currency long swap - - - - - -
Cross currency short swap - - - - - -
Foreign cusrency forward 1,794,251 1,794,251 1794251 ; . ; .
purchases 6.009
Foreipn currency forward ?
alon (1,503.421)(1,503,421) (1,503.421) . - y -
FX options - purchased ) 683 683 683 - - - -
FX options - sold (683) {683) (683) - - - -
Forward purchase of
Govemment securifies (@4 6,552 6,552 6,352 ) ) ) )
Farward sale of
Govermnntent sccurifics ) ) ) ) ) ) ) B
Off-balance sheet gap 297,382 297382 - - - -
Total yield / interest rale risk sensitivity gap 865,312 1,196,820 763,218 1,042363 687,033 (2,824,122)
Cum yield / interest rate risk sensitivity gap - 1,196,820 1,960,038 3,002,401 3,689,434 865,312

Sensitivity analysis

The effect of different levels of impact in the interest rate applicable as of the balance sheet date would have following impact
on the equity of the Group. This analysis assumes that alf other variables remain constant. This analysis is performed at Group
level.

Magnitude of impact (%) 2% 3% 4%
Total assets of the Bank - (£ miifion) 1.169 1,169 1,169
Net fall in market value of equity - (£ million) (23) (35 “@7)
Tax Adjusted Loss - (£ million) (i4) D 29
(o) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Banking Group may be unable {o meet its obligations or to fund increases in assets as they
fal} due without incurring unacceptable cost or losses.

The Assets and Liability Management Committee (ALCO) of the Banking Group is responsible for the oversight of liquidity
management and meets on a monthly basis or more frequently, if required.

The Banking Group's approach ta liquidity management is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficiont
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both nommal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking sustained damage to business franchises. A centralised approach is adopted, based on an integrated [ramework
incorpurating an assessment of all material known and expected cash flows aad the availability of collateral which ¢ould be
used to scoure additiona! fanding if required, The framework entails careful monitoring and control of the daily liquidity
position, and regular liquidity stress testing under a varicty of scenartos. These encompass both normal and stressed market
conditions, including general market crises and the possibility that access fo markets could be impacted by a stress event
affecting some part of the Banking Group’s business.
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Annual report and financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Maturities of assets and liabilities - based on confractual muturity of the assets and liabilities of the Banking Group

The maturity profile presented below has been prepared on the hasis of contractual maturities, except for products that do not
have a contractual maturity which are shown in the first bucket.

30 June 19

Assets

Cash and balances with treasuty banks
Balances with other banks

Lending to financial institutions
Investments

Advances

Other finonoial assets

Liabilities

Biils payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Sub-ordinated loans

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Payable to investars of UBL Funds

Other financial liabilities

Net inflow / (cutflow)

30 June 2018

Assets

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Baiances with other banks

Lending to financial instifutions
Investments

Advances
Other financial assets

Lizbilities

Bills payable

Borrowings

Dreposits and other accounts

Liabilities agains! assets subject to finance lcase

Payable lo investors of UBL Funds
Other financial liabilities

Net inflow / (outflow)

Over 2

Carrying Over 1 year yearsto$
amount Up to 1 year to 2 years vears Over 5Syears
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1,126,288 1,126,288 - - -
210,053 210,053 - - -
108,907 98,372 - 10,535 -
4403268 2,460,549 363,437 698,579 280,703
3,370,909 1,665,740 216,926 731,213 757,030
384,930 360,488 - - 24,442
9,604,355  3,921490 580,363 1,440327 1,662,173
143,886 143,886 - - -
1,141,474 967,260 63,641 12,494 98,079
7,408,801 7,109,108 141,890 137,178 20,625
49,202 - - - 49,202
9,536 9,536 - - -
313,521 282,368 21,154 - 9,999
8922534 8368272 226,685 149,672 177,905
681,821  (2,446,782) 353,678 1,290,655 1,484,270

Carrying Over 1 year Over 2 years
amount Upto 1year to 2 years to 5 years Over 5 years
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1,030,647 1,030,647 - - -
197,368 197,368 - - -
272,544 214,166 18,754 38423 1,201
5,279,651 2,387,013 860,545 1,172,906 859,187
4,598,030 2,433,499 497,384 959,025 708,122
452,347 426,251 - - 26,096
11,830,587 5,688,944 1,376,683 2,170,354 1,594,606
96,844 96,844 - . _
1,900,169 1,734,563 380 46,111 119,115
8,741,127 8,205,299 205,479 288,274 42,075
7.487 7487 - - -
377,830 289,586 26,201 - 62,043
11,i23457 10,333,779 232,060 334,385 223,233
707,130 (3,044,835) 1,144,623 1,835,969 1,371,373
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Notes (continued)

44. Financial instvuments (confinted)
(O Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequatc or failed intemal processes, people and systems or from extemal
events,

The Operational Risk Division of the Group is primarily responsible for the oversight of operational risk managenient across
the Banking Group. The operational risk management framework of the Banking Group is govered by the Operational Risk
Management Policy and Procedures, while the implementation is supported by an operational risk management system and
designated operational risk coordinators within different units across the Group. The framework is in line with international
best practices, [lexible enough to implement in stages and pormits the overall approach to evolve in response to organisational
foaming and future requirements.

Loss data, collected through a well-defined program, is svajuated and processes are reviewed for improvements in mitigation
techniques. Periodic workshops are conducted for Risk & Control Self-Assessment and koy risk exposures are identified and
agsessed against existing controls to evaluate improvenient opportunities. Key Risk Indicators are also defined for monitoring
of risk exposures.

Business Continuity Plans have been implemented across the Banking Group, clearly defining the roles and responsibilities of
respective stakeholders, and covering recovery strategy, IT and structural backups, scenario and impact analyses and testing
directives. The ontsourcing policy has also been augmented to address risks associated with such arrangements.

(m) Capital risk management

Capital is held to protect the Banking Group’s banking business's (JUBL) depositors, cover inherent risks, provide a cushion
for stress events and to support the business strategy. In assessing the adequacy of capital resaurces, UBL considers its business
plan, risk appetite, the material risks to which it is exposed, and the appropriate strategies required to manage those risks.

UBL is committed to maintaining a strong capital base under both existing and future regitlatory requirements. The strength of
its capital base is dependent upon the size of its capital relative to Risk Weighted Assets.

UBL prepares a Capital Adequacy Assessment Process document that sets out how it idenlifies and manages the key risks to
which it 18 exposed and details its capital requirements, capital resources and capital adequacy over the planning period,
including under stress scenarios. This process is used to ensure that it appties appropriate managemeni buffers to regulatory
capital requirements in line with risk appetite. In order to appropriately monitor and manage the Bank’s capital resources, UBL
produces regular reports on the current and forecasted level of capital for the Board and the shareholders. The key assumptions
and risk drivers used to create the stress tests are regutarly moniiored and reported and are used in determining how it will
evolve its copital resources and ensure they are appropriate for growth.

The Banking Group’s insurance business's (UIL) objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continuc as a
going concern so that it can continue to provide retwins for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a
strong capital base to support the sustained development of ifs busincss,

UIL manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustinents to it i the light of changes in
economie conditions.

In accordance with Insurance Rules, 2017 issuod by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (S8ECP) vide SRO
89(1)2017, minimum paid-up capital requirement to be complied with by Insurance / Takaful companies as at 31 December
2017 and subsequent year is PKR 500 million (£2.4 million). As at June 20619 UIL’s paid-up capital of PKR 1,152 miltion
¢£5.6 million) was in excess of the prescribed limit.
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Notes (continued)

45. Subsequent events {continued)

After the year end, Bestway Cement Limited declared and paid £8.6 miltion in dividends for the quarter ended 30 June 2019,
United Bank Limited declared and paid £14.7 million in dividends for the quarter ended 30 June 2019,

There have been no other subsequent events which would have a material effect on the Group's financial statenzents at 30 Juno
2019,

46, Share capital

2019 2018
£000 £000
Authorised:
1,000,000 ordinery shares of £0.0! cach 10 10
Allgtted, called up and felly paid:
1,000,000 ordinary shares of £0.0] each 10 10

On 26 June 2019, Bestway Group Limited declared and paid a final ordinary dividend of £4.00 per share for the year ended 30
June 2018. This is in addition fo the £6.00 per share interim dividend declared and paid on 21 May 2018 for the year ended 30
June 2018. Together, this dividend totalled £10 million. No dividend has yet been declared for the year ended 30 June 2019,

47. Non-controHing interest

Total

£000
Balance at 1 July 2017 720,113
Share of total comprehensive income for the year {24,491)
Payment of dividends (53,595)
Repurchase of own shaves {1
Balance at 30 June 2018 642,017
Change in accounting policy (29,361)
Balance at 30 June 2018 (restated) 612,656
Share of total comprehensive incame for the year (38,515)
Payment of dividends (46,211)
Change in non-controlling interest (13)
Issuance and repurchase of uniés 1,191
Balance at 30 .June 2019 529,106

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's subsidiarics that have material non-conirolling interests is
set out below, The summarised financial information below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations,

2019 2018

£000 £000
Bestway Cement Limited
Current assets 72,487 120,070
Non-current assets 379,684 470,683
Current liabililies (119,099 (165,164}
MNon-current liabilities (50,972) (93,982)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company {282,100) (331,607)
United Bank Limited
Current assets 5,988,615 6,689,189
Non-current assets 3,929,273 5,513,783
Current liabilities (8,512,158) (10,333,779
Non-current fiabiltties (554,263) (789,67TT)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company (823,723) (1,045,844)
Non-controlling interests (27,744) (33,672)
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48. Related party fransactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and wholly owied subsidiaries are not required to be disclosed in accordance
with A8 24. Transactions between the Group and related partics are disclosed below.

Trading transactions

During the year, Group companies entered into the following transactions with related parties;

Purchase of goods
019 2018
£000 £000
Map Rice Mill (Pvt) limited 2,431 2,766
Total 2,431 2,766
Net interest receivable
2019 2018
£000 £000
Buybest Linited - 27
Total - 27

The following amounts were outstanding at the balance sheet dafe:

Amouits owed by Asnourtés owed to
related parties related parties
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £00¢ £000 £000
Map Rice Mill (Pvt) limited 182 549 167 .
Buybest Limited 560 1,035 - 5i
Total } 742 1,584 167 51

Buybest Limited is a related party of the Group becanse cortain Directors of Bestway Group Limited are also Directors of this
Company. MAP Rice Mill (Pvt) Limited is a related party of the Group because it shares common shareholders with MAP
Trading Limited,

Sales and purchases of goods between related partiss are oither done so at cost or al cost plus a mark-up fo cover administrative
expenses. The amounts payable or receivable or interest free are unsecured and will be sctticd in cash.

49. Remuneration of Directors and Key Management Personnel

Aggregate Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration of Directors of the Group, is set aut below in aggregate for each of the categorics specified in [AS 24 Relaled
Party Disclosures.

2019 2018
£000 £000
Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind 19,628 6,453
Contribution to money purchase pension scheme 56 204

12,363 6,657

The above remuneration relates to 6 directors (2018: 6 directors). 2 of these direetors did not recsive any cmolumcnts for their
services to the Group.

The aggregate of remuneration and amotmts receivable under long term ineentive schemes of the highest paid Director in the
Growp was £6.8 million (2018: £1.8 million).

Post-employment benefits are aceruing for 6 (2018: 6) directors under the money purchase schemes.
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49. Remuneration of Key Management Personnel and Direcfors (continued)

Apgregate key management personnel remuneration

The remuneration of key management personnel and Directors of the Group, is set out below in aggregate for each of the

categories specified in IAS 24 Related Parly Disclosures.

2019 2018

£000 £000

Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefiis in kind 19,596 20,514
Contribution to money purchase pension scheme 431 356
Contribution to gratuily fund penston scheme 3,038 37
23,065 20,907

Key management personnel are considered as such as they are instrumestal in planning, directing and controlfing activitics of

the Group.

QOther transactions with Directors

COn 4 April 2017, Bestway Northern Holdings Limited acquired a 74% share of Oakleaf Limited, with the consideration being
satisfied via the issue of 57,662,428 preference shares with par value of £1 per share and a coupon rate of 6%, with interest
being paid quarterly over 10 years. The shareholders are also Directors of Bestway Group Limited and the outstanding balance

of redeemable preference shares shown as non-current liabilities is as follows:

2019 2018
£900 £000
Sir MA Pervez 37,403 37,403
1.0ord ZM Choudrey 10,130 10,130
MY Sheikh 10,130 10,130
57,663 57,663
Dividends payable in the year on these preference shares is as foliows:
2019 2018
£000 £000
Sir MA Pervez 2,244 2,244
Lord ZM Choudrey 608 608
MY Sheikh 608 608
3,460 3,460
The Banking Group has cerlain reloted party transaclions with the Company’s Directors and details of these
transactions is given below,
Deposits Interest Interest
Advances talen payable Netincome expense
£000 £0060 £000 £000 £000
Year ended 30 Junc 2019
Details of transactions with these Directors is as _ 47,128 361 _ 1,118
fallows
Interest Interest
Advances Beposits payable Netincome expense
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Year ended 30 June 2018
Details of transaclions with these Directors is as 4 25,519 1 ) 1,183
follows

During the year no shares of UBL were sold by the Company’s Directors and 85,000 additional shares were purchased.
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49, Remuncration of Key Management Personnel and Directors (continued)

The current Directors of the Company and their immediate relatives control 100% (2018: 100%) of the voting shares of the
Company.

During the year under review, Bestway Foundation provided in excess of £225,000 (2018: £200,000) in grants to studenis of
South Asian origin to attend a number of universities in the United Kingdom. In addition, Bestway Foundation donaled over
£240,000 (2018: £185000) to nine charities in the UK, including amongst others, The Duke of Edinburgh Award,
Critnestoppers and Grocery Aid.

50. Prior year adjustments
Trading Group

Following the purchase ol Bargain Booze Ltd by the Group an cxercise has been performed to assess if the original fair values
on the opening statement of financial position have been changed. It has been concinded by management that these changes
are material resulting in a restatement of the consolidated statement of financial position and income statement for the year
ended 30 June 2018. Distribution expenses have also been reclassified from administrative expenses to reflect the correct
classification of these transactions. The following line items in the financial statements have been amended as loliows;

Extract of consoliduted income statement and consolidated statement of compreliensive income for the year to 30 June 2018
restared (dice to prior year adjustments)

Movement due to
Original restatement Restated
Trading Total| Trading Total{ Trading Totat
Group Combined| Group Combined Group Combined
£000 £000 £000 £000 £0060 £0060
Distribution expenses (10,933) (10,933)] (3,013 (3,013 (13,946) {13,946)
Administrative expenses (386,616 (727,552) 3,887 3,887 (382,729) (723,663%)
Total operating profit 115,685 353,841 874 874 116,559 354,715
Underlying Profit before tax 93,771 331,927 B4 874 94,645 332,801
Adjusting items:
Gain on acquisition {see note viii) 20,360 20,3601 (13,204) (13,204) 7,156 7,156
Profit before tax 114,131 295,817| (12,330) (12.330) 101,801 283,487
Profit for the year 85,531 213,532§ (12,330) (12,330) 73,201 201,202
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 50,882 123,350 (12.330) (12,330) 38,542 111,020
Non-controtling interesis 34,649 89960 - - 34,649 89,960
Investors of UBL funds - 222 - - - 222
Profit for the year 85,531 213,532 (12,330) (12,330) 73,201 201,202
Other comprehensive income for the year (52,275  (253,722) - - (52,275) (253,722)
Total comprehensive income for the year 33,250 (40,190)| (12,330) (12,330) 20,926 (52,520)
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Ovwmers of the Company 24,479 {15,699)] (12,330) (12,330) 12,149 (28,029)
Non-controlling interests 8,777 (24,491) - - 8,777 (24,491)
Total comprehensive income for the year 33256 (40,190)) (12,330) (12,330) 20,926 (52,520)
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50, Prior vear adjustments (cortinued)

Extract of consolidated statement of financial position as af 30 Jwre 2018 restated (dice fo prior year adjustments)

Note Original| Movement due Restated
1o restatentent
£000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Trading Group
Other intangible assets i 436,835 “.614) 432,221
Property, plant and equipment i 689,445 (8,428) 681,017
Total non-current assets 6,919,614 (13,042} 6,906,572
Current assels
Trading Group
Invertories ifi 330,330 (1,544) 328,786
Cash at bank and in hand v 169,887 234 170,121
Total current asscts 7,480,256 (1,310) 7,478,946
Total assets 14,399,870 (14,352 14,385,518
Current Habilitics
Trading Group
Trade and other payables v 582,582 182 582,764
Provisions vi 22,715 (i27) 22,588
Total current liabilities 11,178,632 55 11,178,687
Non-current liabilities
Trading Group
Deferred tax liabilities vi 131,121 2,077) 129,044
Total non-current liabilities 1,280,705 (2,077) 1,278,628
Total liabilities 12,459,337 (2,022) 12,457,315
Total net assets 1,940,533 (12,330 1,928,203
Equity
Retained earnings viii 673,897 (12,330) 661,567
Equity atiributable to owners of the Company 1,940,533 (12,330) 1,928,203
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50. Prior year adjustments (contined)

Notes relating to prior yeur adjustimenfs

i Inlangible assets
An adjustment of £4 6 millien was made to the provisional fair value of intangible assets that arosc principatly from software
being stated in excess of its fair value.

i, Property, plant and egnipment

Following acquisition, a full review of property, plant and equipment was undertaken which identified that the fair value of a
number of assets had been overstated and that asset deccommissioning ¢osts had been omitted from the provisional fair values.
The net adjustment to finalise the fair values led to a reduction of £8.4 millien in the provisional fair value of property, plant

and equipment.
#z, Inventories

An adjustment of £0.8 million was made to inventory to goods supplied to the business under retention of title clauses which
were subsequently enforeed by the supplier. In addition to this there was a further adjustment to increase the level of inventory
provisions by £0.7 million. The total impact of these adjustments was to reduce the fair value of inventories by £1.5 miliion.

v, Cash at bank and in hand
An adjustment of £0.2 million was made to restate the cash balance.

v. Trade and other payables
Trade payable related to provisions on the opening balance has had the fair value reasscssed and increased the provision by
£0.]1 million.

si. Provisions
A net adjustment of £0.1 million was made fo restate the fair value of the dilapidations provision as the provisional amount
was not sufficient to cover the potential liability.

vit. Deferred fax:
The deferred tax liability was restated by £2.1 million as a result of the finalisation of the fair value of net assets acquired.
This principafly arises from the adjustiment made to intengible assets and property plant and equipment,

viii. Adfusting itens

As g result of the fair value adjustments madeo to intangible assels and properly, plant and equipment there was & reduction in
amortisation and depreciation expenses totalling £0.8 million, recognised in administrative expenses. IFRS 3 requires
negative goedwill to be inimediately recognised in the income statement. The finalisation of the fair values resulted in a
reduction of £13.0 million in the negative goodwill balance, recognised in adjusting items, These two items resulted innet a

restatement of £12.3 million on retained camings.
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50, Prior year adjustments {continued)
Banldng Group

The comparative figures for certain ligbilities proviously disclosed in the statement of financia! position for the year cuded 30
June 2018 have been restated to reflect the appropriate calegories required by JAS 39, Financial Instréments, The adjistments
have been disclosed below:

Movement duce

to
Original reclassification Restated
£000 £000 £000
Current liabilities
Banking Group
Trade and other payables 168,522 (97,873) 70,647
Deposits and other accounts 8,148,034 57,265 8,205,299
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings 1,859,558 40,610 1,900,168
Provisions - 16977 16,977
Non-cuvrent liabilities
Banking Group
Provisions 16,977 (16,977 -
10,183,091 - 10,193,091

Following the restatement identified above, the acconnting standurds require the Group to also present a restated 2017
statement of financial position 1o show the effect of the reclassification errar. Bestway Group Limited did not legally exist at
30 June 2017, however the former uttimate parent company, Bestwvay (Holdings) Liwmited, did exist and the financial statements
for this entity wore publicly available. Therefore, the Group presents this as the reported and restated statement of financiat
position for the Group below to show the effect of the reclassification error as at 3¢ June 2017.

Statenient of fintencial position as at 30 June 2017 restated (due to prior pear adjustments)

Movement
due to
Original  restatement Restated
£000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Group Goodwill 206,294 - 206,294
Trading Group
Other iutangible assets 464,443 - 464 443
Property plant and equipment 653,118 - 653,118
Invostnient property 114,987 - 114,987
Banldng Group
Other intangible asscts 7,494 - 7,494
Property plant and equipment 311,760 - 311,760
Investment property 19,634 - 19,634
Reinsurance assets 12,877 - 12,877
Investment in equity accounted investoss 31,600 - 31,600
Other financial assets classified held for sale 4,342,263 - 4,392,263
Lending's to finaneial institutions and advances 1,991,887 - 1,991,887
8,206,357 - 8,206,357
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Statement of financial posifion as at 30 June 2017 restated (duc to prior year adjustments) (continued}

Curvent assets

Trading group
Invenlories

Tax receivable

Trade aud other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Banking Group

Other financial assets classified as held for sale

Lending’s to financial institutions & advances
Tax receivable

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Tatal asscts

Current liabilities

Trading Group

Trade and other payables

Tax payable

Bank overdraft

Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Provisions

Banking Group

Trade and other payables

Deposits and other accounts

Payable tc investors of UBL funds

Bill payabie

Bank overdraft

Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Technical provisions

Movement due

Original  fo restatement Restated
£000 £000 £000
298,020 - 298,020
3,048 - 8,048
214,202 - 214,202
108,973 - 108,973
3,315,760 - 3,315,760
2,752,614 - 2,752,614
96,501 - 26,501
307,489 - 307,489
1,354,340 - 1,354,340
8,455,947 - 8,455,947
16,662,304 - 16,662,304
526,225 - 526,225
38,320 - 38,320
50,965 . 50,965
20,694 - 20,694
423,229 (96,959 326,270
9,162,686 32,802 9,195,488
13,616 - 13016
129,188 - 129,188
3,950 - 3,950
2,802,778 64,157 2,866,935
- 17,091 17,091
13,171,051 17,091 13,188,142
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Statement of finaucial position as at 30 June 2017 resiated (dire to prior year adjusiments) (contined)

Non-current liabilities

Trading group
Other ifttorest-bearmg loans and botrowings

Employee benefits
Deferred tax liabilities
Preference shares

Banldng group

Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Deposits and accounts

Employes benefits

Deferred tax Habilities

Technical provisions

Other financizl liabilities

Total liabilities

Total net assets

Equity

Share capital

Share premium

Revaluation reserve

Capital redemption reserve
Statutory reserve

Reserve pertaining to UBL funds
Translation reserves

Retained eamings

Equity attributable to owners of company
Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Moverent due
Original  to restatement Restated
£'000 £4000 £000
408416 - 408,416
12,053 - 12,053
151,468 - 154,466
58,178 - 58,178
131,491 - 131,491
577,074 - 577,074
6,555 - 6,555
58,024 - 58,024
17,091 (17,091 -
31,689 - 31,689
1,452,037 (17,091) 1,434,946
14,623,088 - 14,623,088
2,039,216 - 2,039,216
71 - 71
3,055 - 3,055
271,243 - 271,243
39 - 39
205,124 - 205,124
1,178 - 1,178
225775 - 225,775
612,618 - 612,618
1,319,103 - 1,319,103
720,113 - 920,113
2,039,216 - 2,039,216
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Prior year cashflow restatement
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Due to foreign exchange calculation crrors noted during the year with respect to the cashftow statement for the year ended 30
June 2018, the comparative figures have been reclassified. The individual lines on the cashilow stalement materially impacted

are as follows;

Trading Banking Total
Group Group  cashilow
2018 20138 2018
Reported
£000 £000 £000
Cash flows from
operating actfivities
{Decrease) / increase
it provisions (9,576) (42,118)  (51.694)
Increase/ (decrease) 5 1o ssaps 53046
I pension provision > : :
Movements in working
capifal
(Increase) / decrease G097 ) 3.097)

in inventories
(Inecrease) / decrease
i reccivables
Increase / {decrease)
in payables

(36,006) 2,070,809 2,034,803

32,724 (2,821,678) (2,788,954)

Tax paid (34,027)  (38,874)  (72,901)
Cash flows from

financing activifies

Dividends paid to

nen-controiling (17,657)  (35,938) (53,595)

inferest

Net borrowings (from) .
! to third parties (102,785) (1,582,321) (1,685,106)
Effect of foreign

exchange rate changes 24,952 (260,687) (235,133)

Trading  Banking Total
Group Group  cashflow
Movement due to restatement
£000 £000 £000
6.829  (13.506) (6,677
2,229 (50,960 (43,731)
(25,539) - (25,539)

(10,992) (2,113,708) (2,124,700)

29021 2739306 2,768,827
(11271} (63,893)  (75,164)
(3,299)  (7.640)  (10,939)
30,597 951331 981,028
(25,228) 47,382 22,154

Trading Banking

Group  Group
2018 018
Restated

£000 £0060
(2,747) (55,024}
(213) 4,528
(28,636) -

(46,998) (42,899)

61,745 (81,872)
(45,298) (102,767)

(20,956) (43,578)

(72,188) (630,990}

(276) (213.,305)

Tatal
cashilow
2018

£000

(58,371

4,315

(28,636)
(89,897

(20,127)
(148,065)

(64,534)

(703,178)

(213,581)

Furthennore, interest paid of £21.9 million has been reclassified from “cashflow from operating activities” to “eashflow from
financing activities” and dividends paid by the Banking Group to Trading Group of £63.4 million , dividends paid to ownors
of {le parent of £6 million, and dividends paid to non-controlling interest of £64.5 million have been reclassified from
“cashflow from investing activities” to “cashflow from financing activitics” to reflect the correct classification of these items.
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Notes {continited)

51, Critical accounting estimates and judgeinents

In application of the Group's accounting policies, which are desoribed in note 3, the Directors are required to make the
judgements, estiinates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and linbilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. These judgements, estimatos and assumptions also impact the vesulls reported in the income statement and
statement of comprehensive income. The estimales and associated assumptions are based on historical cxperience aud other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these eslimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting sstimates are secognised
in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that vear or in the yenr of the revision and future periads
if the revision affects both current and future years.

Trading Group
Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

The follewing are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are dealt with separately below), that
the Directors have inade in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant offect on
the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Licences

Licences acquired on the acquisition of pharmacics are stated at cost less accumnlated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is charged to administrative expenses in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets unless sach lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are systematically tested
for impairment at each balance shect date, latangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use. The estimated
usefuil lives are as follows:

Licences 20 yoars
Kep sonrces of estination uncertuinty

The key assumptions conceming the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the batance sheet date that may
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustinent to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the noxt linancial
year, are disenssed below.

Impairment of licences

In calculating the impairment provision for licences, the Group makes an estimate of the cxpected retum for cach cash
generating unit in comparison to the licences relating to that cash generaling unit, The estimates used in projecting the
discounted eash flows for use in the expected return include the expected growth rate, the WACC discount rate, and budgeted
EBITDA figures for the next financial year. Sensitivity analysis is performed surrounding the effect of changes in the growth
rate and WACC on the impairment model. The impairment provision for the year is disclosed in note 23,

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the fair valee of the cash-generating units less costs to
sell. The determination of & fair value and of suitable sefling costs require a {evel of estimation. In situations where this is
lower than the book value of the net assets of the cash generating unit, a value in use calcufation will need to be performed.
The value in use caleulation requires the entity 1o estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order fo calculate preseut value. Details of the impairment loss ealculation are set out in
note 21, Given the role of a Group holding company is to hold and manage its investmeonts, the most appropriate method of
assessing for goodwill held at group fevel is through fair value less cost to sell (FYLCTS).

Valuatior of investment properties

Some of the Group's investment properties are measured at Eair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value of an investment property, the Group uses markel-observable data to the extent it is available. The Group engages third
party qualified vahers to perform the vatuation.
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Notes (continued)

51, Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Fair value of essefs and liabilities from business cambinations

In determining the fair valuc of the acquired trading assets of Bargain Booze Limited, Conviviality Retail Logistics Limited
and Wine Rack Limited in the year, the fair valuc was determined by the Directors, The income approach was used to arrive
at the fair value of the intangible assets. The estimated net cash flows are forecast over the expected reinaining econcanic life
and discounted to present vajue using a discount rate commensurate with the lovel of risk associated with the expected cash
flows. In determining the fair value of the acquired intangible asscts, the Group's Directors worked closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish the approprinte valvuation techniques and inputs in determining the fair value,

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal or constnictive obligation
because of a past event, that can be reliably measured, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
1o settle the obligation, Provisions are determined by discounting the expected fulure cash flows at 4 pre-tax rate that reflects
risks specific to the Hability.

Category M provisioning

Most of the provision in the aceounts relates to a provision for a reduction in government lunding. This comprises a provision
made for the NHS funding cnt announced by the Department of Health and NHS England (see note 38). Specifically, the
Category M provision meluded within NHS income is made in refation to NHS retained margin funding, This is based on en
intemally produced model looking at drug, tariff reimbursement rates in the market relative to available pharmacy lunding to
estimate whether a funding provision is requited. The Company performs regular review and sensitivity analysis on the inodel.
Alse included within NHS income is an element of discount ou the basis of what is known as the “deduction scale”, This is an
assumed amount of discount recei ved to avoid pharmacy contractors having to calculate and declare discount received on each
item dispensed. Currenily, the deduction scale {s based inn the monthly total of reiinbursement prices with a minimum of 5.6%
and a maximum of 11.5% deducted from the total monthly reimbursement,

Inventory provisioning

The Group's safes are subject io chunging consumer domands. As a result, it is necessary to consider the recoverabilily of the
cost of inventory and the associated provisioning required. When calculating the invenlory provision, management considers
the nature and condition of the inventory, as well as applying assumptions around anficipated saleability of stock.

Cantingent liabilities

Asg desoribed in note 43 (Contingent liabilities) the Group has a number of contingeny liabilities. Judgement is required in
assessing the likelihood of outflow, the potential quantum of any outflow and the associated disclosure requirements. The
Directors, with the aide of legal advisors, are confident of a favourable outcome on all these matters, accordingly no provision
has been made in respect of these matlers in the consalidated financial statements.

Post-eruployment benefil obligations

The present value of the post-employment benefit obligations depsnds on a nuuber of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in deterntining the net cost/(income) for pensions
inelude the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of post-employment benefit
obligations. The key assumpfions and sensitivitics are for post-employment obligations are disclosed in note 22 of the
consolidated financial statements.

Banking Group

Credit risk measearetent

The estimation of credit exposure for risk management purposes is complex and requires the use of models, as the risk
associated with exposure varies with changes in market conditions, expected cash flows and the passage of fime. The
assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of asscts entails further estimations as to the likelihood of defaults occurring, of the
associated foss ratios and of default correlalions between counterparties. The Banking Group measures credit risk using
Probability of Default (PD)), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss Given Default (I.GD). This is similar to the approach used
for the purposes of measuring Expected Credit Loss (ECL)under IFRS 9. Refer to note 44 for more details.
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Company Statement of Financial Pasition

As at 30 June 2019

Non-cuirent assets
[nvestments

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current Labilities
Trade and other payables

Total liabilities

Net assots

Capital and reserves
Share capilal

Merger reserve
Refained camings

Shareholders’ funds

Note

34

55

56

The notes on pages 137 to 139 are an integral pant of these financial statements.

Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305

Annpual report and financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
£000 £000
578,048 578,048
3 3
578,051 578,051
(3) 3)

(3) (&)
578,046 578,046
10 10
508,740 508,740
69,296 69,296
578,046 578,046

These financial statoments were approved by the board of Direciors on [9 December 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

f.ord Z M Choudrey CBE, S1 Pl, BA (Hons), FCA

Director

N

M Y Sheildh
Direcior
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Balance at [ July 2017
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income

Jssue of ordinary shares
Acquisition of subsidiarics under common conlrol
Dividends paid )

Balance af 30 June 2018

Prefit for the year and total comprehensive income
Dividends paid

Balarnice a¢ 30 June 2019

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Anunual report and financial slatemeats
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Merger Retained
Share capital reselrve carping  Total equity
£0060 £000 £a00 £000
- - 75,296 75,296
10 - - 10
- 508,740 - 508,740
. - (6,000) (6,000)
10 508,740 69,296 578,046
- - 4,000 4,000
- - (4,000) (4,000)
10 508,740 69,296 578,046

The notes on pages 137 to 139 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Company notes (forning part of the financial statenwents)

52. Significant accounting policies
The separate Hiadeial statements of the Company are preseifed as required by the Companies Act 2006,

These [inancial statements were preparcd in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework (“FRS 101™). The Company has adopted several new standards, amendments to standards and [FRIC that became
effective during the year and these had nc material impact and are detailed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing these financicl statemeunts, the Company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements of
Iaternational Finencial Reporting Standards as adopled by the EU (*Adopted IFRSs™) but makes amendments where necessary
in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and has set out below whore advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure excuiptions
has been taken.

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company is cxempt from the requirement to present its owa profit and loss
account.

The basis of prepatation is covered for all balances within note 3 of the financial statements.

In these financial statements, the Company has applied the exemptions availeble under FRS 101 in respect of the following
disclosures:

- A cash flow statement and related notes;

- Comparaiive period reconciliations for share capital;

- Disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiarics;

- Disclosure in respeet of the campensation of Key Management Personnel;
- Disclosures in respect of capital management; and

- The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs,

The financial statemenis have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the remeasurement of cerfain financial
instruments to fair value. The principal accounting policies adapted are the same as those sel out in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements,

Dividend income s recognised in the financial statements when the right to receive payment is established.

The merger reserve refates to the difference between the consideralion paid and the book value of the assets and liabilities at
the time of acquisition of entities that are under the conftrol of the shareholders that control the Company.

The Company finapcial staterenis have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Company made a prafit before tax of
£4.0 million and has net asscts of £578.0 million, This relates predominantly to an investment in Bestway (Holdings) Limited.
The Dircclors consider that this wilk cnable the Group to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future by meeting
its liabifities as they falf due for payment.

Based on these considerations the Directors believe that it remains appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going
coucern basis.

53. Profit for the year

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has clected not to present its own profit and loss account
for the period. The Company reported a profit for the financial period ended 30 June 2019 of £4.0 million (2018: £75.3
million). The anditors’ remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.



Company notes (continued)

54, Investments

Cost and nef book value

At 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2019

Details of the Company's directly owned subsidiary are given below,

Name UK Company Registered office
number

2 Abbey Road, Park

Bestway (Holdings) Limited 01392861  Royal, Loadon, UK,

NW10 7BW

The investments in subsidiarics are all stated at cost less provision for impairment.

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Sce note 26 for information relating to other indirectly owned related undertakings of the Company.

58, Trade and other payables

Amounls owed to group endertakings

Amounts owed to group undertakings are non-interest bearing, unsecured and payable an demand.

56. Share capital

Authorised:
1,000,000 ordinary shares of £0.01 each

Allotted, cafled up and fully paid
1,000,000 ordinary shares of £0.01 each

Sharesin
group
undertakings Total
£000 £000
578,048 578,048
2019 2018
Shm(': hfs ﬁ; Ownership  Ownership
¢s hel o &
Ordinary 100 100
2019 2018
£0060 £000
5 5
5 s
2019 2018
£000 £000
10 10
10 10

On 26 June 2019, Bestway Group Limited declared and paid a final, ordinary dividend of £4.00 per share in addition fo the
£6.00 per share interim dividend declared and paid on 21 May 2013 for the year ended 30 June 2018, This totalied £10 million.

No dividend has been declarcd for the year ended 30 Junc 2019.
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Company notes (continued)

57. Related party transactions

Remuneration of key management persoitnel

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption outlined in FRS 101:8(j) and is therefore not required to disclose key
management personnel compensation, analysed into five categories as prescribed by IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

Transactions with related parties

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption outlined in FRS 101:8(k) and is therefore not required to disclose
transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries, as prescribed by IAS 24 Related Party Disclosurcs,

No other transactions were entered into with the Company's disclosable refated parties, as defined by IAS 24,

Directors’ remtineretion

The costs relating to the Directors’ remuneration for the Company are mainly incurred by Bestway Wholesale Limited and
Bestway (Holdings) Limited for the wider Group. The amount atiributable to services provided to the Company was £6.6
millien (2018: £3.2 m:illien). The aggregate of remuneration and amounts receivable under long term incentive schemos of the
highest paid Director in the Group was £6.6 million.
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